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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Q P Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present to you the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

Most of the world had endured a difficult year in 2020
under the global impact of COVID-19 pandemic. Outbreaks
of COVID-19 caused nationwide lockdowns and travel
restrictions, and disrupted a wide range of business
activities, which in turn weighed heavily on the global
economy. While the unprecedented business environment
under the COVID-19 pandemic produced grave crises in
numerous businesses of a wide spectrum of industries,
it also opened up opportunities for some others. The
manufacturing sector in the PRC is considered to be one
of the industries that were able to recover more quickly.
Thanks to a series of effective disease control measures,
many factories in the PRC were able to resume operations
after short and temporary closure, which allowed the sector
to capitalise on the surge in demand for various materials
and products intended for different needs that emerged
during the pandemic such as disease prevention, work-from-
home working mode, household and indoor entertainment
products for social distancing, etc. On the other hand, the
e-commerce market continued to thrive as the pandemic
limited outdoor activities and hence shopping at physical
stores. The pandemic also gave rise to ongoing disputes
among certain economic powers, however, with the global
attention being dominated by combating COVID-19, the
Sino-US trade relation, following the signing of a trade deal
between the PRC and the US in January 2020, had overall
come to a relatively stable state throughout the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

MAJOR BUSINESS MOVES AND
ACHIEVEMENTS

The outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020 resulted in
a temporary interruption of operations in our Group’s
Dongguan and Heshan plants as many of our workers
were not able to return to our plants from their hometown
and resume duty right after the Chinese New Year break.
As the outbreak was known, we immediately implemented
stringent disease control measures to prevent outbreaks
of COVID-19 inside our plants. The lockdowns and travel
bans carried out by the local governments in the PRC also
played an important role in stopping the spread of COVID-19
across cities. As a result, our plants were able to resume
and maintain proper operations since February 2020. In
spite of different challenges, we achieved improvements
in operational efficiency and reduction in production costs
in our plants, accounting for our accomplishment of better
overall business performance.

For the last decade, our Group has been making efforts to
gradually establish our web sales business, which included
development of websites and back-end web-to-print system,
as well as implementation of various digital marketing
strategies. Our well-established infrastructure and digital
presence in our target markets enabled us to share a slice
of the pie in the booming global e-commerce market during
the COVID-19 pandemic. Last year, we further strengthened
our web sales business through developing websites in
more languages, expanding product offerings, enhancing
our web sales platforms’ compatibility, and advancing their
personalisation functions, etc. Such initiatives sharpened
our competitiveness in the online market of paper-based
product personalisation services and allowed us to realise
considerable growth in the web sales segment.
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Due to the restriction on outdoor activities of social
distancing policies in different countries, people began to
shift away from outdoor activities to in-home, and home
became the hub of various activities including recreation and
entertainment. Such a phenomenon stimulated the demand
for tabletop game products, especially puzzles. In recent
years, our Group has been endeavouring to optimise our
product mix and production specialisation in tabletop game
products by consolidating our production capacities in two
plants to enhance operational efficiency. This strategy led
to sufficient production capacity and flexibility for absorbing
the markedly rising demand for tabletop game products in
the European and the US markets. In addition, our business
expansion strategies, including appointment of overseas
sales representatives, have enabled us to keep enlarging our
customer base in the tabletop games segment. To further
strengthen our competitiveness, last year we allocated extra
resources to enhance the sophistication of our tabletop
games production to meet the highest quality standards of
some leading paper-based game publishers. As a result, we
successfully built up significant new business relationships
in the tabletop games segment, driving our tabletop games
sales to soar since the second quarter of 2020 and maintain
a high level throughout the year.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

HRTRBEREREREERNEINEGD
REI - APBESEERBAEIES
EH - SERBERRBRRENH L - &
AERAHRBEERENEHENT
Koo TR AN SR B I0 58 R 1E R BS B A
ER BALERXR BHELER
HAakRENEESML - LR ER
MBERHNEER IR BEERARED
SHRBEMBELTTOFR M
BPOEBIORERR  BREZEEINE
EREX ERMAERNBREZEXHNE
FPER - BE—FNBERMOBFS
BRPEFOIRBINERREARBELEN
fnE - LAY & &0 4B 5T H AR B B AR
BRRSEERE - At AR E
SEDHEZLEENHEBHE &2
BMNREHER S _EFF_Fi8
I UEBFAEFESKE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F#}

7



8

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

We recorded considerable growth in different key financial
performance indicators. Our adjusted net profit for FY2020
increased by approximately 42.1% to approximately
HK$130.5 million from approximately HK$91.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”). The adjusted net
profit margin increased from approximately 7.7% in FY2019
to approximately 10.6% in FY2020. We believe that such
growth is attributable to the increase in the proportion of our
web sales, which have a relatively higher gross profit margin
compared to our original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”)
sales, as well as different cost reduction measures and
opportunities. For FY2020, revenue generated from our web
sales increased significantly from approximately HK$103.5
million for FY2019 to approximately HK$158.0 million for
FY2020, representing an increase of approximately 52.6%,
and its proportion in our total revenue rised from 8.7% in
FY2019 to 12.8% in FY2020. The overall gross profit of the
Group also increased by approximately HK$71.3 million
or 19.5% to approximately HK$436.9 million in FY2020,
while gross profit margin increased to approximately
35.4% in FY2020 from approximately 30.6% in FY2019.
On the revenue side, we achieved a moderate increase of
approximately 3.3% to approximately HK$1,232.6 million
driven by the increase in web sales.

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK12
cents per share amounting to approximately HK$63.8 million
for FY2020, which is expected to be paid on or around
Thursday 3 June 2021. In making the decision, the Board has
prudently considered its current and future cash flows, the
uncertainties in the economy, the outlook for further growth
and profitability and views of key stakeholders, including
regulators and shareholders. The dividend is subject to
approval at the Annual General Meeting. If approved, this will
represent total dividends for the financial year of HK14 cents
per share.
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OUTLOOK & PROSPECTS

Despite signs of alleviation of the COVID-19 pandemic
in certain regions and rollout of vaccines, the pandemic
may continue to retard economic recovery in some major
economies and bring uncertainties to the globe extensively
in the near future. Also, although the new US administration
is deemed comparatively favourable for halting escalation
of the Sino-US trade tensions, the complications caused by
COVID-19 and other geopolitical dynamics may fuel political
volatility. Nevertheless, we remain cautiously optimistic
about our Group’s prospect in the coming year. Specifically,
riding on our web sales business’s solid foundation and
accumulated customer base, we aim to develop it as our
long-term growth driver and further increase its proportion in
our Group’s revenue. Adhering to our long-term strategy to
develop professional and specialised e-commerce websites,
we intend to create new websites specialising in one single
product category that showed growing popularity in our
existing website. We will also explore the business-to-
business-to-consumer model to provide innovative solutions
for corporate customers to offer personalised products on
their own platforms through our application programming
interface. To facilitate the development, we are expanding
our digital marketing team to boost the market presence of
our different websites and reach more potential individual
and corporate customers.

Our strategy of establishing a new production site in Vietnam
remains unchanged. The progress of acquisition of certain
land, factories, machines and assets in Vietnam, as disclosed
in previous announcements, has been slightly affected
because of certain legal procedures. With our determination
to provide one more geographical option for our OEM
customers and further consolidate our production capacity
to cater for upcoming business expansion, we will continue
to pursue our development in Vietnam in the coming years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to all of our employees
who rose to the challenges and contributed to the growth
of our Group with their dedication and professionalism in
such a difficult year. Special thanks go to those who braved
hardships to stay in their posts during the pandemic. | also
thank our shareholders, business partners and professional
parties for their tremendous support throughout the year. |
believe with all of us standing together, our Group are ready
to embrace the challenges ahead for a brighter future.

CHENG Wan Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Revenue W =
Gross profit E 7
Profit for the year F N A
Listing expenses X

Adjusted net profit G B i A
Earnings per shares (HK cents)

— Basic and diluted — BEARNE#E

Revenue
Wz
HK$'000
o 1,232,631
41 ’ ’
1,1 62,9791 193,6
1,079,630
886,343
2016 2017 ' 2018‘ 2019. 2020
ZE-RF ZE—tF ZT-)\F ZT-NF ZT=THF

& GBI

* Eliminated the effect of non-recurring listing related expenses of HK$20.6 million,

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

B 7540 22

For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECoEE —E-hnEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
1,232,631 1,193,641
436,866 365,558
129,348 84,288
1,166 7,573
130,514 91,861
24.57 2112

Adjusted Profit Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Company

EHBAD A SR RESER

HK$’000
e 130,514*

89,835 91 ,861*

78,889
71,544*

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RF ZE—tF ZT-N\F ZT-NF ZTTF

HK$7.6 million and HK$1.2 million for FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020, respectively
BREDFIN-—B-NFUREFE  —E-NFURFER_Z_ZWRFENHE
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

EREI RN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Corporate Profile

The Group is a long-established paper product
manufacturing and printing services provider. Headquartered
in Hong Kong, we operate two key production plants at
Dongguan and Heshan in Guangdong Province of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), with the capability
to offer value-adding and customised product engineering
services and printing solutions to our customers for a wide
spectrum of products. We have over 30 years of operating
history, and have established stable business relationships
with our major customers in the United States of America (the
“U.S.”) and countries in Europe.

Our principal product categories are tabletop games,
greeting cards, educational items and premium packaging.
Our products are sold to () OEM customers who generally
order mass quantities for direct sales and distribution
through their own sales network; and (i) individual and
corporate customers who generally order smaller quantities
through online sales channels. Our major OEM customers
include an international greeting cards publisher, and
multinational children educational products and toys brands.

Business Overview

The financial year of 2020 under review was certainly a
challenging and unprecedented time as the outbreak of
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) severely affected
the global economy. Coupled with the uncertainties caused
by the ongoing trade tensions between the PRC and the U.S.
as well as the U.S. presidential election, the Group remained
alert to the difficult environments and became more cautious
regarding the application of its resources during the year
under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With the continuing uncertainties of the global economy, the
Group imposed various cost control measures such as the
streamlining of work processes through the use of advanced
technology and other possible approaches for production
planning and control, and lowering operating costs through
the introduction of new suppliers and negotiations with
service providers for better prices. In addition, the Group
continued to relocate part of the end-to-end production of
our Group’s products for the U.S. market to Vietnam through
cooperation with a subcontractor. On the other hand,
the Group has been continuing to improve its operational
efficiencies and actively pursue Industry 4.0 while staying
focused on its long-term opportunities.

Despite the unfavourable market conditions, our revenue
increased moderately by approximately 3.3% from
approximately HK$1,193.6 million for FY2019 to approximately
HK$1,232.6 million for FY2020.

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19
adversely affected the OEM sales of the Group. The business
operations of several customers located in the U.S. and
Europe suffered from the widespread disruption to economic
activities due to COVID-19. In view of such challenges,
the Group closely communicated with its customers and
provided different solutions to accommodate their situation
and overcome this crisis. As a result of our efforts, our
export orders have been restored to a normal level since the
second half of 2020. Overall, the revenue derived from OEM
sales recorded a slight decrease of approximately HK$15.5
million or 1.4% from approximately HK$1,090.1 million for
FY2019 to approximately HK$1,074.6 million for FY2020.

While the outbreak of COVID-19 has significantly impacted
the business trading environment, it has also pushed
e-commerce and online shopping to become one of the
fastest growing channels under various travel bans and social
distancing policies worldwide. During the year under review,
the Group was able to capture such opportunities and
achieved a considerable growth in the web sales business.
Amid lockdowns and tightening of preventive measures,
consumers have changed their behaviours accordingly.
Under the trend of the stay-at-home economy, customers
have been shifting to online and digital solutions as well
as other contact-minimising channels to purchase goods.
During FY2020, our web sales business yielded a remarkable

BB R

ERHREEFBETHBANBRT A&
EEESERANEGERE - FlwiERE
BrRERMEEMAENEEFTERE
ERHERBEIERRE - LBBSI AR
HERkEREEENGEABSEER
ERERRBEREERA I A&
HEEEABAESEEEE  HAEEE
FEBRZERNTD R BEEERE
ME - Z—FH AEE—EFERSH
EERE  NMEBBETIEIO IR
TERERRTE RS -

BEMRARE HEMOKEHR=-F
—NFMBFERL1,193.68 BE TR
MBRABIBE_E-_EFHHREEN
#91,2326 B T °

—ZE - Z F %) COVID-19/ 18 3 & &~
SENOEMBEEEXNTFEE - U R
EBREBRMMNNE TEFPNEBLERA
COVID-19%8 By 48 5 /& 8 & 2 7 I i &% I
FE MEUZEUE AEBERFEE
PEB TRHTRAMMBRTE  UE
HEFPHBRARRARESEHE - £HM
MEAT RFIMEOTTEA ST F
THEREMEZETKFE - BEMS -
KEOEMBEMB ZHE T —NFH K
FEHA1,090.18 8% T E UKL 415.5
BEAETHIANE_S_EFHREE
B #91,074.6B 8B T °

COVD-19M BB H M EEHRIBEKE
AXE RRTHESHTEFIBEEG L
BYKAZIRKTRKES SRR EBRH
BRTEREARNEB 2 - REHE
FE AEBEENCEZSHE  TER
UHEEB EERABER - EHEK
REREKENBERLT  BHEEMNITA
MBEFRES - C[ELEINBET  HE
ECEBRERLREEBAIR UK
H A o EENRERBEE M R2F
“EFURFE  BMOAMEEEBK
THREEERR AT AFHREE
B #49103.58 8 & 7T 1% 1N #954.58 & B T

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3 13



MANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
En fi uT nf & ﬁ'

increase in revenue of approximately HK$54.5 million or
52.6% from approximately HK$103.5 million for FY2019 to
approximately HK$158.0 million for FY2020. In particular,
the Group recognised a significant growth of approximately
397.2% in the total sales amount mainly derived from jigsaw
puzzle products through www.createjigsawpuzzles.com for
FY2020 compared with that of FY2019, which was the result
of the increased time spent on those products by people in
the U.S., and hence the rising demand, due to the COVID-19
related social distancing policies which encouraged indoor
activities within household. Meanwhile, the number of
active registered user accounts, which refers to the number
of registered user accounts with order(s) placed in our
five major websites namely www.makeplayingcards.com,
www.boardgamesmaker.com, www.createjigsawpuzzles.
com, www.printerstudio.com and www.gifthing.com, also
increased by approximately 37.2% from approximately
34,900 as at 31 December 2019 to approximately 47,900 as
at 31 December 2020.

In spite of huge fluctuations in the world economy during
the year under review, the Group achieved the highest profit
level for FY2020 in its operating history. During the year
under review, the Group recorded a considerable growth
in adjusted net profit of HK$38.6 million or 42.1% from
approximately HK$91.9 million for FY2019 to approximately
HK$130.5 million for FY2020, with an increase in adjusted
net profit margin from approximately 7.7% for FY2019 to
approximately 10.6% for FY2020. Such increase was mainly
attributable to:

(i)  the increase in the proportion of our web sales which
has a relatively higher gross profit margin compared to
our OEM sales;

(i)  the decrease in the production costs of our factories
located in the PRC due to cost control measures
imposed by the Group;

(i) the absence of consultancy fees and taxation charges
in relation to the transfer of the land parcels and
the application of real estate ownership certificates
for certain building blocks in the Dongguan factory
recorded during FY2019; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iv) the reduction and exemption of corporate social
insurance premiums in the PRC according to the notice
jointly released by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security, the Ministry of Finance, and the
State Taxation Administrative of the PRC in February
2020, as well as the receipt of subsidy under the
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government.

Future Outlook

The COVID-19 pandemic and the trade tensions between the
PRC and the U.S. are expected to subsist for a foreseeable
period of time. The increasing labour and material costs
within the PRC will also pose major challenges in the coming
years. The Group will continue to closely assess and monitor
the development of these risks and uncertainties and will
take appropriate actions to mitigate their impacts.

Adhering to our long-term business development strategies,
we have been striving to continuously expand our web sales
business and diversify our sales in different markets. We
are pleased to have witnessed some desirable outcomes
including the encouraging performance of our web sales
business and the increases in both volume and proportion of
our sales in European markets in FY2020. Thus, we expect
to continue devoting efforts and resources to such strategies
in order to further expand our customer base and increase
our revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

The expansion of manufacturing capacities outside the
PRC remains a key strategy of the Group. As disclosed in
the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2019 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intends to set up a production
site in Vietnam and acquire machines for use in such
production site. The Group entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with a
vendor in June 2020 pursuant to which it intends to acquire
certain land, factories, machines and assets located at
Hai Duong Province, Vietnam. The Board believes that
such an acquisition will allow the Group to set up its own
production site in order to tackle the impacts arising from
the trade tensions between the PRC and the U.S. and
perform end-to-end production of the Group’s principal
products for its customers in the U.S. as well as to diversify
the operational risks. Details of the MOU in relation to such
proposed acquisition were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 30 June 2020 and 29 December
2020.

In the current rapidly changing business environment, the
management is continuing to develop and procure more
orders to maintain a continuous business growth for the
Group. In the long run, the Group remains confident in the
growth of the overseas tabletop games market especially
through online sales channels. The Group will continue
to employ additional staff and reinforce the resources of
the web sales business segment in order to enhance our
competitive advantage and further expand our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the COVID-19 pandemic is not yet completely under
control as at the date of this report, the Group expects that
the economic development and business activities in the U.S.
and Europe may still be affected in the foreseeable future.
As a major part of the Group’s revenue is generated from the
U.S. and European markets, the Group expects that its future
financial performance will continue to be largely dependent
on the economic states of these markets. The Group is
pleased to see that its financial performance remained strong
in FY2020 despite the COVID-19 outbreak as it was able to
capture opportunities to expand its e-commerce and online
shopping business and therefore achieved a considerable
growth in the web sales business. Despite the potential risks
brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group expects
that its web sales business will continue to grow in the
future. Meanwhile, any unfavourable developments of the
trade tensions between the PRC and the U.S. such as the
imposition of tariffs is out of the Group’s control and may
significantly affect its business operations and financial
results. The Group will continue to (i) pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the trade
tensions between the PRC and the U.S.; (ii) evaluate their
impact on the financial position, cash flows and operating
results of the Group; and (iii) impose appropriate measures
accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

FINANCIAL REVIEW B #% B B8
Revenue Y =

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$1,232.6
million for FY2020, representing an increase of approximately
3.3% as compared with approximately HK$1,193.6 million for
FY2019. The increase in the Group’s revenue for FY2020 was
driven by the increase in web sales.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of total revenue
for the periods indicated by business segment:

REERZZEZTFHRFEER KSR
12326BBA L RZE—NFHWH
F[Z #91,193.68 8 & 7L M £3.3% &
SER-ZTEFHRFENKRERA
1 00 75 R A 48 ik SH 4L I FT B o

TREI R THERER 2 A8 58
#8455 AR AR -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
OEM sales OEMiH & 1,074,643 87.2 1,090,129 91.3
Web sales CERECR= 157,988 12.8 103,512 8.7
Total st 1,232,631 100.0 1,193,641 100.0
OEM sales decreased slightly from approximately HK$1,090.1 OEMEEHH T — N FHHFEHNY

million for FY2019 to approximately HK$1,074.6 million for
FY2020, representing a decrease of approximately 1.4%.
The decrease was due to the outbreak of COVID-19 which
seriously affected the global retail market at the beginning
of 2020. Since the second half of 2020, OEM export orders
have been restored to a normal level and offset part of the
unfavourable impact on our business during the early phase
of the COVID-19 outbreak at the beginning of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Web sales increased significantly from approximately
HK$103.5 million for FY2019 to approximately HK$158.0
million for FY2020, representing an increase of approximately
52.6%. The increase was primarily due to the surging orders
of jigsaw puzzles and the organic growth of playing cards
sales during the year under review.

The table below summarises the geographical revenue based
on the destination of delivery for the periods indicated:

BT Mo

BUEERH T - NFHRFENY
1B5EEAEATHREENE-_T_-F
MBEENHI5808E BT IR R
52.6% ° EIE 0 &2 h A O B FE e Bt
BRIEAMIBAMMEEENE FIBRA
B e

TR AR & PR B RN B A i E
7 H) 3 8 W a

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-ALEE

2020 2019

—ECEHF —=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET
The United States of America x 852,848 69.2 898,883 75.3
Europe B 197,261 16.0 138,419 11.6
The PRC (including Hong Kong)  # B (B #EE5) 97,059 7.9 95,511 8.0
Others Hb 85,463 6.9 60,828 5.1
Total st 1,232,631 100.0 1,193,641 100.0

The U.S. and Europe were the two largest overseas markets
of the Group which in aggregate accounted for 85.2%
and 86.9% of the total revenue for FY2020 and FY2019,
respectively. The decrease in sales of the U.S. market was
mainly attributable to one of our major customers, which
is headquartered in the U.S. and principally engages in the
sales of greeting cards, gift wrap and related products,
suffering from the decrease in demand for greeting card
products during the outbreak of COVID-19. The increase in
sales of the European market was mainly due to the increase
in demand for tabletop games in Europe during the year
under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

Cost of sales

Our Group’s cost of sales mainly consists of cost of
raw materials, staff costs in relation to production,
sub-contracting charges, depreciation, utilities and factory
overhead. The Group recorded a decrease in cost of sales
of approximately 3.9% from approximately HK$828.1 million
for FY2019 to approximately HK$795.8 million for FY2020.
The decrease in cost of sales was primarily attributable
to (i) the decrease in staff costs incurred in cost of sales
as a result of the decrease in the number of production
staff and the reduction and exemption of corporate social
insurance premiums for enterprises in the PRC during the
year under review; and (ii) the decrease in sub-contracting
charges as a result of the decrease in sales of greeting card
products during FY2020 for which we generally engage our
subcontractors for greeting card assembly works.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For FY2020, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
HK$436.9 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$71.3 million or approximately 19.5% as compared to
approximately HK$365.6 million for FY2019. The gross profit
margin increased from approximately 30.6% for FY2019 to
approximately 35.4% for FY2020 and such increment was
primarily attributable to (i) the increase in the proportion
of our web sales which has a relatively higher gross profit
margin comparing to our OEM sales; (i) the decrease in
production cost of our factories located in the PRC due
to cost control measures imposed by the Group; and (iii)
the reduction and exemption of several corporate social
insurance premiums for enterprises in the PRC during the
year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other (losses)/gains, net

The Group’s other (losses)/gains, net mainly consist of
foreign exchange gains/loss, fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments and gain/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment. The fluctuations of other (losses)/gains,
net was primarily due to the fluctuation of the exchange rate
of the RMB against the HKD during FY2020.

Other income, net

The Group’s other income, net mainly consists of sales of
scrap materials and government grants. The increase in
other income, net was mainly due to the receipt of subsidy
under the Employment Support Schedule of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government during FY2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
transportation expenses, staff costs of our sales personnel,
commission paid to our sales representatives and service
charges of payment gateways. The selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$99.2 million for
FY2019, increased by approximately HK$9.6 million or 9.7%,
to approximately HK$108.8 million for FY2020, which was
mainly due to (i) the increase in transportation expenses,
which mainly represent expenses incurred in relation to the
delivery of finished goods; (i) the increase in service charges
of payment gateways; and (i) the increase in commission
paid during the year under review.
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MANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
En fi uT nf & ﬁ'

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly comprise staff cost,
listing expenses, depreciation and amortisation, legal and
professional fees and travelling expenses. The Group’s
administrative expenses decreased by approximately
HK$17.9 million or 9.8% from approximately HK$183.1 million
for FY2019 to approximately HK$165.2 million for FY2020.
Such decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the absence
of consultancy fees and taxation charge in relation to the
transfer of the land parcels and the application of real estate
ownership certificate for certain building blocks in our
Dongguan factory during FY2019; (ii) the decrease in the
number of staff during FY2020 as compared with FY2019
as a result of cost control measures imposed by the Group
during the year under review; and (iii) the decrease in listing
expenses.

Finance costs, net

Our finance costs, net decreased by approximately HK$4.6
million or 61.6% from approximately HK$7.5 million for
FY2019 to approximately HK$2.9 million for FY2020, mainly
due to the decrease in average bank borrowings balance for
FY2020 compared with that of FY2019.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by approximately
HK$12.9 million, or 75.6% from approximately HK$17.2 million
for FY2019 to approximately HK$30.1 million for FY2020.
The increment was primarily due to higher portion of profit
generated by our Heshan Factory which had a relatively
higher effective tax rate during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit increased by approximately HK$45.0
million or 53.5% from approximately HK$84.3 million for
FY2019 to approximately HK$129.3 million for FY2020. The
net profit margin also increased from approximately 7.1% in
FY2019 to approximately 10.5% in FY2020. Before taking
into account the listing expenses, the adjusted net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
approximately 42.1% from approximately HK$91.9 million in
FY2019 to approximately HK$130.5 million in FY2020. The
adjusted net profit margin also increased from approximately
7.7% in FY2019 to approximately 10.6% in FY2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 16 January 2020 (the “Listing”). There
has been no change in the share capital of our Group since
then and share capital of our Group only comprises ordinary
shares. As at the date of this annual report, the Company
has 532,000,000 ordinary shares in issue.

The Group relies principally on its internally generated capital
and bank borrowings to fund its business. Details of the
borrowings (including the maturity profile of borrowings) are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During FY2020, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed mainly by internal
resources. The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial
management policy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported net current
assets of approximately HK$232.5 million, as compared
with approximately HK$114.6 million as at 31 December
2019. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents was approximately HK$236.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$131.9 million
as compared to approximately HK$104.8 million as at 31
December 2019. The cash and cash equivalents mainly
consisted majority of Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United states dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, total borrowings and lease
liabilities for the Group amounted to approximately HK$92.9
million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$192.6 million).
The borrowings were denominated in HKD and lease
liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. All bank
borrowings are at floating rates and lease liabilities are at
fixed rates.

For FY2020, the net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately HK$193.6 million (FY2019: approximately
HK$152.6 million). The net cash generated from operating
activities was mainly derived from the profits recorded
during the period. The net cash used in investing activities
was approximately HK$47.7 million (FY2019: approximately
HK$42.3 million). The net cash used in financing activities
was approximately HK$17.9 million (FY2019: approximately
HK$65.9 million). For FY2020, the net cash used in investing
activities was mainly attributable to payment in relation to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and the net cash
used in financing activities was mainly attributable to the net
repayment of borrowings and the dividend payment, and
partially offset by the proceeds from the Listing during the
year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately
HK$6.4 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$11.5
million) capital commitments in relation to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by the total debt (being
borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash and cash
equivalents and divided by the total equity as at the end of
the respective reporting periods and multiplied by 100%.
The Group had a net cash position as at 31 December 2020
and gearing ratio of approximately 16.4% as at 31 December
2019. The Group reported a net cash position as at 31
December 2020 primarily because of the decrease in its level
of bank borrowings level and the increase in cash and cash
equivalents during FY2020.

We will closely monitor our gearing ratio. We analyse
the maturity profiles of our borrowings and manage our
liquidity level to ensure a sufficient cash flow to service our
indebtedness and meet cash requirements arising from our
business. We will explore various financing opportunities to
improve our capital structure and reduce our cost of capital.
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MANAGEMENTDBCUS&ONANDANAUSE
En fi uTuFFE& Tﬁ

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED
HEDGES

As the Group is headquartered in Hong Kong and our
production facilities are primarily located in the PRC,
most of our production cost and operating expenses are
primarily denominated in HKD and RMB, while our revenue
is mainly denominated in U.S. Dollars and HKD, we are
exposed to foreign currency risks primarily as a result of
revenue, production costs and operating expenses that
are denominated in foreign currencies other than HKD. The
Group’s foreign currency exposure also comprises assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
subsidiaries’ functional currencies.

The Group has set up a policy to manage its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and employing financial instruments for
hedging should the need arise. The Group does not adopt a
formal hedge accounting policy. During FY2020, the Group
entered into certain forward foreign currency contracts
based on actual demand to sell USD and purchase RMB
with a licensed bank in Hong Kong. The Group categorises
these contracts as being entered into for hedging purpose.

As at 31 December 2020, the notional principal amounts of
the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts were
approximately HK$117.0 million (31 December 2019: nil). For
FY2020, fair value gain on derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$3.9 million (FY2019: nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 December 2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

On 30 June 2020, the Group entered into the non-legally
binding MOU with a vendor, an independent third party,
to acquire certain land, factories, machines and assets in
Vietnam. Subsequently, the Group and the vendor have
agreed to enter into the supplemental MOU on 29 December
2020 to extend the exclusivity period and the long stop date
of the proposed acquisition. Details of the MOU and the
supplemental MOU in relation to such proposed acquisition
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
30 June 2020 and 29 December 2020. As at the date of
this annual report, no binding agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition has been entered into. In the event that
a binding agreement is entered into by the parties, the Group
will make further announcement as and when appropriate.

On 11 February 2021, the Group entered into a non-legally
binding offer letter with two independent third parties as
sellers, to acquire the entire issued share capital of four
companies incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability.
The principal assets of the companies are a group of
properties located on the same floor of the existing head
office of the Group in Hong Kong. The properties are
intended to be acquired and held by the Group for its own
use. To cope with the business development and expansion
of the Group, the Directors consider that it is beneficial for
the Group to expand its office in Hong Kong. Details of the
proposed acquisition were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 11 February 2021. As at the date of
this annual report, no binding agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition has been entered into. In the event that
a binding agreement is entered into by the parties, the Group
will make further announcement as and when appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during FY2020 (FY2019: nil).

EEE njnﬁ& M'

MEBAR BMEQXARSELE
MEAKBBHHESE

RZEZZEFAAA=+H A&EBHEH—
ZEH(BBLEZFLELRHNR
e HmEERSE  WREBLRNEENE
Tt BWE HBEREE - HR K
EEEZEHNERAER-_Z_ZTF+_A
“tABAIYHAREBETSE  UTEK

RREUBEENBRAEHLKRE LA
H-AHAHEEZRBFENTBET
BRHARBRBECENFBEERALQF

HA-—T-_TFA=+HAEK=-Z=F
FHTZAZTNANAEFRRE - RAF
WAH AR BERERBEEITZLENW
BRI BE - WSEHFILELHRS
WinE  AEBBSREERIITAS

FR1TA

RZEBE-_—F_A+—HB AEEEMSAZ

EHERBALE=TILTNRERY
RAOMBAK - AKWBURAES B LM

KL BERAGMNEFHEEITRAE - Z
ERRNEBEEARNNAEERFTBR
ERMEER—EEN—HEDE - %Z
MERBASERERFEEEARA A
REAEBENEBEREIER EFR
AASEREEEREENRAENES
Fleg2aUBOFBEERAARIBHA
TE—F A+ —BHRAEFEE R
RERBH - MARMRBRZWBEIT LM
BAORINBE - WS HIILELHRS

MWk AR E KR EE R RE L E
HRNE o

B EX TR EEIN ZKEIW_?_E
FHBRFEYETMKHELR  BELQ

E&A**E%E‘Jéﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁiﬂj’§$lﬁ(_
E-NEHMHRFEE:HE) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3 27



I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Prospectus or otherwise in
this annual report, there were no other plans for material
investments or capital assets during the year under review.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately HK$59.1 million property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$35.0 million have been
charged as security for bank borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, right-of-use assets amount
to approximately HK$60.4 million, property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$36.6 million and
bank deposit amount to HK$0.4 million have been charged
as security for bank borrowings of the Group.

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial information.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2020 of which
133,000,000 ordinary shares (comprising 13,300,000 Hong
Kong offer shares and 119,700,000 international placing
shares) had been allotted and issued under the global
offering, at an offer price of HK$1.18 per Share. The actual
net proceeds from the Listing were approximately HK$111.9
million (after deduction of the listing expenses).

As at the date of this annual report, the Company intends to
continue to apply the net proceeds in the manner consistent
with that described in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. However, the Directors
will continue to evaluate the Group’s business objectives and
will change or modify the plans according to the changing
market condition to create greater value for the Shareholders.
Should there be any material change in the intended use
of the net proceeds, the Company will make appropriate
announcement(s) in due course.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets out an adjusted allocation as adjusted
in the same manner and same proportions as shown in the
Prospectus and the actual use of the net proceeds as at 31
December 2020:

Intended use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus

RREBFLAFERERERR

Actual use of
net proceeds

Actual net
proceeds

BER
Fi&RE
R
HK$'000
TET

December

—<—=

BT Mo

TRHINAZE_ZEF+_A=+—HHW
FIEREFEECHABRSE(RHBRRERFN
THMERB SR KRG AE) R EE

N

B

Unutilised
net proceeds
as at 31
December
2020 2020
EZ i
2R —ECEF
T=8
Er=F
e 7 & A
mBRE
BE
HK$'000
TAET

Expected timeline
for utilising the
remaining net
proceeds (Note)

up to 31

T=AH
=t+—H
FiBaAE

FEN
ERAR

HK$'000

FAT

BAGH
FEREFED
FHRBER

(# i)

HK$'000

TET

(i) Enhance the Group’s production capacity and 58,726 27,699 31,027 By 31 December 2021
operational flexibility
ReRrEENEERNIREERE]L —E-—F
+ZA=+—H#l
(ii) Optimise the Group’s product mix and 27,964 2,963 25,001 By 31 December 2021
production specialisation by, among others,
reallocating the Group’s production capacity
to Heshan and enhancing the Group’s
operational efficiency
BBEHPRR)BASENERENIEE —T-—fF
BURRAXEENELNE  UBILAE +ZA=+—H#l
ENEmEEREEERE
(i) Enhance the Group’s technological capability 13,087 3,626 9,461 By 31 December 2021
and upgrading the Group’s IT infrastructure
RAXSENEME N RARTEENER —T_—F
B ERSR® +ZA=+—H#l
(iv) Working capital and other general corporate 12,081 12,081 — N/A
purposes
LEEGRHM-REXAR NiEF
111,858 46,369 65,489
Note: The expected timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds is MfiF: BEBTIAEREFENTEHRBE X DE

based on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by
the Group and is consistent with that as described in the Prospectus.
It might be subject to changes based on the current and future
development of the market conditions.

The unutilised net proceeds have been placed as bank
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (288 {&), aged 62, is one of our
founders, an executive Director, chairman of our Board
and chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Cheng was
appointed as a Director in April 2018 and redesignated
as an executive Director in January 2019. Mr. Cheng also
serves as a director of Archer Praise Limited, Eternity Year
Investment Limited, Multi International Investment Group
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P
Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P
Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Trading Limited,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, DPI Laboratory
Services Limited and Printer’'s Studio Limited, a director
and legal representative of Tiandin ZenSee Technology Co,
Ltd., Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited*, Dongguan
ZenSee Product Testing Limited, Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited, Shenzhen Zen See Information Technology Co.,
Ltd.* and Q P Trading (Vietham) Company Limited. He is
responsible for formulating overall strategies, planning and
business directions of our Group. Mr. Cheng has over 35
years of experience in the printing industry. He established
our Group in 1985 with Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth
and served as a director of Q P Printing Limited since its
incorporation. Mr. Cheng is the spouse of Ms. Hui Li Kwan,
an executive Director of our Group.

Since December 2016, Mr. Cheng has been serving as a vice
chairman of the board of directors of the Hong Kong Shine
Tak Foundation, a charity organisation, and has been serving
as a permanent honorary president since December 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth (15 £ #), aged 62, is one
of our founders and an executive Director, and is responsible
for formulating overall strategies and planning, and
overseeing the manufacturing operations of our Group. Mr.
Yeung was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019. Mr.
Yeung also serves as director of Archer Praise Limited,
Eternity Year Investment Limited, Multi International
Investment Group Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP
Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P
International Limited, Q P Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing
Limited, Q P Trading Limited, QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen
Limited, Printer’s Studio Limited, Tiandin ZenSee Technology
Co, Ltd., Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited* and
Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited. He has over 35 years of
experience in the printing industry. He established our Group
in 1985 with Mr. Cheng Wan Wai and served as a director of
Q P Printing Limited since its incorporation.

Between January 2012 and January 2017, Mr. Yeung had
been a member of the 12th Dongguan Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He has
been serving as a permanent honorary president of Hong
Kong Shine Tak Foundation, a charity organisation, since
December 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny (B #0), aged 58, is an executive
Director, and is responsible for formulating strategic
planning, overseeing overseas sales, human resources,
administration and training functions of our Group. Ms. Liu
was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019. Ms.
Liu also serves as director of Archer Praise Limited, Eternity
Year Investment Limited, Multi International Investment Group
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P
Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P
Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Trading Limited,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, Printer’s Studio
Limited, Tiandin ZenSee Technology Co, Ltd., Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited* and Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited. She joined our Group in September 1990 and has
over 35 years of experience in the printing industry. Ms. Liu
obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in May 2004.

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas (R & 38), aged 57, is an
executive Director, and is responsible for overseeing business
development and sales functions of our Group. Mr. Chan
was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and redesignated
as an executive Director in January 2019. Mr. Chan also
serves as director of Archer Praise Limited, Eternity Year
Investment Limited, Multi International Investment Group
Limited, Product Innovator Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited,
QP Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P
International Limited, Q P Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing
Limited, Q P Trading Limited, QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen
Limited and Printer’s Studio Limited. He joined our Group in
October 2000 and possesses over 20 years of experience in
the paper-based items manufacturing and printing industry.
Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. HUI Li Kwan (F # &), aged 59, is an executive Director,
and is responsible for managing material development and
supply. Ms. Hui was appointed as our Director in April 2018
and redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019. Ms.
Hui also serves as director of Archer Praise Limited, Eternity
Year Investment Limited, Multi International Investment Group
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P
Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P
Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Trading Limited, QP
(HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited and Printer’s Studio Limited.
She joined our Group in July 1985 and has over 35 years of
experience in the printing industry. Ms. Hui is the spouse of
Mr. Cheng Wan Wai, an executive Director and chairman of our
Group.

Mr. MAK Chin Pang (Z R E), aged 49, is an executive
Director, and is responsible for overseeing administrative
and legal compliance matters, accounting and corporate
finance functions of our Group. He was appointed as our
Director in April 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director in January 2019. Mr. Mak also serves as director of
Archer Praise Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Multi
International Investment Group Limited, Product Innovator
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P
Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P
Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Trading Limited,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, DPI Laboratory
Services Limited and Printer’s Studio Limited. He is the
chairman of the risk management committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee
of our Company. He joined our Group in May 2001 and has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance, corporate
governance, capital management and strategic planning
matters.

Mr. Mak obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Finance from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in November 1994. He obtained a
membership of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) in April 2001, and was admitted a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) in November 2005. He also obtained Six Sigma
Green Belt from Six Sigma Institute in July 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas (BR¥ i), vH, aged 47,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director in
December 2019. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee of our Company.
Mr. Chan is currently a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of experience in the legal practice. He has
become a partner of Squire Patton Boggs, a law firm since
September 2005.

Mr. Chan was admitted to practise law as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in May 1999 and has since then become a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong. He was admitted to
practice law in the Australian Capital Territory and Victoria,
Australia in June 1997 and October 2000, respectively, and
was admitted to practice as a solicitor in England and Wales
in October 2007. Mr. Chan graduated from The University of
Melbourne, Australia, with a double degree of Bachelor of
Laws and Bachelor of Science in March 1997.

34 QP GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &BZERERAH

BYFHTES

PREZIE R E g2y 475 N_F
—NEFE+_AEZATARMOIBILIENR
TEZ -BNAARAFMEZESLRE
kEZZESG REZEgkEBRER
ZEEKE - RAER BEBHEEA -
RERBEBR T HERB20FK% - # 8
ZETERFNAKRADFRHEREMSER
FTa®A -

REER-—NANANFRAAERTEREH
XEMER YA E/BTEAEME
B WA AEFRAR-ZEEZT
FHADHERMNEHBELFOBIMNES
MNEEMBRERMER AR _FF
tFETAEREBELRBEBSNRER
B - BREER - NANEF=AEX
REMNBEAARNE IMBE2ELR
BEETEE( -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan served as a council member of The Law Society
of Hong Kong from December 2014 to May 2019. He has
also been serving as a council member of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology since April 2016.
In August 2018, he was appointed as a member to the
Legal Aid Services Council for a term of two years from 1
September 2018. He was also appointed as a lay assessor
to the Medical Council of Hong Kong. He was appointed
as chairman and has been re-designated as vice chairman
of eBRAM International Online Dispute Resolution Centre
Limited (formerly known as eBRAM Centre Limited), an
independent and not-for-profit organisation under Hong
Kong law as a company limited by guarantee since May
2020. Since November 2018, he has been serving as a
council member of Fu Hong Society, a non-governmental
organisation in Hong Kong dedicated to help the mentally
handicapped and those in need to live with dignity. He has
also been appointed as a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Medal of Honours from the
Government of Hong Kong in July 2016. Mr. Chan was
appointed as a representative of the 13th National People’s
Congress of the PRC in 2019.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Sa Sa International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 178), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, since September 2019, and Pangaea
Connectivity Technology Limited (Stock Code: 1473), also a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since January 2021.
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EENEREEERE

Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel (E832 ), B8s, mH, JP,
aged 63, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director in December 2019. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and risk management committee
of our Company. He has over 20 years of experience in the
engineering industry.

Since August 1993, he has been serving as the Managing
Director of Dunwell Group (including Dunwell Industrial
(Holdings) Ltd., Dunwell Technology (Holdings) Ltd., and
Dunwell Enviro-Tech International Ltd.). The business of its
group of companies covers collection and handling of waste
oil, wastewater and chemical waste, manufacturing and
installation of wastewater treatment and recycling system
and provision of technical advisory services.

Prof. Cheng serves as the President of the Hong Kong
Environmental Industry Association. Between July 2015 and
July 2017, he served as the chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, and was appointed as its Honorary
President since July 2017. He also currently serves as a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Committee
on Innovation, Technology and Re-industrialisation. He is
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Engineers and a
registered professional engineer of the Engineers Registration
Board.

Prof. Cheng was appointed by The University of Hong Kong
as Honorary Professor for the period from March 2016 to
February 2019 and as Adjunct Professor for the period from
March 2019 to February 2021 in the Department of Industrial
and Manufacturing Systems Engineering. He has also been
appointed by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as
Professor of Practice (Management) in the Department of
Management and Marketing. He was awarded the Medal of
Honours from the Government of Hong Kong in July 2007
and appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Government
of Hong Kong in July 2011. In 2017, he received the Bronze
Bauhinia Star (88s) from the Government of Hong Kong.
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Prof. Cheng obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Industrial Engineering from the California State Polytechnic
University, Pomona, the United States, in June 1981. In
February 2014, he received the Certificate of Congressional
Recognition for his induction into the Hall of Fame Class
of 2014 from the California State Polytechnic University,
Pomona, the United States.

Mr. NG Shung (R &), JP (Austraiia), aged 57, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director in December
2019. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and
a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee of our Company.
He is a fellow certified public accountant in Hong Kong and
has over 10 years of experience in professional accounting.
He has been serving as the chairman of the board of
directors of Racing World Publications Limited since 20083.

Mr. Ng obtained a degree of Bachelor of Economics from
Macquarie University, Australia, in April 1986, and a degree
of Master of Commerce in Organizational Behaviour from the
University of New South Wales, Australia, in April 1988. He
was admitted to the status of Certified Practising Accountant
of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
in September 1992, and was issued a Public Practice
Certificate by the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants in February 1993. He was admitted as a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
in March 1999. He was also admitted as a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Director in January 2018.
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Mr. Ng had served in the Executive Committee of the Hong
Kong Paralympic Committee & Sports Association For
The Physically Disabled from 2009 to 2015, and had been
the chairman of its public relations and marketing sub-
committee from 2010 to 2013. He had served as chairman
of the Public Relations and Fundraising Subcommittee and
an Elected Member of the General Committee of Riding For
The Disabled Association Limited from 2003 to 2010, and
the vice-chairman of the International Liaison Subcommittee
and vice-chairman of the Rehab Subcommittee from
2011 to 2013 and 2012 to 2015, respectively. He was re-
elected as chairman of the Public Relations and Fundraising
Subcommittee and an Elected Member of the General
Committee and served such roles from 2015 to 2016. He
had also served as the president of Hong Kong Racehorse
Owners Association from 2014 to 2015. He was appointed as
a Voting Member of the Hong Kong Jockey Club in 2016. He
was appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Government of
New South Wales, Australia, in 1992, and was awarded Chief
Executive’s Commendation for Community Service by the
Government of Hong Kong in 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUNG Wai Ming Kenny (G#1{&8), aged 60, joined
our Group in May 1994. Mr. Hung is the general manager
of Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited*, and is
responsible for the management and supervision of the
production and operation of Heshan factory. Mr. Hung
had been served as a director of Q P International Limited
between January 2018 and December 2020. Mr. Hung has
over 30 years of experience in production management.

Mr. HA Kevin Tu Hao (A8 %), aged 55, joined our Group
in November 2003. Mr. Ha is the director of technology
development of our Group, and is responsible for the
management and supervision of our technology department.
Mr. Ha had been served as a director of Q P International
Limited between January 2018 and December 2020. Mr.
Ha has over 20 years of experience in the printing and
publishing industry.

Mr. WOO Yu Sing Kevin (# 8 &), aged 57, joined our
Group in March 2018. Mr. Woo is the director of product
integrity of our Group, and is responsible for the management
and supervision of our product integrity department to
safeguard the product integrity and safety, quality system and
assurance, and compliance. Mr. Woo had been served as a
director of DPI Laboratory Services Limited between March
2018 and December 2020. Mr. Woo has over 35 years of
experience in the quality system, quality control and assurance
management in the manufacturing industry, as well as the
laboratory management.

Mr. CHU Chong Kei Elvis (k& &), aged 57, joined our
Group in November 2008. Mr. Chu is the director of quality
assurance and compliance of our Group, and is responsible
for the management and supervision of our quality assurance
and compliance department. Mr. Chu had been served as
a director of Q P International Limited between January
2018 and December 2020. Mr. Chu has over 25 years of
experience in the quality control and assurance management
in the manufacturing industry.
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Mr. CHEUNG Chun Man (3& & ), aged 48, joined our
Group in October 2012. Mr. Cheung is the IT director of our
Group, and is responsible for management and supervision
of our IT department. Mr. Cheung has over 20 years of
experience in the information and technology. Mr. Cheung
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Mathematics from the
University of Waterloo in Canada in May 1997.

Dr. YUEN Wai Hung (=& #), Ph.D. (Chem), MRSC, CChem,
CSci, aged 53, joined our Group in April 2011 till January
2020 and rejoined us in May 2020, Dr. Yuen is the senior
research and application manager of our Group, and is
responsible for the management and supervision of our
research and application activities. Dr. Yuen had been
served as a director of DPI Laboratory Services Limited
between June 2012 and January 2020. Dr. Yuen has over
20 years of chemistry research experience and industrial
applications, and provides scientific and technological advice
to internal stakeholders and clients. Dr. Yuen obtained a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) from the University
of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology (UMIST)
and the Victoria University of Manchester in 1997. He has
been awarded the status of Member (MRSC) and Chartered
Chemist (CChem) by the Royal Society of Chemistry in
1994 and recognized as a Chartered Scientist (CSci) b
the Science Council in 2004. He is a member of China
Association of Inventions (CAl) and serving as Technical
Committees Member of ASTM International since 2011.
Dr. Yuen is currently the inventors of four China Invention
Patents and one China utility model patent. He had been
appointed as lecturer and Honorary Assistant Professor in
the Department of Chemistry by different universities in Hong
Kong.
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Mr. HUI Chun Yip David (578 %), aged 42, joined our
Group in November 2009. Mr. Hui is the engineering director
of our Group, and is responsible for the management and
supervision of our engineering department. Mr. Hui had been
served as a director of Q P International Limited between
January 2018 and December 2020. Mr. Hui has over 19 years
of experience in the engineering area of the manufacturing
industry. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Engineering
in Manufacturing Informatics and Systems Engineering from
the City University of Hong Kong in November 2006 and a
degree of Master of Engineering in Engineering Management
from the Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016.
Mr. Hui was certified as a Registered Lean Specialist (Life
Type Registration) in October 2014 and a registered Lean
Sigma Black Belt in March 2015 by the Six Sigma Institute of
Hong Kong. In September 2015, he obtained a certificate of
certified Six Sigma Black Belt from the China Association for
Quality. He completed the Industry 4.0 Program Facilitator
Training in June 2017 and was awarded a certificate of
completion from the Fraunhofer Institutes of Production
Technology and the Hong Kong Productivity Council.

Mr. WONG Hung Pan (ZE3#), aged 35, joined our Group
in March 2017. Mr. Wong is the financial controller of our
Group and the company secretary of our Company, and
is responsible for financial matters, corporate governance,
capital management, company secretarial matters and
strategic planning. Mr. Wong has over 13 years of experience
in audit and assurance, financial management, and corporate
governance with several international accounting firms
and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong obtained
a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and Finance
from the University of Exeter, the United Kingdom in July
2007 and further obtained a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 2019. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Chartered Governance Institute.

*

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these companies are in Chinese.
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CORPORATE | {d¥E a4
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the BEFE@MAMBERBZTEARFTHE _Z
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended 31 —ZF+-A=+—HIIFERNTEER -
December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER

The Board is committed to high level of corporate ZBEEEHKEZSKFENLEER N
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, RERE#ZF IR0 XEE T H
enhance corporate value, formulate its business XBERBEMEE ViReHEFHE LM
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and HF o XABIERMIEZFTE S EM AR A
accountability. The Company has adopted the principles and ((EHR A DK+ TR EH 2 EE A
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG <FRI([%EARH ) ARERSFRNES
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the {EAEKRXEHEEATH -

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.
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Since 16 January 2020 (the “Listing Date”) and up to 31
December 2020, the Company has applied and complied
with the CG Code in each case as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except for the deviation from the CG Code
of code provision A.2.1. Under code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established
and set out in writing. Mr. Cheng Wan Wai currently holds
both positions of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company, being responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved by members of the Board
from time to time. Mr. Cheng has been the key leadership
figure of the Group who has been primarily involved in the
formulation of business strategies and, more importantly,
the determination of the overall direction of the Group since
1985. The Board considers that having Mr. Cheng acting as
both our chairman and chief executive officer provides strong
and consistent leadership to our Group and facilitate the
efficient execution of our business strategies. Also, the Board
considers there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board, such as major
issues affecting the operations of the Company are made in
consultation with experienced and high caliber Directors in
regular Board meetings, the delegation of authorities to the
management and the supervision of the management by the
members of the Board and the relevant Board committees.
Having considered the factors mentioned above, the Board
considers Mr. Cheng is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the
interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.
The Board will continue to review and consider segregating
the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer at an
appropriate time, taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.
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ERERME

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard indicated by the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code adopted by the
Company since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles and Responsibilities

The Company is headed by an effective Board which
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company. The Board directly and indirectly
through its committees, leads and provides direction to the
management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation by the management. The Board monitors the
operating and financial performance of the Group, reviews
the internal control policies of the Group, and ensures that
effective governance and sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place. The Board operates
under defined terms of reference which set out matters
specifically reserved for its decision. The terms of reference
are available on the website of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company, and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time performing them.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company. The Directors shall disclose to the Company
details of other offices held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of
six executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, whose biographical information set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. The composition of the
Board is as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman)
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
Ms. HUI Li Kwan

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel
Mr. NG Shung

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. The independent
non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.
The independent non-executive Directors will also be able to
provide an impartial, external opinion to protect the interests
of our public Shareholders.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
Records

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. Notices of not less than fourteen days
will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for regular board meetings.

During FY2020, four Board meetings was held at regular
interval, at which the Directors approved, among other
things, (i) the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, (i) the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and (iii) the distribution of dividends as
well as discussed the overall strategy, business progress,
operation updates, and quarterly results.

The attendance records of each director at the Board, Board
Committee meetings and annual general meeting (“AGM”)
during the financial year are set out in the table below:

EXCERRESHELRE

EFRSFELARNDATHEE - K
WEFE- R REEFEEHADK

ZHEFHHIAEREMETFBAFIR
BmsE -fETHESTSCEBHLY
FLORTIORHBAN UFEE2EEES
HedtFITEEBENWATHESTE @ H

@Az

R-E_EFUREE NAEZSE
ZEHRT O REg&E L %$ HE O (E
FEE(AEEHE-ZE—NEF+=A
E+—E¢¢EW¢E%%‘W@i_7
:ﬁiﬁﬂz+5¢ﬁMHm¢%%ﬁ
KR EDIk Wl wmBERBER - £
i %@%%ﬁ’%iﬁ%)&%&%%ﬁ °
EEENRURTFEALFEEE S
eZEeERARRTEAFAE(RRE
FRGHNTHIANRTX:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

A /8

Risk

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination Management

Name of Directors Committee Committee  Committee ~ Committee AGM

ER

ENZ8e FWzag
Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman) 414 - - - - 11
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth Shik 4/ - - - - 1h
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny 1 4/ - - - - 17
Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas REERE 44 - - - - 1A
Ms. HUI Li Kwan FHERT 44 - - - - 11
Mr. MAK Chin Pang REEE 44 - 1 11 20 1/
Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas BEBLL 4/4 22 1 1 22 0
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel PNEAK 44 22 11 1 22 11
Mr. NG Shung A%k 44 212 11 " 212 "
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held B EEEEE I ETHFEBF I IEH

a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the financial
year.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors have signed
a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 16 January 2020. Such appointment
may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
letters of appointment, including by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month’s advance written notice
of termination.

The independent non-executive Directors have brought in a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experience
and independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in the Board meetings and serving on various
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors
will continue to make various contributions to the Company.

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmations, the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent during
the Reporting Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement
or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in
the Articles.
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At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the
power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director
to the existing Board subject to any maximum number of
Directors, if any, as may be determined by the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in general meeting.
Any Director so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first AGM of the
Company after his appointment and be eligible for re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
AGM.

At each AGM, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of
Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third shall be the number of retiring
Directors. The Directors to retire in each year shall be those
who have been in office longest since their last re-election or
appointment but, as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected has been lodged at
the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence
no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and end no later than seven days
before the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be lodged must be at least seven days.
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Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Directors are encouraged
to participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be
arranged and reading materials on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate.

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given the training
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate
governance and regulatory updates and relevant reading
materials including compliance manual/legal and regulatory
updates/seminar handouts have been provided to the
Directors for their reference and studying.

During the financial year, our legal adviser has provided
an online training and relevant materials to all Directors on
continuous professional development for directors.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the current Board #HEAXAFEREBH BIXEEEKE
members have participated in the following training B2 TN NEIEE
programs:

Types of training
EAER
Reading materials
relating to general
Attending business, regulatory

online training organised  updates on listing rules
Name of Directors by our legal adviser and board practices
HRER-REH-
SMERMHEERERS IHRARESEEAN

ERmE L RHEEER

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. GHENG Wan Wai (Chairmar) OREXE(ZE) / /

Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth BEBELE / /

Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny BRnL T / v/

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas REERE / /

Ms. HUI Li Kwan HEFE / v/

Mr. MAK Chin Pang ERELE / /

Independent non-executive Directors  BIFHTES

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas RE&LE / v/

Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel BYBHE / /

Mr. NG Shung REEE / v/
BOARD COMMITTEES EEXZETE
The Board has established four committees, namely, the ZEF& 2K I E BLZEw BIEZELE
audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination & ¥ MZE® REEZZESNEABRTE
committee and risk management committee, for overseeing EZE® ﬁM*Z’»‘&T?ﬁ“E’J’HEﬁ

particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board AR TFﬁEi%*%iﬁEaTﬂ)@%EHﬁk
committees of the Company are established with specific ##HE  H FEHARSZF R LKBE
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their E=EFZE@HBEHE T ZNA QA4
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board U& MEEAZFrAUL > WRAIEERKER R E
Committees are posted on the Company’s website and the [ °

Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders

upon request.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. NG Shung, Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas and
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, and is chaired by Mr. NG
Shung who has appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to (i) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor; (i)
review the financial statements of the Group and monitoring
the integrity of such financial statements; (iii) oversee the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and (iv) oversee and manage the
relationship with external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to (i) review the audited annual
results and annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019; (ii) review the unaudited interim results and interim
report for the six-month ended 30 June 2020; (iii) review
the remuneration, terms of engagement, the relationship,
and independence of the Group’s external auditor; and
(iv) monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function
by reviewing the internal audit programme and the major
investigation findings. The Audit Committee also met the
external auditor once without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee considered that
the relevant financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with the applicable accounting principles and
requirements of the Stock Exchange and disclosures have
been fully made.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Hiu
Fung Nicholas, Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel and Mr. NG
Shung and one executive Director, namely Mr. MAK Chin
Pang, and is chaired by Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management
of our Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to (i) review the remuneration
policy of the Group; (i) assess the performance of executive
Directors with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives; (iii) review the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Group;
and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on respective
remuneration packages.

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors
and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. The range of remuneration of the senior
management are as follows:

Range of Remuneration

¥ E

FMEES
ApRlHMEZEe((FMERESG)BE=
FBIUFATEETRERLL - BXR
BERREAENR—EBRTEEER
BEoet - PRERIBSEAEETE -

RIEBRELE FHZEENTERE
SRIMBEERNASEEERERE
BE 2 BB JEAL N H B 2 15

Eo
A °

REBE-_Z-_ZTF+-A=1+—BILFE -
FWMZEEeRTT—XRez  NOEHAK
EENFHEE: (20X ERR
EFERTESENRE: (I BERAEE
BERRITEERSREEENTINEE
RivvitB@BFHETERESTZRLES -

BAARREEREEZESHALEHMH
MHBRERBE T _TFt _A=1—
BLEFESAVBHRRME - s MEE
BrommMeEEmT :

Number

of Senior
Management
EREEEAY

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

=% 7T 1,000,000 7T
1,000,001;% 7T £1,500,00078 7T
1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000 7T 2
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, Mr.
CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas and Mr. NG Shung and one
executive Director, namely MAK Chin Pang, and is chaired by
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our
Board on the appointment and removal of our Directors. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
and maintaining diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Pursuant to Director nomination policy of the Group, the
Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
selection criteria, procedures and process for nomination of
Directors:

() The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
factors when nominating potential candidates for the
appointment and reappointment of Directors:

° whether the individual’s educational background
and qualification, skills and experience are relevant
to the Company’s business model and specific
needs;

° the individual’s character and reputation for
integrity;

o whether the individual would be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;
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° In respect of appointment and reappointment of
independent non-executive Directors, to consider
the independence of the individual with reference
to the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules;

° how the individual would be able to contribute to
the diversity of the Board with reference to the
factors set out in the Board diversity policy of the
Company from time to time in force; and

o Board succession planning considerations.

(i)  The Board or the Nomination Committee shall deploy
such channel(s) for identifying suitable director
candidates as it deems appropriate, including
but not limited to referrals from existing Directors,
Shareholders, advisers and third party agency firms and
advertisements.

(il The Nomination Committee shall adopt such process as
it deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
potential candidates, such as interviews, background
checks and third party reference checks, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals to be nominated for directorships based
on the selection criteria set out in paragraph (i) above.

(iv) The ultimate responsibility for the selection and
appointment of Directors shall rest with the entire
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Nomination
Committee held one meeting to (i) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (i) make recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors; (iii) assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) review its own performance, constitution and term
of reference and recommend any changes if considers
necessary to the Board for approval.
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Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Company (“Risk
Management Committee”) comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung
Nicholas, Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel and Mr. NG Shung
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Mak Chin Pang, and
is chaired by Mr. Mak Chin Pang.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to, the
following: (i) reviewing the risk management system of the
Group and ensure that the management has performed its
duties to establish an effective risk management system;
(i) formulating risk policies and standards; (iii) reviewing the
material risk exposures of the Group; (iv) reviewing annually
the changes in nature and extent of significant risks; (v)
reviewing annually the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management systems; (vi)
reviewing the Directors’ decisions on entering into hedge
arrangements; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of the hedge
policy; and (viii) providing recommendations to the Board
on improving the hedge policy, where appropriate and if
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Risk
Management Committee held two meetings to monitor the
risk management and internal control system by reviewing
major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and response from management to these
findings.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including, strategies and management planning, human
resources, administration, training, business development,
sales, material development, procurement, accounting and
corporate finance, engineering, information technology and
legal compliance. We have three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing
one third of the members of our Board. Taking into account
our existing business model and specific needs as well as
the different background of our directors, the composition of
our Board satisfies our Board diversity policy.
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Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to
maintain the high standard of corporate governance, we have
adopted the Board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. It sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of our Board. Pursuant
to the Board diversity policy, we seek to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
when selecting the candidates to our Board, including but
not limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience,
knowledge, cultural, education background, ethnicity and
length of service. The ultimate decision of the appointment
will be based on merit and the contribution which the
selected candidates will bring to our Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of our Board members. After the Listing, our
Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and
we will disclose in our corporate governance report about
the implementation of the Board diversity policy on an annual
basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

In order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the
Company has adopted a series of internal control policies,
procedures and programmes designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective
and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board
reviews the risk management and internal controls annually.
Highlights of the Company’s internal control system include
the following:

Code of conduct — Our code of conduct explicitly communicates
to each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-
making and our ground rules for behavior.

Internal audit — Our Group has its own internal audit team
which regularly monitors key controls and procedures in
order to assure our management and the Board of Directors
that the internal control system is functioning as intended.
The internal audit department carries out an annual risk
assessment on each identified audit area and revised an
annual audit plan according to the nature of business and
risk exposures. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed by
the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the internal audit department conducts other review
and investigation work as may be required. The internal audit
department is also responsible for following up corrective
actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are maintained.
The Audit Committee receives summary reports from the
internal audit department periodically while the results of
internal audit reviews and responses to the recommended
corrective actions are also reported to the executive
Directors.
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Compliance with Listing Rules — QOur various policies aim
to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, including but
not limited to aspects related to corporate governance,
connected transactions and securities transactions by the
Directors.

Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the
recurrence of non-compliance incidents — The Company
also adopted a number of enhanced internal control
procedures to prevent the recurrence of non-compliance
incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and
measures to identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from
our operations. Our risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with our corporate
strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks
associated with its function, maintaining a comprehensive
risk register,
effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans and reporting
the status of risk management. Our Risk Management
Committee, Audit Committee and ultimately the Board
supervise the implementation of our risk management
policy at the corporate level by bringing together each
operating department, such as quality control, research and
development and sales, to collaborate on risk issues among
different functions.

preparing risk mitigation plans, measuring
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The Board is accountable for the overall responsibility in
respect of monitoring the implementation of internal control
and risk management procedures and other measures in the
Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control
system aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not
being able to achieve the business objective. Moreover, only
reasonable but not absolute guarantee is made for materially
untrue statement or loss. Such annual review was done with
a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting functions
are adequate. In this respect, the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee communicated any material
issues to the Board.

The Board, through the Risk Management Committee and
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of both design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, which covered
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance control for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Directors satisfied and confirmed that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is
efficiently and consistently made. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
disclosure of inside information in a balanced, adequate and
effective way.

The Group sets out written guidelines and procedures to the
employees or directors of the Group, while the employees or
directors of the Group undertake to ensure inside information
of the Group is not to be disseminated to the public unless
the Board decides such information is regarded as inside
information and requires disclosure in accordance with
the Listing Rules and the Securities and Future Ordinance.
Measures are in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information and to ensure that its recipients recognise their
obligations to maintain its confidentiality. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised
to respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues. The
written guidelines and procedures will be subject to be
reviewed by the Company as and when it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million
and approximately HK$0.5 million respectively, details of
which are set out below:

Service Category

AR 7% %8 Bl
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Fees Paid/
Payable

B ENEA
HK$’000
THET

Audit Services Bz R 1,850
Non-audit services (mainly represented interim EEZRF(EBRELF KE
review and taxation services provided by TR E AT R HEEE AR
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliates) e EE R R RS) 513
Total Bt 2,363

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Hung Pan has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
He is an employee of the Group and have day-to-day
knowledge of the issuer’s affairs. His biography is set out in
the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary on corporate governance and
Board process. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company Secretary had attended not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels. To safeguard Shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolution should be proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association (the
“Articles”), the Board may whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”). EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

A Shareholder shall make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Flat J, 21/F, Kings
Wing Plaza 2, No. 1 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the Shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put forward enquiries to the
Board at general meeting or send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  Flat J, 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2, No. 1 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board/Company
Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director of the
Company

The Company adopts a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company. The following procedures are
subject to the Articles, the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and applicable legislation and regulation:

° If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote
at the general meeting convened to deal with the
appointment or election of Director(s), wishes to
propose a person (other than himself/herself) for
election as a Director at that meeting, he/she may
lodge a written notice with the Company Secretary at
Flat J, 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2, 1 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

° In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders
of that proposal, the written notice must state (i) his/
her intention to propose such person for election as
a Director, and (ii) the biographical details of such
nominated candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules for publication by the Company
and be signed by the Shareholder concerned and the
person who has been proposed indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

o The period for lodgement of the above notice shall
be a seven-day (7) period commencing on a day
after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election of Director(s).
If the Directors should determine and notify the
Shareholders of a different period for lodgement of
the above notice, such period shall in any event be a
period of not less than seven (7) days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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° Upon receipt of the above notice from a Shareholder
which is received after publication of the notice of
general meeting, the Company shall, prior to the
general meeting, publish an announcement or issue
a supplementary circular disclosing the particulars of
the proposed Director pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above
procedures may write to the Company Secretary at Flat J,
21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2, 1 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.gpp.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of
the Company to the Shareholders, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform Shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular,
through AGM and other general meetings. At the AGM,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

In preparation for the Listing, the Company has adopted
the Articles pursuant to a special resolution passed by
the Shareholders on 20 December 2019. Since then, the
Company has not made any changes to the Articles. An
up to date version of the Articles is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, there is no significant change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends. Our Directors may recommend a payment
of dividends after taking into account, among others,
our operations and earnings, capital requirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions,
capital expenditure and future development requirements,
Shareholders’ interests and other factors which they may
deem relevant at such time. We expect to pay a dividend in
respect of each financial year of not less than 30% of our
distributable profits each year. The payment and amounts of
dividends, if any, depend on our results of operations, cash
flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions
on the dividends paid by us, future prospects and other
factors which we consider relevant. Holders of our Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according
to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
shares. The declaration, payment and amount of dividends
will be subject to our discretion. The proposed payment of
dividends is also subject to the absolute discretion of the
Board and any declaration of final dividend for the year will
be subject to the approval of our Shareholders. The Board
will review the dividend policy on an annual basis.

Any distributable profits that are not distributed in any
given year will be retained and available for distribution in
subsequent years. To the extent profits are distributed as
dividends, such portion of profits will not be available to be
reinvested in our operations.
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REPORT OF THE

The Board herein presents their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 152.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final
dividend at the rate of HK12.0 cents per share amounting
to approximately HK$63.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which is expected to be paid on or around
Thursday, 3 June 2021 to all persons registered as holders of
shares of the Company on Thursday, 27 May 2021, subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a
discussion on the prospect of the Group’s future business
development, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

and

The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Financial

Highlights” and “Financial Summary” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has
endeavoured to strictly comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. The Company
recognises the importance of environmental protection.
The Company is committed to providing an eco-friendly
energy environment for our staff and has developed energy
conservation and carbon reduction policy so as to minimise
negative environmental impacts. The details are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and vendors,
and other stakeholders (together “Stakeholders”) are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to maintaining a good relationship with our
Stakeholders so as to ensure our continuing development.

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable
assets of the Company. The Group is providing a fair and
harmonious workplace where individuals with diverse
cultural backgrounds are treated equally. The Group offer
a reasonable remuneration package and fair opportunities
for career advancement based on employees’ performance.
The Group also provides our staff with different trainings,
including on-the-job training and training courses provided
by professional organisations in order to enhance our staff’s
career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including
subcontractors) are equally important in business operation
and development. We proactively communicate with
our vendors to ensure they are committed to delivering
high-quality and sustainable output.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for each of the last five financial years is set out in the
section headed “Financial Summary” of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$551,000 (2019: HK$664,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group,
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders unless otherwise as required
by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Our Company may pay dividends out of share premium,
retained earnings and other reserves. As at 31 December
2020, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$142.8 million.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
65.8% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 24.7%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 38.6% of the total purchases for the year
and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 16.6%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, subcontracting
fees charged by the Group’s five largest subcontractors
account for approximately 85.1% of the total subcontracting
fees for the year and the subcontracting fee charged by
our largest subcontractor included therein amounted to
approximately 25.4%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers, suppliers and
subcontractors during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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BANK BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowing of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as
Shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 13 May 2021 to Tuesday, 18 May 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 May 2021, being the last share
registration date.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend (subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to
Thursday, 27 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company are required
to lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 May 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Period
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman)
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
Ms. HUI Li Kwan

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas, mH
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, B8S, MH, JP
Mr. NG Shung, JpP (Australia)

In accordance with Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles, Mr.
YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth, Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny, and
Ms. HUI Li Kwan shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Company
has received annual confirmations of independence from
all independent non-executive Directors, and still considers
them to be independent as at the date of this annual report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors of the Company
are set out in section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing
enterprise wide risk is a priority of the Company. The
Company convinced that corporate governance and
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (the “D&O
Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has
arranged appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
Directors and senior management arising out from corporate
activities. The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed
annually.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years subject to the provision of retirement
and rotation of directors under the Articles. Either party has
the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not
less than three months’ written notice to other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of three years at an annual remuneration
set out in their appointment letters subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement
by giving not less than one month’s written notice to other

party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM have entered into service contract with
the Company which are not determined by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 9 and note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or a connected entity of a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year, nor were there any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries for the year. There were also no contracts of
significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group had a total of 2,333 (31 December 2019: 2,554)
full time employees as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s
employee benefit expenses mainly included salaries, over
time payments and discretionary bonuses, other staff
benefits and contributions to retirement schemes. For
FY2020, the total staff costs of the Group (including the
Directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$300.0
million (FY2019: approximately HK$320.4 million).

The remuneration policy of the Company is reviewed
regularly, making reference primarily to the market
conditions and performance of the Company and individual
staff members (including the Directors). Remuneration
packages include, as the case may be, basic salary,
Director’'s remuneration, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of
our Group and individual performance. During the financial
year, the remuneration policy and remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company, with the
consideration given in regard to experience, duties and
responsibilities, performance and achievement of the
individuals, with reference to the market condition in relation
to the Group’s performance and profitability.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own dishonesty,
wilful default or fraud.

During FY2020, the Company has taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and/or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of our Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”) which
will be required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in that section,
or which will be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of

the Company

Name of Directors and
chief executives

ESERFTETHRAEEE
Mr. CHENG Wan Wai
BRERLE
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
1585 8 %k
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny
B4 £+
Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
RERBERE

Ms. HUI Li Kwan
A XL

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

EREBTE

Capacity/
nature of interest

B HENEHE

Interest in a controlled
corporationote 2

RESEEE R

Interest in a controlled
corporation('vofe 2

EESEEER

Interest in a controlled
corporationiete 3

A A B 5

Interest in a controlled
corporationote 4

42 ) [ O 25 e

Interest of spouseore 9

B {8 4

Interest in a controlled
corporation®oete 6

EESEEE R

(i)

Number of
Underlying
Shares held

(Note 1)

KFEMEB
Bt BB

(B aE1)

310,353,954 (L)

310,353,954 (L)

64,706,046 (L)

19,950,000 (L)

310,353,954 (L)

3,990,000 (L)

R

Percentage of
shareholding

FRED

58.34%

58.34%

12.16%

3.75%

58.34%

0.75%
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Notes:

The Letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

The shares are held by Good Elite Holdings Limited (“Good Elite”),
the entire issued share capital of which is owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHENG Wan Wai and as to 50% by Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth.

The shares are held by Cypress Spurge Holdings Limited (“Cypress
Spurge”), the entire issued share capital of which is wholly-owned by
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny.

The shares are held by Dawn Gain Investment Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Wang Tao
Thomas.

Under the SFO, Mr. CHENG Wan Wai is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares held by Good Elite. Ms. HUI Li Kwan is
the spouse of Mr. CHENG Wan Wai. Under the SFO, Ms. HUI Li Kwan
is deemed to be interested in all our Shares in which Mr. CHENG Wan
Wai is interested.

The shares are held by Welcome Mark Investment Limited, the entire
issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr. MAK Chin Pang.
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(ii) Long position in the ordinary shares of (i) HBELIEZERNER
associated corporations

Number of
Underlying
Shares
Name of Directors and Name of associate Capacity/nature held Percentage of
chief executives corporations of interest Wi ) shareholding
FEWRH
EER K& &EE
FTETHAEBER HELE AR B REEHE W) BERAESL
Mr. CHENG Wan Wai Good Elite Beneficial owner 1) 50%
EIRELE EnEAA
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth Good Elite Beneficial owner 1) 50%
SRR kA EnEAA
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny Cypress Spurge Beneficial owner 1) 100%
B+ ExnEAA
Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas Dawn Gain Investment Beneficial owner 1) 100%
Limited
R B EE EnlEAA
Ms. HUI Li Kwan Good Elite Interest of spouse 1) 50%
AFIE R foBER
Mr. MAK Chin Pang Welcome Mark Beneficial owner 1) 100%
Investment Limited
ERELE EnEBA
Notes: B et -

1, The Letter “l” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part 1. BEXNFEHUEZBATRZERMTANGTE
XV of the SFO) in such Shares. (EHRREBHZRIMEHRIEXVER)
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at
31 December 2020.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures

None of the Directors or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had been granted any right to subscribe for
the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, or had exercised any such right
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates
had any interest in a business which competed or was likely
to compete with the business of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) or corporations who had
interests or short positions of in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to in that section, or which will be required, to be notified to
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Name of
substantial Shareholders or
other persons Nature of interest
FTERRREMALTER EEME
Ms. WONG Lai Ying Interest of spouse/’Vm@ 2
mEBELLT A (8 #E | (2
Good Elite Beneficial owneriNote 3)
En A AW

Cypress Spurge Beneficial ownervote 4

B A
Notes:

1. The Letter “l” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Good Elite. Ms.
WONG Lai Ying is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth.
Under the SFO, Ms. WONG Lai Ying is deemed to be interested in all
our Shares in which Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is interested.

3. Good Elite is beneficially owned equally by Mr. CHENG Wan Wai and
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth. Each of Mr. CHENG Wan Wai and Mr.
YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares that are held by Good Elite under the SFO.

4. Cypress Spurge is beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. LIU Shuk Yu
Sanny. Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares that are held by Cypress Spurge under the
SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
according to the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, there was no
person who had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 December 2019, the Company adopted the Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
eligible persons for their contributions to the Group. The
terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
Eligible Persons (as set out in below) (i) to optimise their
future contributions to our Group; (ii) to reward them for their
past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth and success of our
Group.
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Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director) of any member of our Group, any executive director
of, manager of, or other employee holding an executive,
managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member
of our Group (an “Employee”), any proposed Employee,
any full-time or part-time Employee, or a person for the
time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any
member of our Group (an “Executive”), a consultant,
business or sole venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of our Group, a
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group,
or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any
of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and
each an “Eligible Person”).

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.0 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within the period specified in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the option. Such remittance shall in
no circumstances be refundable. Once such acceptable is
made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted and
to have taken effect from the offer date.
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Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option
scheme of our Company) shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares representing 53,200,000 Shares in issue
immediately after completion of the Global Offering and as
at the Listing Date (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), provided
that our Company may at any time as our Board may think
fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the maximum number
of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under
any other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company)
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other post-IPO share
option scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled and
lapsed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme or any other post-IPO share option
scheme or exercised options under the said schemes of our
Company) shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the limit as refreshed. Our Company shall issue a circular
containing the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d)
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders. In addition, our Company may
seek separate approval from the Shareholders in general
meeting for granting options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the options in excess of the Scheme
Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Persons
specified by our Company before such approval is sought
and for whom specific approval is obtained. Our Company
shall issue a circular to the Shareholders containing the
information required under Rule 17.03(3) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the maximum
number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO
share option scheme of our Company) shall not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any one Eligible
Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. Where any further grant of options
to such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
which may be granted to such Eligible Person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in
issue, such further grant shall be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates or close associates (as the case may be)
abstaining from voting. The applicable requirements of Rule
17.03(4) of the Listing Rules shall be complied with.

The maximum numbers set out in this paragraph shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with the lapse of
options but shall not in any event exceed the limits imposed
by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Grant of options to core connected persons

Insofar as and for so long as the Listing Rules require, where
any offer of an option is proposed to be made to a Director,
chief executive of our Company or Substantial Shareholder
or any of their respective associates, such offer must first
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who
is or whose associate is the Grantee to whom the option
is proposed to be granted). Insofar and for so long as the
Listing Rules so require, no option may be granted to any
Substantial Shareholder or Independent Non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates which would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted or to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other share
option scheme of our Company) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of board meeting for proposing
such further grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the share capital of our Company in issue; or (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares
at the date of the board meeting for proposing such further
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, unless such further grant
is approved by the Shareholders in general meeting. Before
seeking such approval, our Company shall issue a circular
containing such information as required by the Listing Rules
to the Shareholders. At such general meeting, the grant
of options to the Substantial Shareholder or independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates
shall, for so long and insofar as the Listing Rules so required,
be approved by the Shareholders by way of poll with the
Grantee, his associates and all core connected persons of
our Company abstaining from voting, except that any such
person may vote against such resolution provided that he
has informed our Company of his intention to do so and
such intention has been stated in the relevant circular to the
Shareholders.
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Subscription price of the Shares

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of the grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall not
be less than whichever is the highest of:

() the nominal value of a Share;

(i)  the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer
date. The subscription price shall also be subject to
adjustment in accordance with the reorganization of
capital structure.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised, and the period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board
in its absolute decision. However, no offer shall be capable
of or remain open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.

Duration

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.
However, the Shareholders may by a resolution in general
meeting at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme.
Upon expiry or termination of the Share Option Scheme,
no further options shall be offered but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect. All options granted before such expiry
or termination (as the case may be) and not then exercised
shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
In respect of any option granted, the Board may in its
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discretion determine the exercise periods, provided that such
period shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
commencement date of such report.

Option Granted

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since 20 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the Board
confirms that the Company has maintained the public float
as required by the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020
prior to the issue of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of
the Shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction
related to the rental payment to a related party, which
constituted a de minimis connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, was fully exempt from the
requirements of reporting, annual review, announcement,
approval of independent shareholders and other relevant
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Other than the transaction mentioned above, the
Directors confirm that the related parties transactions did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising Mr. NG Shung as chairman
as well as Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas and Prof. CHENG
Man Chung Daniel as members, has reviewed, together
with the participation of the management, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after 31 December 2020
and up to date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board has taken
the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution for
their re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

There is no change of independent auditor in any of the
preceding three years.

By order of the Board
CHENG Wan Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Q P Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
publish the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group” or “We”). This
ESG Report summarises our policies, approaches and
practices towards ESG management to its stakeholders
and enabling them to have a better understanding
about the progress and performance of the Group’s
ESG development.

Scope of Report

This ESG Report covers the Group’s business in paper
product manufacturing and printing of its headquarter in
Hong Kong and two key production plants at Dongguan
and Heshan in Guangdong Province of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) for the year ended
on 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period” or
“FY2020”). The Company will continue to review the
scope of reporting regularly according to our materiality
principles and the key stakeholders’ opinions, and will
extend the scope in future if necessary.
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Reporting Standard

This Report has been prepared in accordance with
the “comply or explain” provisions as well as part of
the “recommended disclosures” of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”). The Board
has acknowledged its responsibility to oversee the
Group’s sustainable development and review the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of this report.

Contact and Feedback

The Group values your feedback on this Report and
our ESG performance. If you have any comments or
suggestions, please feel free to contact us via email at
investorrelations@qgpp.com.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that it is of paramount importance
to achieve sustainable development of its business and
environmental protection in its operations. The Group
maintains a close tie with its stakeholders, including
governmental/regulatory organisations, shareholders/
investors, employees, customers, suppliers, community
partners, etc. and strives to balance their expectations
and concerns when assessing and determining our
ESG directions. The Group ensures that the relevant
risk management measures and internal control
systems are operating effectively. The following table
shows the management response to the stakeholders’
expectations and concerns:
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EXPECTATIONS AND

B LB REARS

STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
KO E MEEER EEEEE
Government/ Compliance in laws and > Uphold integrity and compliance in operations
regulatory regulations REBRRFBERER
organisations BFERRER > Establish comprehensive and effective internal
BT/ &% H 5 Fulfill tax obligation control system
BIIRBEME B 2HEA RN A EE RS
> Compliance with relevant laws, regulatory
requirements and industry standards
ETHBEE BEERERITERE
> Pay tax on time, and contribute to the society
BN REELS
Shareholders/ Return on investment > Management possesses relevant experience
investors % & | R and expertise to optimise the sustainability and
BRI EE Information profitability of the Group’s business
transparency EEEAAHBLRNEXNG  BRAEEE
BERBERE BRI &M K BT g
Corporate governance > Regular information dissemination by publications
system on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
TEERE Kong Limited (‘HKEX”) and the Company
REBBARIMERAR (BRI RARE]HE
I TE BB A
> Dedicated to business growth, risk management
and improvement in internal control
BAOREBE R - Bk E I8 A 5012 il g
Employees Labour rights > Set up contractual obligations to protect
8T BT employees’ rights and welfare
Career development HEEGHNREEURERERZEBAH
R > Encourage employees to participate in continuous
Compensation and education and professional training
welfare HEEELEBEXRE REEET
B K2 42 A > Establish a structural human resource evaluation
Health and workplace framework for staff development and promotion
safety BULABUEANBERIMGESR REBIZRK
BEETESMZE =
> Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration system
BURT aBNARFINGMER
> Enhance occupational health and workplace safety

level

RABERRERIESMZ 2K
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EXPECTATIONS AND
CONCERNS
MEEEXR

STAKEHOLDERS
B E

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
EEEEE

Customers High quality and safety Maintain a high standard of product quality
BP products RESERENEREE
BERLZEZER Provide customer service and product engineering
Timely delivery solutions to satisfy customers’ specific needs
ERRE RUEEFPRERERIBBAAR URRERP
Reasonable pricing NEEHZ
EReRE Formulate comprehensive quality assurance
Operational compliance process and recall procedures
BREE HEEEMNEERERENALREF
Ensure adequate production capacity and stable
operation for order fulfilment
BREMEERNRBENEEUNTKEE
Ensure the performance of contractual obligations
BRBITEHNEL
Improve efficiency and cost-effectiveness of
operation and production
HELEREENNER K AN
Ensure compliance with international standards
on quality, security, environment and social
responsibilities
BRETEE %2 RERMEEETENH
RIR A
Protect customers’ intellectual property rights
RER P S ERE
Suppliers > Stable demand Ensure the performance of proper contractual
HER FRBE obligations are in place

Good relationship with BRETHEGHNRL
the Company Maintain an effective supply chain management
EARBIRFRITFARE system

Corporate reputation
xR

RESMEEEEERA

Establish and maintain strong and long-term co-
operating relationship with good quality suppliers
HEeZHERREYMREREER BN S ERE
Ensure timely payment in accordance with
purchase contract

RIBRE SO BRRE MK
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EXPECTATIONS AND

STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
KO E MEEER EEEEE
Community > Environmental > Establish an effective and efficient system for
& protection disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
RIBRE BUAMERRRNEEREEEYRERSR
> Community contribution > Implement eco-friendly measures to reduce use of
= energy, water and paper
> Economic development ERRRERE  BRPDFERER  KEAER
KREERE > Perform periodic third-party environmental
assessments

ETEHNE=ARRAE

> Contribute to the community through donations to
registered charities
BEREIMESRERT BERLR

> Encourage employees to participate in charitable
activities and voluntary services
BEEIZNZESHRERRS

> Maintain a good and stable financial performance
and business growth
RERFIRENHBEENEBER
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I1l. MATERIALITY MATRIX

The Group has evaluated a number of environmental,
social and operating criteria and assessed their
significance for the Group and its stakeholders. This
assessment helps to ensure that the Group’s business
objectives and development direction are in line with
the stakeholders’ expectations and requirements. The
Group’s and stakeholders’ matters of concern are

—_

EEMER

AEBECEFEHEZHERERE Hahks
BIEE WHRHAEERERFN
EMEENE WEFHEDHAEE
BREGEFREBERDAENT AR
&R L R B o WA KB M
MEMBLNERG 2R NIATH
ERMEER:

presented in the following materiality matrix:

MATERIALITY MATRIX
ERMER

Promotion opportunities
4 Staff compensation and
welfare policies

¢ BRHE
B THBEEFIBR

High
=
Community involvement [
A .
¢
¢+
¢+
¢+
Importance to Stakeholders  Medium :
HESENEEM H :
¢+
¢
¢+
>
< Clean production
< Use of raw materials
o RBAE
> RAREEA
Low
i3

Hazardous wastes and sewage
Qccupational health and safety
Operational compliance
Product quality ty

Compliance of environmental
laws and regulations

Talent management
Anti-discrimination
Protecting human rights
Training and development
Preventive measures for child
and forced labour

Vendor management
BSPRBARAR
AT ER

AR

REANRE
ISR

BT RMAESTH
1R
HIEREE

Low Medium High
& + =]
Importance to the Group
HEAEENWERM
< Environmental ¢ Employee > Operation
o REAE ¢ BIFE > HEHE
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental Protection Policy
RRBE

Complying with all applicable environmental laws and regulations

>

BTABERNRRARERLER

Emphasising on energy saving and waste reduction

o8 5 60 B8 Rl E
Raising environmental awareness of our staff

ReEEIREERA

B LB REARS

M RERE

Adopting pollution prevention and mitigation measures to protect the environment

BRERB I KR 8805 2 48 1 AR i IR 3R
Increasing the internal recycling rate

1 = A EB Bl U A A &

Implementing efficient management method
ERSRNER A

Striving for continuous improvement

HAOBERE

Management of Emissions

The Group mainly manufactures and sells paper
products including tabletop games, greeting
cards, educational items and premium packaging.
We are fully aware of the exhaust air, wastewater,
noise and various wastes generated during the
production process and living that had brought
a certain impact on the environment. We believe
that our long-term business growth and success
are closely linked to our efforts in maintaining
environment sustainability and resources
protection. Hence, we are committed to controlling
our impact on the environment by various means,
including reducing emissions, utilizing resources
effectively as well as cultivating an environmentally
friendly culture in the workplace.

RN ER
AEEIERFTRER(BRE
R -BER HEHARLREE
FRIZHEHENHEE - RMAX
DEBEINEEBRRENATE
EHRER BK BEMER
BYRRETR-ENTE -
HFIRE RANKBEHE
ERRNERPEEFTREA
FEZRLAERRETENS
NEYIER - Bk RAED
REBBERET A EH RFAER
BORE BRERIHENR B
BN BB R IA K FE T AR 35 P 15
BRAERXE
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Our environmental management system (“EMS”) is
certified by international standard (ISO 14001:2015)
and implemented in various operations to work as
a foundation for developing further environmental
strategies with the concept of “Prevention and
Control”. Mitigation measures and working
guidelines are developed based on the significant
environmental aspects and risks identified by
the EMS, to provide guidance for employees to
follow during operations. In addition, the system
precisely clarifies each position’s environmental
responsibility to motivate all employees work
together in a hand-in-hand manner.

Management of Exhaust Air and Greenhouse
Gas Emissions

During the production processes of offset printing,
silk-screen printing, paper surface treatment, and
daily use of kitchens and vehicles, it generates
certain exhaust air including benzene, toluene,
xylene, volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) and
Inorganic gases such as heat exhaust gas.

96 QP GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EZERERAH
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As a manufacturer in the printing industry, we are EREIR TR ER - &M
obliged to comply with the Emission Standard of EXRBESTHBEACEDR 1T
Volatile Organic Compounds for Printing Industry BEUMEREEMBEIURE) -
of the PRC. In view of that, the Group is dedicated BEERE AEEHNIRBB
to minimising its air emissions generated during ?%HXﬁﬁW%ﬁ%i‘i?#E&%ﬁﬁ
the manufacturing processes and daily operations Fe IR P51 BE Y 4% 7 48 7

by adopting mitigation measures as stated in our BMAERERRE LA M%‘%ﬂ
internal air emission management procedure. BHPEENREHER - #HHER
Regarding the gas nature (i.e. organic or inorganic), B E R A # e EmE) - A
we have initiated two sets of emission control ERMMREZERRE -
measures.

Organic Gas (e.g. VOCs) Inorganic Gas (e.g. CO. SO: NO,)

EHRR mE R
(mERMEEHRLED) (==t - —|LR - AELD)

° Using gas collection hoods o Extracted by exhaust fan

e HARBURESETHE e FEBHERBEE

° Passing through UV photocatalysis ° Passing through dust filter before
facilities discharge

e  RBEINEERE o TEBEMATBIBIKREESS

o Purified by activated carbon adsorption o Purified by eco-friendly air conditiioners
device e FHARRZEFAETFIL

e (ERABEMERRKEEETEL

° Emitted at high altitude in accordance
with statutory regulations

e BRERESEBMN

° Measuring the emission level periodically

o EEVAIEHRUKYF
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We provide regular maintenance for the air
treatment equipment to ensure they operate
effectively at all time. To have a better monitoring
and control of the gas emitted, a real-time
monitoring system has also been installed at the
gas effluent for measuring significant parameters
of VOCs in Dongguan plant during the reporting
period. Apart from this, internal inspection is
conducted regularly to check the functionality
of the air treatment. Remedial actions will be
taken immediately if any defects are found.
Every year, we entrust qualified third parties to
conduct external inspection to ensure compliance
with relevant emission standards such as the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
PRC.

Our major air pollutants include nitrogen oxides,
sulfur oxides and particles. In the Reporting
Period, emission of major air pollutants was within
the permitted levels.

Type of pollutants

BPHEREREREETEH
MR URE-EBRERE -
5 3R A8 B R I AR I BT BE IR
MRt RARKRSHAER
IR ALKTERE
BERG NAEBEEEEHRL
EYMHNER28 - Ritz i
HAITRE BT ARt & AR
B =R B IEINRE o a0 WAL
R AP S AVAIEASI S P UET)
e BMBFZRAARNE=
TETIERE - AERTE
HEBERZEE (P EAR
HMBEARIZEBAR)

BANEIEZRSRYEREA
a1 - melmRENY -
RIMERA TERRITEY
MEERER A FFAIKFE -

FRYER
Nitrogen oxides Tonnes
RElw 148
Sulfur oxides Tonnes
k=) Mg
Particles Tonnes
FERLY) Mg

0.28

0.001

0.03

Climate change is the global concern which can
bring an impact to each business sector. We try to
reduce our carbon footprint as far as practicable.
In 2020, the total greenhouse gas emission
(“GHG”) was 20,902.17 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tonnes CO2e”). The major GHG
in our business came from the consumption of
Scope 2 Emission, which accounts for 20,565.72
tonnes CO2e or 98.4% of the total emission.
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Greenhouse Gases (GHG)
emission

BEREHEKE

Total GHG Emission
BEREHHES
Scope 1 Emission!

Tonnes COqe
Wi —aftlix g =
Tonnes COqe 336.45

20,902.17

SHE1BEHRE W — SRt EE
Scope 2 Emission? Tonnes COqe 20,565.72
SHE2H M E? W —EfIRES
Total GHG Emission Intensity Tonnes COze per HK$1 million 16.96
of revenue
RERBENEETE WE — SR tiRE S
BEEETWS

Compliance

During FY2020, we were not involved in any
confirmed violations related to emissions that had
significant impact on the Group.

Management of Wastewater

The Group’s plants and offices always comply
with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Water Pollution Prevention and Control”,
“Emission Limit of Water Pollutants” and other
applicable laws, regulations and standards. We
have established related internal policies and
procedures and set up various emission-reduction
measures in order to effectively control and
manage the wastewater discharges in production
plants, offices, staff dormitories and canteens.
Furthermore, we regularly conduct repair and
maintenance for the wastewater treatment facilities
and pipelines to ensure that they operate properly
to prevent leakage, and also to reduce water
resources wastage and secondary pollution to the
environment.

7 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by
the use of gasoline, diesel and refrigerant.

2 Scope 2 represents indirect GHG emissions generated
by the use of purchased electricity from local power
companies.

=
RZZEZZEFHHRFEAN - &K
I3 % K A ] B2 e p AR 8 B
HAEEENERTENCHE
REHREH -

BE K BE pL By B 18
AEBEEWMERBRAZT—HE
PR EA R R KT R
SRVEY  OKI5MBE R R E) &
Hhi@ A AR AR RIZE-
BZMHIETHBENORNISBER
Fr R & TR BE1E M - AR B
THEERAETR HAE -
ETEERRERREKEER -
AN AP B K B B AR i R
BEETTETHHER#E  ®
REFEEENFIEER  #
s PKERREREREE
X — k5 e

1 FET15 8 B EF )T - 508 R

RSB EE A E R E R
HE -

2 GE2IE B CEHIREEENE

)2 A # E ) BT EE A A R R =
REHNE -
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Hazardous Wastewater

The hazardous wastewater generated by the
Group in the manufacture of paper products
are mainly wastewater produced from cleaning
printing blankets and machinery, wastewater
from laboratories and wastewater containing air
compressor oil. We have introduced different
measures to reduce the amount of hazardous
wastewater. For example, workers are required
to wipe off the glue by a method that minimises
the use of water. A water reuse system, designed
by a qualified environmental specialist firm, is
put in place to recycle the wastewater. This
system is a combination of chemical coagulation-
flocculation and membrane bio-reactor, which can
effectively purify wastewater and ensure it meets
the standard for reuse in the production process
after the treatment. It was established based on
the specification that reuse rate of wastewater
(restricted to use in production) could be up to
90%. Besides, we use water circulation filtration
system at the printing plate-making department
to recycle water and to reduce wastewater.
The sewage water will then be purified at our
wastewater treatment station. The sedimentation
tank at the station is cleaned regularly. We
entrust qualified companies to collect the
hazardous wastewater and the sludge deposited
in the sedimentation tank containing hazardous
substances (such as heavy metals).

100 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED E£2&£EZERBER AT

B EEK
AEERERUDEANESE
BEKE B 28 % HIRl B A K
BEELEMEK BHREREK
REERBEERHOENK - B
MHEDRTIINRANERERLDEE
EEKE I T ABULNE=R
DRAKEGEBRRBK BM
NEZETHEERNEREEREEER
AR ETHY 7K B A & &t DA B Uk RE
Ke WREGFHEETILERR —
BRERAEREBEEYRERS T
BRUFILEK MIRERIERE
MEAEBEFRAMZE -
I R IR IR S E#EI0% FE KD
AR ZB\IEESL - o A
TRREBFIFERKBIRBRER
SABIR AR R R DK A
1% 75 B P9 7Y BE 7K e B U ¥ 05 K
EITFERE - KM TEE
AT c HMEEARE
& E U & R B WA =R K
MR AFITEYSEEME (A
E2B)MFR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Non-hazardous Wastewater

The non-hazardous wastewater produced in
our operations mainly comes from domestic
wastewater from offices and staff dormitories, and
oily wastewater generated in the canteen.

We have established a series of water-saving
and emission-reduction measures to reduce the
generation of domestic wastewater. Please refer
to the “Conservation of Water” section below
for details of the measures. For oily wastewater,
we have established certain facilities for the
decomposition of oil and slag. All wastewater
produced by canteen must pass through
such facilities before it meets the standard
to be discharged together with the domestic
wastewater. Also, we have our own septic tanks
for our domestic wastewater, and after a series
of treatment, all wastewater is discharged to local
sewage treatment plants.

To ensure our discharge fulfil the legal
requirements, a monitoring system has been
installed at the effluent to measure the relevant
parameters, including pH value and conductivity
of the discharged wastewater in real-time and
simultaneously transmit the data to the local
government authority.

Moreover, our safety officers are responsible to
conduct daily inspection and maintenance for the
wastewater facilities to prevent any malfunctions.
In the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
the laws and regulations including the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Water Pollution
Prevention and Control.

RIR - g MERRS

#EEEE K
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EREK URREEANS M
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Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

As governed by our internal waste management
procedure, all handling and storage of wastes are
standardised and followed by all employees to
ensure that our waste disposal fulfils relevant laws
and regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste.

To engage our employees in nurturing a
disciplinary waste disposal habit, a multi-coloured
waste separation system is adopted. Wastes are
then be handled according to their nature.

We have also made a commitment in striving
for excellent waste management by signing
a commitment letter with the relevant local
governments. In addition, related training is
organised to deliver professional knowledge of
waste handling to employees.
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Hazardous Solid Wastes

Hazardous or harmful wastes refer to the waste
items on the national hazardous wastes catalog.
Chemicals are inevitably consumed during our
production. Improper handling of chemical waste
may cause environmental and safety concerns.
To minimise the environmental impacts and
comply with relevant laws and regulations,
we have established a series of guidelines
specifically for hazardous waste to manage the
handling, disposal, transportation, storage and
documentation of toxic and harmful substances.
They should be stored in properly labelled and
sealed containers located in assigned storage
areas to avoid mixing with other waste and prevent
secondary pollution. The hazardous wastes are
handled by qualified professional environmental
agents.

Waste Management

RIE - e NERWRE

ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%

EEdERERBEMEERE
fﬁE%%ﬁiﬂPE’\]@%EE ®
PMEEREPEAB2EE
AR ER S EEYE
BAE ARS8 RENY
%Fﬁ%"mﬁﬁ%/ﬁyi‘i}&iﬁm
T EWEBTHBIARIER
B HEREYMRIL K
FItESl - LEBBESERAEY
BHRE - ME- EW - #7F
&Eﬂﬁ ZEBYEFREE
RIEEMF RN ABLER
BLREHNRSA - RN
HMEEYRE  BIIE=RI5H -
EEBEYVHEEBNEERR
RIBETRIRE -

BE ¥ & 2

Hazardous Waste Tonnes 203.28

BEEEY WA

Waste oil rags and chemical Tonnes 171.43
waste containers

BEm M Mt BREEY A 28 g

Others such as waste Tonnes 31.85
activated carbon

HAtb - 40 B E M K Mg

Hazardous Waste Intensity Tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue 0.16

BEREDEE WEHEEBB TR E
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Non-hazardous Solid Wastes

Non-hazardous wastes are divided into recyclable
and non-recyclable wastes. The main recyclable
waste streams from our business operations are
scrap paper, waste pallets, waste bronzing paper,
waste printing blankets and waste zine plates.

Non-recycling wastes mainly consists of office
garbage, domestic garbage, kitchen wastes and
wastes generated from maintenance works. They
are placed in non-recyclable garbage areas or
garbage bins, and are transported to the sanitation
department for disposal.

Recycling reduces the need for extracting, refining
and processing raw materials all of which create
substantial air and water pollution. Hence, the
Group is devoted to the promotion of recycling
practices, such as reuse of production paper
scrap in production process and office and sale of
metals and paper scrap to recycling companies.
We place recycling bins in workplace as well as in
dormitory and encourage our staff to step up for
environment conservation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
8,643.59 tonnes of non-hazardous waste in its
manufacturing factories, with an intensity of 7.01
tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue.
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Waste Management

RIE - e NERWRE

BE W) &

Non-hazardous Waste Tonnes 8,643.59
EmEREY 7]

Waste paper Tonnes 7,897.32
& 4% 7

Domestic waste Tonnes 457.40
4 EREYD 0}

Others Tonnes 288.87
Hh Mg

Non-hazardous Waste Intensity Tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue 7.01
BEEDETE W BEEB TR E

The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC and the Environmental Protection Tax Law
of the PRC. We pay close attention to the updates
in national and local environmental protection laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not involved of any breaches of relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to generation and discharge
of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.

Management of Noise

The noise produced by the Group’s operations
mainly comes from production machinery and
equipment, vehicles and forklifts. We control the
noise level and its impact on the environment
through restricting the production workshop
location, using low-noise equipment as a priority,
regularly conducting repair and maintenance
for machinery and equipment and limiting the
whistling noise from vehicles and forklifts in the
factory area. At the same time, we equip our
employees with earplugs to reduce the chance of
occupational deafness.

The Group emphasizes on complying with the
relevant laws and regulations including Emission
Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary (GB 12348-2008) of the PRC. External
inspection on noise conditions of operation
facilities is conducted annually.
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Management of Resources Utilisation
Use of Energy

The Group highly emphasises proper usage of
energy and resources. We adopt ISO 50001
energy management system. We conduct an
identification and evaluation of the major source
and use of energy and materials every year. An
energy efficiency plan is also drafted once a year
with the collaboration of all relevant departments
to set an energy saving target.

Resources used by the Group mainly include
gasoline, diesel, electricity, water and paper. We
strictly comply with the Energy Conservation
Laws of the PRC, Water Law of the PRC and
other applicable laws and regulations on resource
conservation, and continuously identify and reduce
the impact from our business operations on the
environment. The production department, offices,
staff dormitories and canteens have implemented
a number of relevant measures, and we illustrate
to our employees the importance of resources
saving, and demand everyone to make best use
of resources, to maximise their effectiveness and
to eliminate waste of resources. Our measures
for effective use of various resources are detailed
below:
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Conservation of Energy
Conservation of Gasoline and Diesel

Gasoline and diesel are mainly used in vehicles
and forklifts. Our factories and offices have
set up a number of conservation measures to
regulate the use of gasoline and diesel in order to
reduce emissions of exhaust air and greenhouse
gases. The administrative department checks the
condition of vehicles and forklifts regularly, and
conducts periodic repairs and maintenance to
ensure that they are in good condition, to raise the
efficiency of energy use, and to prevent excessive
fuel consumed and exhaust air generated due to
parts failure. Drivers are required to plan the route
in advance and stop the car engine while idling.
To reduce the use of diesel, electric forklifts are
widely adopted as they are more environmentally
friendly.

Conservation of Electricity

“Reduction at source” is the Group’s energy
management strategy, for which we set up
energy management implementation plans. An
energy online monitoring system is installed in
our production plant which provides real-time
data of electricity consumption in different control
points, including major printing presses, die-
cutting machines, surface coating machines,
air-conditioning and lighting respectively. The
administrative department is responsible for
monitoring and analysing the data and takes
necessary actions in case of any abnormality
found.
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We also actively promote the energy conservation
and consumption reduction policy pursuant to
the “Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other applicable laws and
regulations, and implement a series of energy
conservation measures to educate employees
on the relationship between energy use and
earth sustainability, so that they can build a
good habit of using electricity. For example, the
air conditioners in the office are used according
to seasonal and temperature changes; energy-
efficient LED lighting is used in our production
plants: motion-activated switches for lighting
is used at stairs and corridor; production and
electrical equipment are maintained regularly to
reduce wasted power due to malfunctioning.

During the Reporting Period, electricity was
the main source of energy consumption in our
production sites and office, in which we consumed
about 25,620.83 MWh with an intensity of 20.79.
We also consumed about 41,620.37 litres gasoline
and 15,576.40 litres diesel.

Energy Consumption

BE J5UH #E
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Direct Energy — Mobile Fuel  Gasoline
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Diesel
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Indirect Energy Electricity
ERES A%

Litres
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Litres

A

MWh
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41,620.37

15,5676.40

25,620.83
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Conservation of water

We are fully aware of the importance of water
resources to our production and living needs.
To conserve this precious resource, regular
inspections and maintenance are conducted on
water facilities such as fresh water pipes and water
coolers to avoid water leakage.

Water use in production process is mainly related
to printing process. In order to reduce water
consumption in production and to increase
the utilisation rate of water resources, we have
installed a water reuse system and a water
circulation filtration system in our production plants
to recycle and reuse wastewater in the production
process.

There was no water sourcing issue during the
Reporting Period as all water is supplied by the
local water supply authority.
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Water Consumption Tonnes 159,030.18
FAXE g
Water Consumption Intensity Tonnes per HK$1 million of 129.02
revenue
RAXEE WEBE BB TR
1 The water consumption and water recycled/reused 1 HKERBR"FHFEKEE

accounts for the water used in the production processes.
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Management of Use of Paper
For Production Use

Paper is the major raw material used in
production. The amount and type of paper to be
used in production are determined by the design
and features of products, as well as the way of
manufacture. In our OEM business, we make
strenuous effort in product engineering to make
full use of paper and avoid wastage. We also
establish various internal policies and procedures
to regulate the entire production process in raw
materials selection and procurement, printing
warehousing, and quality inspection. The
procurement department selects paper that meets
our production and quality requirements (Please
refer to “Supply Chain Management” below for
details) with the aim to produce the highest quality
products with least wastage. The purchase and
use of paper are based on the production plan
and paper is distributed based on work orders.
We provide professional training together with
assessment tests to our employees to ensure
that they are familiar with the standard operating
procedures of the production process and are able
to meet the quality and efficiency requirements.
Our efforts in quality assurance in the initial stage
of production such as pre-press preparation, trial
print and colour check also help reduce wastage
and maximise resources utilisation.

110 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED E£2&£EIZERER AT

MR E A EE
&£ ERA

MERELEETEANTIERM
e EEMAREKNBE LA
BTy IR IR B am AR AT R R A K%
REHTAEE - FOEMER T
o ERMEERIZIESE
TEHD TAMBAEREK &
RIRE o RPITH E S EA AL
BEREIEFF - RERMHE
KLIRfE R - B kEREN
EEEEBE - KBEHERT
BEENMNEEEZRNMARGE
BHE2HTXIHERER]) -
NHEILHRELEEREBENE
e MERMBERERHEREE
EAE WERI(ETE#ET
DEE - RMABETIREFTESE
Al Ko B A5 R - FE AR E R ED
FlERMRERERRF Lk
WZERNEE MAERENR - F M
EEENVLERETORE
fR7EH) TAE AN EN BT 4 ~ L E)
Lkgpesd NABRIRE
FEREIRE A -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In order to prevent raw materials from damages
and deterioration, we pay attention to raw
materials storage and warehouse management.
For example, all raw materials are properly packed
and labelled, having raw materials uncovered or
stored outside warehouses is forbidden. We also
impose certain instructions on materials storage
inside warehouses, such as keeping a clearance
from the wall and the floor. The raw material
warehouse keeper prepares monthly reports on
paper consumption, conducts analytical review
on paper purchased, used and losses during
production. During FY2020, the Group consumed
approximately 32,415.66 tonnes of paper in
production.

For Office Use

In order to establish a “green office”, we advocate
conservation of paper and encourage employees
to send files in electronic form whenever possible
to reduce physical copies. We assign printing
rights based on work needs and set double-sided
printing as default. Scrap paper from production
is reused in office if the size and thickness are
suitable. We make full use of paper by reusing
one-side used paper for photocopying or printing,
and collect the double-side wasted paper in
recycled paper collection boxes and have the
paper recycled by a qualified recycler. During
FY2020, the Group has consumed approximately
16.21 tonnes of paper in office.
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Use of Packaging Materials

In order to promote recycling, we provide
options of recyclable packaging materials for our
customers. During the Reported Period, carton
box and liner board are our main sources of
packaging materials. Details of the packaging
materials consumption are illustrated as below.

2E-yE g ok
REBOWER RMAERP
RSB KRS EME R
He RImEHA - HHERER
REMBEMHHEZRIR -
BEMBBENFBLOT -

Packaging Materials Tonnes
Consumption
BEMHBBE i1
Packaging Materials Tonnes per HK$1 million of
Consumption Intensity revenue
BEMHERTE WEBE BB TS

3,503.24

2.84

The Environment and Natural
Resources

We understand that cutting down trees for making
forest products such as paper may lead to long
term environmental disturbances in forest habitats
and impacts on plant and animal biodiversity, soil
fertility and water quality. Therefore, we support
the sustainable forest management practice
by using FSC-certified papers in a portion of
production, aiming at protecting the forests and
mitigating our impact on the environment. Forest
Stewardship Council, commonly known as FSC,
is currently considered to be the most robust
certification system to ensure environmentally
responsible, socially beneficial and economically
viable management of forests; FSC endorses
organisations who carry out their business
activities in producing consumer products from
using forest resources without compromising the
health of the world’s forests for future generations.
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V. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES

1. Workforce
As at 31 December 2020, the headquarter in Hong
Kong and two key production sites in the PRC
had 2,249 employees in total; 75 in Hong Kong
and 2,174 in the PRC. All of them were contracted
employees.

Total Workforce

Analyses of Group’s employees as at 31 December
2020 by gender and age group are as follows:

(i) Percentage of Employees by Gender
() BEIIEFIEH

As at 31 December 2020
R-BE-ZEF+-H=+—H

46%
//
-
m Male Female
B I m 18-30

B L BREARE

I EBRRHEIESR

BT
RZEBE-_FBF+-_A=+—8"
BERBHBRABEOMRMEEZEE
EEMAB2498 8T FE
75%  RE2174% 0 HAEAH
BT

BT
R2020%F12 A31H » K £ |
T RIFIFER4E R E 5K
T :

0

D

(i) Percentage of Employees by Age Group
B TF B 5L

As at 31 December 2020
R-ZE-EF+-HA=+—H

m31-40 m41-50 above 50

18ZE305% 31240k 41E505% 507 &

Note: The analysis was based on the data at the end of the
Reporting Period
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Employee Turnover BTk
The average turnover rate' of employees is BETFHRAERIZMER - Fi
analysed by gender, age group and geographical MRl R E DT

region as follows:

2020
—E-EHF
By Gender 1 1 Al
> Male > B4 3.34%
> Female > it 3.54%
By Age Group B4 B
> 18-30 > 18Z305% 8.79%
> 31-40 > 31Z405% 2.08%
> 41-50 > 41 ZE505% 1.82%
> Above 50 > 505% WA £ 3.10%
By Geographical Region Rt &
> The PRC > HEH 3.50%
> Hong Kong > BB 1.36%
During the Reporting Period, the average turnover RBEBRA - FHRKERLHR
rate’ was approximately 3.43%. 3.43% °
1 the average turnover rate is calculated by averaging 1 FHRARERGARKENTY
the monthly turnover rates. Monthly turnover rate is HitE SBARNAERREANE
calculated by number of employees who left the Group/ BETAHBRNAFHELIA#E
average number of employees during the months LA100% 5H & - 7 — &8 A ™ B 59
*100%. Employees who left the Group within a month are REEBNEETFHELENA -

not counted.
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Employment

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. We
are committed to providing equal opportunities
throughout employment, including in the
remuneration, recruitment, training and promotion
of employee. Our human resources policies adhere
to the principle of fairness. All appointments and
promotions are made on the basis of performance
and ability regardless of their age, gender, family
status, disability and race.

Compensation and Benefits

The Group recognises employees as our most
important assets and we value their benefits. We
review remuneration package with reference to the
comparable market level, employees’ performance
and our financial performance annually to ensure
our competitiveness in retention of high caliber
employees. Employee remuneration includes basic
salary and discretionary bonus. We also adopted
the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to selected eligible
persons for their contributions to the Group. In
addition to the statutory leave entitlement, our
employees are also entitled to extra annual leave,
sick leave, marriage leave and compassionate
leave. Apart from the compensation insurance
according to the law, our employees are entitled
to medical check-up and medical insurance. In
special occasions, the Group offers compassion
gifts to employees such as gift cheque for
marriage and condolence money.
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As a family-friendly employer, we promote the
concept of work-life balance to our employees.
The Group adopt a five-day work week to enable
our employees to spend more time with their
family. We allow flexible working hours and special
work-from-home arrangement for employees who
are in need of flexibility to balance their family
obligations and work duties.

In light of the COVID-19 situation, we let our
employees work from home to help them minimise
contact with people and reduce the risk of
infection.

We believe that employees’ health, safety and
well-being come before work and we always seek
to provide better working environment for them.
Sport facilities such as basketball court and table
tennis table are provided for our employees in the
factory to encourage physical exercise and social
interaction.

During FY2020, most of the staff recreational
activities were suspended due to control measures
against COVID-19. We initiated alternative
approaches to maintain staff relations and
momentum such as providing festive gifts and
organising online lucky draw activities.

Training and Development

Human resources are our most precious asset.
To achieve our corporate goals and development,
we make continuous efforts in providing our
employees with training and development
opportunities as well as formulating relevant
policies and initiatives for promoting staff skills
uplift and growth. We have been recognised by
the Employees Retraining Board as a Manpower
Developer for our achievement in manpower
development.
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Our Group Training Center offers a variety
of comprehensive and systematic training
programmes covering different training and
development needs which include leadership
development and management skills, team
collaboration skills, personal effectiveness uplift
and corporate continuous improvement culture,
work ethics, quality awareness, information
technology, new staff induction, production
and technical skills progression, machinery and
equipment technicians apprenticeship scheme,
occupational health and safety. Here are some
highlights of our training and development
programmes and policies:

4.1. Talent Development

We have launched various staff development
programmes which aim at building our talent
pool and development. These programmes
include our Graduate Trainees programmes
where we hire fresh Universities graduates
with potentials. The programme covers
in-house training, cross department rotation
and placement. Trainees will be assigned
to suitable positions according to their
capabilities and career aspirations. We also
have the Talent Development Programme
and Off-the-dob Training Programme for
existing supervisors and officers which aim
to enhance their continuous improvement
mindset and job skills to get them prepared
for future promotion opportunities. These
programmes cover a variety of training and
development opportunities including in-house
training, job rotations, external company
visits, mentoring and action learning projects.
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RIE L MERRE

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Qualifications Framework

Our Qualifications Framework aims to help
us define the essential skills, knowledge and
relevant skills hierarchy that a job position
holder should possess. Staff will be assessed
based on their required qualifications so
as to identify their continuous improvement
opportunities. We have set job required skills
for different positions and have conducted
assessments according to the skills matrix
and requirement standards. Tailored
training and development programmes and
activities are designed and implemented
according to the assessment results. This
Quialifications Framework scheme also allows
our employees to know their current and
future development needs and facilitate their
personal growth.

Education Allowances Programme

The Group encourages staff to pursue
life-long learning and continuous
enhancement so as to enhance their job
skills, knowledge and qualifications. We
have established an Education Allowances
Programme, providing eligible staff with
partial to full sponsorship for enrolling
education or training programmes organised
by external organisations.

Professional accreditation programme &
Skills allowances

To groom our professional staff and
technicians, we have launched different levels
of development programmes for professional
staff which include engineers and production
line leaders. Participants will be trained in a
wide range of printing-related knowledge,
production skills and management
knowledge, and will be awarded extra
allowances upon completion of training and
assessment. We also provide various skills
allowance schemes for other workers so as
to encourage them to improve their skillset.
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Collaborations with educational institutions

The Group has built up close ties with
universities, institutions and professional
academic bodies to explore collaboration
opportunities. In 2020, we completed
a 3-year Printing Technician trainees
programme with a printing technician institute
in Guangdong Province. By leveraging the
school tutoring resources and integrating
our operations expertise and practical
experiences, we have successfully trained
up several technician trainees for our plant
operations.

Programmes to support our latest
development

To support our business goals in web sales
and pursuit of smart operation, the Group
Training Center has organized various training
and development programmes and activities
to equip our employees with new knowledge
and skills. We have invited external training
provider to launch tailored training including
Industry 4.0 training, which aims to help our
employees to grasp new knowledge and
the latest development. We also sponsored
staff to attend external training, allowing
them to keep advancing their knowledge and
broadening their horizon.
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5. Labour Standards 5, BIfE%

The Group emphasises youth protection and
forced labour prevention by implementing
a series of stringent measures. Other than
solidly complying with the national and regional
regulations and laws, including the Law on the
Protection of Minors of the PRC, Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour, and the Labour
Law of the PRC, the Group has gone an extra mile
to address and prevent the child and forced labour
issues.

Identity verification and background check are
included in the recruiting process to ensure job
applicants are fulfilling the legal working age (i.e.
16 years old). For internships and on-job training
programmes offered to students, the Group will
sign a cooperation agreement with the partner
colleges and student participants to obtain
consensus on the working terms and conditions.
In addition, all contracts are formulated based
on the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and all
employees are required to sign the legally binding
contracts before commencement of work to
prevent any form of forced labour.
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For existing employees, regular unannounced
identity checks are conducted in the workplace
to eliminate the possibility of child labour
employment. The Group has set up a protocol to
guide the human resources department to conduct
the checks. Should the Group discover any
child labour in the workplace, it will take prompt
remedial actions including removing that employee
from workplace immediately, contacting the
employee’s guardians and sending the employee
back to their guardians.

Employees’ consent for working overtime is
required to prevent forced overtime work, and
they are compensated in accordance with the
applicable labour laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to preventing child and forced
labour in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Staff Communication

Communication among all levels of staff is
important for promoting positive staff relations
and work efficiency. In view of that, the Group
has established a wide range of communication
channels such as suggestion boxes, telephone
hotline, email, intranet, and meetings for its
employees to express their views. On the other
hand, the Group arranges quarterly meetings with
the representatives of the labour union of our
PRC plant, which serve as an effective channel
to maintain an open, transparent and two-way
communication between management and
employees. The representatives collect employees’
concerns and opinions on the existing policies
on employment, working conditions, welfare and
benefits and reflect them during the meetings.
We listen to their opinions carefully and strive to
enhance our policies so as to optimise the balance
between their needs and business operations.
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7. Health and Safety 7. BERZE

Occupation Health and Safety Production Policy
BERERZTEEERE

> Upholding the principle of “Safety First, Prevention Matters”

R LZ2FE— EHREINERA
> Cultivating a people-oriented safety culture

BEAABRNZ 2L

> Striving for continuous improvement on workplace safety

NEFBEREIESHALZ R

We highly emphasise the importance of safety and
health and firmly uphold the principle of “Safety
First, Prevention Matters”. To achieve safety risk
management and control, the Group has built
up an occupational health and safety (“OHS”)
management system which has been certified by
the international standard (OHSAS 18001:2007). It
works as the backbone for the Group to formulate
appropriate safety strategies. Several people-
oriented safety policies and guidelines have been
formulated and implemented to provide detailed
and coherent safety instructions for different levels
of employees to follow.

To build a safe working environment, it is essential
for all departments of the Group to proactively
cooperate and take actions. In view of that,
safety targets and plans are formulated by each
department to regulate their daily operations and
safety performances. Every year, top management
review safety targets and plans to ensure they
align with the Group’s core value. Annual internal
safety audit is also conducted to review their
safety performances.

We firmly comply with occupational health-related
laws and regulations, including the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, Production Safety Law
of the PRC, and the Fire Control Law of the PRC,
that are relevant to the Group’s operations.
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Hazards Identification and Risks Elimination

In the manufacturing business, contacting with
objects and equipment, tripping and falling, and
mishandling of chemicals are common causes for
work-related injuries. The Group has no hesitation
in eliminating the potential safety risks. Various
measures have been implemented to avoid and
mitigate the safety risks and hazards posed to our
employees.

Hazards lIdentification policies are established
to stipulate clear procedures of annual hazards
identification works. The identification covers
various potential risks, including dust and noise
generation, falling objects, contacting with objects
and equipment, and explosion etc., along the
production chain and supporting office. External
professional parties are also engaged to conduct
reviews and provide recommendations periodically.

Chemical Purchasing and Storing Management

We have formulated working guidelines for
chemical purchasing, handling and storing,
and ensure they are strictly implemented.
All chemicals are purchased from qualified
suppliers with certified material safety data sheet
(“MSDS”) provided. Dangerous goods are kept
in access-restricted area and explosion-proof
cabinets with CCTV-cameras installed to prevent
accidental leakage.

Regular Safety Inspection

Daily internal safety inspections are conducted
by qualified safety officers to ensure sufficient
precautionary safety measures and proper
practices are enforced. Moreover, qualified
external bodies for regular workplace occupational
hazard inspections and audits for our continuous
improvement and evaluating the effectiveness of
our safety management system.
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Safety Training and Emergency Preparedness

By offering safety training for all employees in
respect of the safety management practices
and measures, the Group expects to raise the
safety awareness of the employees and foster a
safety-focus culture in the workplace. A variety
of training sessions including introduction on
the Working Permit System, OHS management
system, machinery safety and operation, chemical
use and storage are offered to the employees to
acquire necessary competence and qualifications
for their daily work. The Group provides extra
external training based on employees’ job natures
and needs to enhance their knowledge of all the
potential hazards and dangers in the workplace,
and are competent to perform their duties safely.

In addition, a comprehensive contingency plan
is developed to cope with various kinds of
emergencies such as fire outbreak, chemical
leakage and other accidents, to take control of the
situation and arrange evacuation if needed.

Regular emergency drills are arranged for our
employees to practise for different situations.
In FY2020, fire drill and chemical spill drill were
organised.
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VI. OPERATING PRACTICES

1.

Supply Chain Management

We pay extra attention when choosing business
partners to eliminate potential risks on our
operations. By building a close and mutually
beneficial relationship with trustworthy suppliers,
the Group can enhance the quality of its
production and maintain its competitive advantage
in the industry. We adhere to the principles of
openness, fairness and integrity in our supplier
and contractor engagement. Suppliers who have
established systematic management approaches
on product quality assurance and environmental
and social responsibilities together with sound
records on fulfilling customer requirements are
preferred. Potential suppliers are required to
undergo a series of selection procedures before
being qualified as approved suppliers. In particular,
we also require suppliers to obtain the “Customs
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism” certification.

During the selection procedures, on-site
assessments are carried out to ensure the
suppliers meet our requirements. Once the
suppliers are approved, they are required to sign
a compliance statement to prevent any violation
of laws. Approved suppliers’ performance will be
continuously reviewed to minimise supply chain
risks.

To manage the environmental, occupational health
and safety (EHS) performances of our suppliers,
we have established a series of straightforward
management guidelines aiming to reduce their
environmental impact and occupational health
risks. Our EHS policies are thoroughly explained to
all the business partners to ensure they can align
with the Group’s EHS values.
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Product Responsibility

As a professional paper product manufacturer and
printing service provider, the Group is dedicated
to satisfying our clients by offering high quality
products and customer-oriented services, hence
to maintain our competitive position in the industry
and sustain the long-term business growth.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and
regulations such as the Product Quality Law of the
PRC. There was no record of product recall due to
safety and health reasons.

Quality Assurance

As an international professional paper product
manufacturer and printing service provider, the
Group is dedicated to satisfying our clients by
consistently providing products of high quality
and integrity, so as to maintain our competitive
position in the industry and sustain the long-term
business growth. Accredited by ISO 9001, our
operations include a comprehensive quality
management system which covers quality
assurance, quality engineering and quality control.
This system manages quality throughout the
production operations from product development,
material sourcing, manufacturing to delivery, to
ensure that the designated standards are met.
Our quality assurance team is accredited by
ANSI-ASQ National Accreditation Board under 1ISO
17020, which is an international accreditation for
an inspection body for demonstrating technical
competence in the fields of calibration and testing.
We also represent some of our major customers
as the certified vendor that we are qualified to
conduct inspection on their behalves.
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Product safety tests on raw materials and products
are conducted by our own in-house laboratory
which is accredited by different international
professional bodies including China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
(CNAS), ANSI-ASQ National Accreditation
Board and United States Consumer Product
Safety Commission (CPSC). It also meets the
requirements of an international standard ISO/IEC
17025:2005, and is qualified to conduct tests in
accordance with international standards, such as
standards for toys, packaging and general goods
in the U.S. and Europe.

We ensure that our operations comply with
relevant laws and regulations such as the “Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests.
During the Reporting Period, there was no record
of breaches of the relevant laws and regulations or
product recall due to quality or safety reasons.
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Customer Satisfaction

Customers’ satisfaction is always one of our top
priorities. We have an established mechanism
to handle customers’ complaints. We take
appropriate and prompt actions to follow up
investigation and analysis of the issue. Also, we
collect and review customers’ feedback through
regular customer satisfaction surveys on different
aspects including product quality, customer
service, lead time, operation capabilities, and
materials sourcing and development. We achieved
an overall satisfaction rate of 85.7% in our latest
survey. In addition, we fully comply with relevant
laws and regulations on advertising and labelling
including the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China to prevent delivering misleading
information to customers.

128 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED £2&£EZERER AT

XEPmEE
BMTHoZEEEPRER - &
I B K2R % P 3% 5F 1 51 e
NEFRHEMMEE - R E R
MEE KENERETRE
AERSHTEE - o B A
BATHNEPMEERS
KEREHNEFPFHSREEED
ReE PEEMEE  BFPR
% RNEE - EE AR
MEHRBRAE - ZEHFHY
AEF  BMNEBBREEXRAR
85.7% ° SN - T2 EH & =T
EHESREENHEBEEER
EREREMPEARLMEE
HEE) UM EFPEIER
BER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Privacy & Intellectual Property Protection

We place a strong emphasis on safeguarding
customers’ privacy and have formulated our
procedures and guidelines for privacy protection.
Protection of intellectual property is a crucial
part in our operations of both OEM sales and
web sales. Based on the relevant policies and
procedures, we implement strict measures
throughout the production process to prevent
unauthorised duplication, illegal use or distribution,
or leakage of the designs, specifications and other
intellectual properties of our corporate customers’
products by our employees or subcontractors.
Documents and systems containing confidential or
private data can only be accessed by authorised
staff who are responsible for relevant job tasks.
Any unauthorised access, copy, transfer or
disclosure of such information to other third parties
is strictly prohibited. We have also established
procedures for monitoring and protecting
intellectual properties in our web sales operation,
which include screening of image files submitted
by our customers in their personalization orders to
check if any suspected infringement of intellectual
property rights of a third party. Our websites
also set forth our privacy policy indicating the
collection, use and protection of customers’
private information on our websites. We also adopt
a preventive approach by arranging staff training
on cyber security to enhance their awareness of
potential risks of data leakage.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any infringement of any law and
regulations relating to privacy or intellectual

property.
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Anti-corruption

The Group firmly upholds the highest standard
of business integrity at all times. As governed
by our internal integrity management policy, we
ensure that the company’s operations meet the
requirements of its standards and the relevant
laws and regulations including the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Criminal
Law of the PRC. We forbid any form of employee
misconduct, such as bribery, extortion and money
laundering, and adopts zero-tolerance policy to
corruption and fraud practices. All employees
are required to strictly follow the relevant rules as
stated in the code of conduct on staff handbook
and to make a declaration of conflict of interest.
On-board training and refresher training were
provided for staff to reinforce their knowledge in
business integrity and anti-corruption. We also set
up a dedicated whistleblowers hotline and email
address to manage the message from whistle
blowers. Cases reported will be investigated by
our internal audit department and reviewed by
the audit committee. During the Reporting Period,
neither the Group nor its employees were involved
any litigation cases in relation to corruption.
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VIl. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Our care and commitment to the community is
embedded in our corporate culture of the Group. As
a socially responsible company, we acknowledge the
significance of our continuous and active participation
in contributing to the society.

In 2020, the Group once again supported the Hong
Kong Red Cross by becoming the Diamond Sponsor
of its annual fundraising event “Pass-it-On” for the
12th consecutive year. In addition to cash donation,
we also provided pro bono printing services for the
campaign’s promotional materials, so as to help
Red Cross reduce operation costs and maximise its
distribution of resources to the needy. Apart from
this, we also supported different organisations and
communities. For example, we sponsored Hong Kong
Shine Tak Foundation’s “Dynamic Online Sports Month”
event which aimed to raise funds for its various youth
development programmes. In addition, we supported
New Sight Eye Care, a registered charity dedicated
to making positive changes in the Republic of Congo
(“Congo”) to restoring and protecting the vision of
people there, for the third consecutive year to launch
their annual calendar for charity sales by covering the
entire design and production costs, which helped them
raise over HK$270,000 for their eye hospital project in
Ouesso, Congo. Through New Sight Eye Care, we also
took the opportunity to show our care and support
to the deprived communities overseas by donating
supplies to children in Congo.
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Vill. HONOURS AND CERTIFICATIONS A

We have achieved diverse international standards

of operation systems, such as ISO 9001:2015, I1SO B

14001:2015, ISO 50001:2011, to maintain our product
quality and ensure our efficiency and compliance.
In addition, we have also been given a number of
certifications and awards from different organisations.

Certifications/Awards

W[‘AH%/;%IE

Awarders

BRHEE

£
14001:2015 -
BREMNERES -
EREBRM - BN
FIMEEEZ EREMEE o

ERAE

FHNTRBRKRZ E B R
ISO 9001:2015 ~ I1SO
ISO 50001:2011 * BA{R
e 1R 3 P9 HY AR
ZPMHESFET

Awardees

EERQT

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 50001:2011

OHSAS 18001:2007

FSC Chain-of-Custody
FSCE #HE B #

SGS United Kingdom Ltd

SGS-CSTC Standards Technical
Services Co., Ltd
SGSRIRZERMAREEE R QA
SGS Hong Kong Limited
EEBARAREBRA

SGS Hong Kong Limited
EEBARARBRBIERA
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Q P Printing Ltd/Dongguan
Zensee Printing Ltd/Taunus
Printing (Heshan) Co. Ltd.
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Dongguan Zensee Printing
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Q P Printing Ltd/Dongguan
Zensee Printing Ltd

SRR ABRAR,
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Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Co. Ltd./Q P
Printing Ltd/QP (HK)
Ltd/QP Trading Ltd/
QP International Ltd/QP
Sourcing Ltd
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Awarders

BRHEE

RIE - e NERWRE

Awardees

EEAF

C-TPAT Validation

B - BARRBEH
(C-TPAT) % &

GSV (Global Security
Verification)

ERZE

niii
fn}“

Seal of Compliance

HMEBEES

China Environmental
Labelling Product
Certification®

FEIRIBEZE S

Recognition of Achievement
(GMI)

FX 3t 52 AT (GMI)*

G7 Master Facility Targeted

O =77 2%
JZ= OR n/%'\ GisA

G7TEEREERE

High and New Technology
Enterprise Certificate

l:

= B R 4

):liii
kg

China-United States Joint
Validation Team*
REBARE DA

Intertek

AEKE

ICTI Ethical Toy Program

ICTITTA X ETRE

China Environmental United

(Beijing) Certification Center Co.,

Ltd

Graphic Measures International

Bl =R = /N A
|dealliance

BIERBAS X B8R

Department of Science and
Technology of Guangdong
Province, Department of

Finance of Guangdong Province,

Guangdong Provincial Office of
the SAT and Guangdong Local
Taxation Bureau

EREMEBRME BEREVRK

B BERXNEERERERKR

MEREMTHRBED

DAERRA

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd
=ERHRIBARAA

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Co. Ltd.
EMMEUFU%‘BE’&T/
R (8L /R A

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Co. Ltd.

REEDHRIBRA T/
R (BIL)ARA

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd

& BEHRAR AR
Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd
& RBHRAR AR
Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Co. Ltd.
REBHRAERRE
Bz ENRI (85 1L) B R A A

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Ltd

REERHRBI AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ 133



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IR - 8 NERRE

Certifications/Awards Awarders

RERE BER#EE

Awardees
b N

10 Years Plus Caring
Company Logo Service

10FPlus R RBEIRS BELERBEBS

Caring Certificate

BLORAEES ERIERE
Listed Company Awards of Hong Kong Economic Journal

Excellence 2020 — (Main

Board Rising Star Award)

A 7 £ K #2020 EE RS
— (ERFHEE)

Good MPF Employer Award Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Authority

B EE BEMERTESAIEERD

The Hong Kong Council of Social

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

Q P Printing Ltd

QP Group Holdmgs Limited
EREBERBERAA
Q P Group Holdings Limited

EREBERBRAA

Q P Printing Ltd/QP (HK) Ltd/
DPI Laboratory Services
Ltd/Product Innovator Ltd/
Printer’s Studio Ltd

=R R EBE a,/
=2 ( B)ERAR

% /EIJ REBERAR
EU%FDD%%@EBE 7,/
Printer’s Studio Ltd

# The Chinese translations of the names are for reference only.

*

The English translations of the names are for reference only.
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IX. VISION OUTLOOK

Adhering to our vision of becoming the most preferred
trustworthy business partner in the industry, we
are committed to our corporate responsibility in
environment, social and governance. As always, the
Group will continue to uphold a high standard of
business ethics and play its role in the community as a
responsible taxpayer and business operator, with the
ultimate goal of achieving sustainability in our business
as well as the society. We will strive to explore ways to
enhance our performance in environment protection
in different aspects of operations. We also look to
attract talents with competitive remuneration packages,
pleasant working environment and good prospect to
cater for our business expansion while facilitating our
employees’ career development. We will also actively
identify charitable opportunities and play our part as
a caring corporate citizen to provide more support for
the underprivileged. We will continue to evaluate our
implementation in these areas from time to time and
strive for continuous improvement.

RIR - g MERRS

h RERER

BRI ERKRBITETEE R&A
ERENAEBHNRER  BHIRE
THERMERSRE HekERTHEN
tERET -AKEK —WRE - #
BRASSENHXER EHE
PHEREENARARBTERLE
ENAE NEBRMAEHRLE
MARERR BABENERS
BAA URSEITEZ2EERR
RENKR - BT FLEBRBEA
BENMFAAE  AFEN TIER
BERREFOAIEIIAL - AZH
BRMEBER RSEEETH
BERR -FREEHLENEER
R-BATKERDELEZEN
e REBUHBREEESZF -
BRPBEEITRTLETEAEE
B WRTEHEL -
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X. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE T BRERREBBE

DATA SUMMARY

GREENHOUSE (“GHG”) EMISSIONS

Scope 1 : gE—

Total “g Tonnes CO.e  WE—&LES 336.45
Intensity 3 BEs Tonnes CO.e  WEZGALIREE 0.27
Scope 2 2 EE—2:

Total we Tonnes COe M- &ELiEE 20,565.72
Intensity 3 REs Tonnes CO.e  WE—GA{LIEEE 16.69
AIR EMISSIONS BRENRE

Nitrogen oxides AELY Tonnes i 0.28
Sulfur oxides ey Tonnes i 0.001
Particles BNy Tonnes i 0.03
HAZARDOUS WASTES BEEEEN

Solid Wastes Generated: EENEREY:

Total “E Tonnes i 203.28
Intensity ¢ BEs Tonnes A 0.16
Wastewater Discharged: Bk

Total BE Tonnes W 610.13
Intensity 3 BES Tonnes ] 0.49
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES BEBEEY

Solid Wastes Generated: EEXNEREY:

Total BE Tonnes W 8,643.59
Intensity 3 REs Tonnes [ 7.01
Wastewater Discharged: ERAEK:

Total “e Tonnes i 158,420.05
Intensity 3 REs Tonnes ] 128.52
PACKAGING MATERIALS USED B mAAEENR

FOR FINISHED GOODS

Total we Tonnes i 3,503.24
Intensity 3 BE3 Tonnes ] 2.84
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EERKERE#EE

B AR

ot I
ERTRE

CONSUMPTION
Electricity: En:
Total me MWh K 25,620.83
Intensity 3 RES MWh K 20.79
Gasoline: bad:
Total #e Litres iy 41,620.37
Intensity 3 REs Litres AP 33.77
Diesel: A
Total “ueg Litres A 15,576.40
Intensity ¢ BEs Litres D 12.64
Water Resources: *KER:
Total “e Tonnes i 159,030.18
Intensity 3 REs Tonnes W 129.02
PAPER CONSUMPTION REE
Production: EE:
Total BmeE Tonnes [ 32,415.66
Intensity 3 BES Tonnes [ 26.30
Office: WAZE:
Total Bwe Tonnes i 16.21
Intensity 3 BEs Tonnes WA 0.01
Notes: Hiat:
1 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the 1 BHEVERBAERDHE  LaRRLE
use of gasoline, diesel and refrigerant. EENEEAEREHERE -
2 Scope 2 represents indirect GHG emissions generated by the 2 HEEBBEAREEEMENRA]

use of purchased electricity from local power companies. NENMEENHEZEAEREHERE -

BRE /TEE/EREREUER
BRETHREE -

3 The emission/production/consumption intensities are calculated 3
in terms of every HK$1 million of revenue.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX B P IR
5| &5l

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

BXMRR HEREABREEI - REBERBREENER

HERE

BWEE

Reference Section

SEEMH

Aspect A: Environment
EBEARR
A1 Emissions Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants
regulated under national laws and regulations. Greenhouse
gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes are those defined by
national regulations.

ABERR FHBERAREBERBHER MAKERTHHES BER
BEBERVNELESH:
@ HE:&
b) BIFHBETABEARENHEBEIZRMAOINEH -

i BRFNERA|LY MELtHEREMIBEFOERLR
PIRENSREY - BEREBRE ALK Fik At:
B -DAEABRLCEY 2RABMR AT - BEEEEYIE
BRBOIFAESE -
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

BXMRR HEREABREEI - REERBRERER

RIE - e NERWRE

Reference Section
BEZEH

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B 5 U IR AL P TE AR R AR B B R

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

AR EMIERAL2 RERBAFREUEAZ)L(WEREE(WMUEGE
BEl - BEREFE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

BB AIERALS FEXAEEZENEE UHEFE)R

BESEN BEXRBITE) -

(3@ /) % & (a0 A

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

R BEMIERALL FELEZEZEMAECABETE) R (WER

BEEEN  BERBIE) -

) B E (40 LA

KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results

achieved.
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Summary

RERE — SFRONE
@»h#%ﬁ%%m
2

Environmental Protection
— Management
of Wastewater,
Management of
Disposal of Solid
Waste; Environmental
Performance Data
Summary

RIFERE — BKEERD
B ERBYEE
MER: RERRH
BEWE

Environmental Protection
— Management
of Wastewater,
Management of
Disposal of Solid
Wastes; Environmental
Performance Data
Summary
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R BBEVEE
MER RERBRH
BHE

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Emissions
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls

BRI -

HERERBRERS

“REERBRENER

Reference Section
BEEH

B WIS IRALD

KPI'A1.6

FISE IR 1R AL6

A2 Use of Resources

A2EREER

KPI'A2.1

RS A A HE 1R A2

KPI'A2.2

BREMIERA22

KPI A2.3

HAUREBEREN B R ATERR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.

RIEEBEEREZEREZEYN AL REEEENEIE
&ﬁﬁ BRE-

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BRERERBRERR KEEMRME)HBR

in storage,

i ARUBREE RE 8B EBF BIREZ -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

REAEASNEER /S ZELRWE K30 L7
EUTETERAZELEE(WMNEGEEEMN AR

M) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

BRKEREE(WMNASBEEEN BBERME) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
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Disposal of Solid

Wastes

RBRE — BKERE
BE - BEBENNR
BEER

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Resources Utilisation

RERE — BRERAN

e

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Resources Utilisation;
Environmental
Performance Data
Summary

RERE — BREAN
B RBERBEE
EES

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Resources Utilisation;
Environmental
Performance Data
Summary

RERE — ERERH
B RERRYE
mE

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Resources Utilisation
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BXERE -

HERERBRERES

“REERBERENER

RIE - e NERWRE

Reference Section
BEZEH

BISE M MR 1R A23

KPI A2.4

R EMIERA24

KPI A2.5

BB MIERA25

A3 The Environment
and Natural
Resources

ABRERAAER

KPI A3.1

BE 5 4 A HE 1R A3

Aspect B: Social

EEB:HE
B1 Employment

BilE &

il g RE ARSI R ERE -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

Sk BUE KR LR B EREE
EIRPAIERR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes), and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

PA R BR Tt R K R &

55 8RR 2
EBLHE -

EMHEEE A E) R

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
BEZETAHRERRAAERERNERNTENHBR
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HREBEDHRBERRARERNEAZEREKRE
BEBTYENTY -

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

FRFME@E BERER ITHEEH RE FF
Be il RE\RAREMTERERN:

@ BXR: K
() BFHETABEAZENEBLIZNENNER -
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RERE - EREADH
==

Environmental Protection
— Management of
Resources Utilisation;
Environmental
Performance Data
Summary

RIGRE — ERERD
B RBRBEE
BWE

Environmental Protection
— The Environmental
and Natural Resources

RERE - RBRELEA
BIR

Environmental Protection
— The Environmental
and Natural Resources

RIERE — BERBEA
BIR
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BXMRR HEREABREEI - REBERBERERER

Reference Section
BEEH

B2 Health and Safety

B2 ERZ 2

B3 Development and
Training

B3 & & & 3

B4 Labour Standards

B4% T %Rl

B5 Supply Chain
Management

B5ftE g EE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FRARHZ2IERERREEE#EBELEEN:

@ BmE: R

b)) BFHETABEAZENHEBMEEZRADNER -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills

for discharging duties at work. Description of training

activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal
and external courses paid by the employer.

FRARNEERTIAEREMNAARKRENRE -
EES -

1

A BIEBEREY  TeREaEENBEORNHRIE -

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labour.

BBAMIEETRRFSETIH:

@ HBE:&

b) ETFTHETABEAZENHBEERROIMER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.

BEMERNRE N GRAREER -
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Employment and Labour
Practices — Health
and Safety
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BIESR - BF
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K
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Employment and Labour
Practices — Training
and Development

EREHETESR — Hil
KR

Employment and Labour
Practices — Labour
Standards

BRESTER - 8T
]

Operating Practices
— Supply Chain
Management
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BXERE -

HERERBRERES

“REERBERENER

RIE - e NERWRE

Reference Section
BEZEH

B6 Product
Responsibility

B6EmE T

B7 Anti-corruption

BTR &S

B8 Community
Investment

B8 ERE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

ARMRHESURBNEFRRZS BE  BHEL
BEEURBREN:
@ EME: R

b) BETHETABEAZENHBERRADNER -

Information on:

5

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAVIEBE 9% RFEEEEN:

(@ BE: Rk

b) BEFHETABEAZENHBEERROIBER
Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

G

communities’ interests.
BRUHE2EAREREEMTHLERTENBEREEYR
EEEEELEMEIIE -

Operating Practices —
Product Responsibility

T
(i
Jk
h
|
ot
2o
i
[=5)

Operating Practices —
Anti-Corruption

IS
fii
J
i
|
X
)
A

Community Investment

HRKRE
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BN RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Q P Group Holdings

Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 152 to 247, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basic for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B BEN RS

RRMER

BMEREBZTESAMASEMNCER
FATEADETER c RMOEZFENT
EENETEEARSE X BE BT &R
EMBREIAENEETID PELE—F

HFIHEGE AMMESHNEREZL
RMEEMABMNETERIEHER -

J&8 3 1%
REFBEFMASHEMN(EXSF A
BRSADISFAD EMABLR BEX

CWEBTTARNEMEREES
(Ea

HEETER
AREFFTASRERMOFTRHE -
R AMEEMBERRNBTZRAE
BWEH ELEHEERMEBTER
REMBHRRMEABRRETRIEN
BT EHELTHEHRERBNER -
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision

for inventories write-down.

Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

BPEEATRNNERETZTHIMH
NFE MR B -

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

EMNENUNMNEEBRRETEE

Provision for inventories write-down

FEMREE

Refer to Note 4(c) (critical accounting estimates
and judgements) and Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRHEEMBEmERW T4 (EREH ML
# ) & M2t e

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held
inventories of HK$93,680,000 (2019:
HK$85,706,000), net of provision for write-
down of HK$20,334,000 (2019: HK$17,655,000).
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (“NRV”). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories’ selling
prices declined, costs to complete or selling
costs increased or they have become obsolete or
damaged.

RZEZEF+_A=+—HB XxEEBEFEF
593,680,000/ 7T(= & — N ¥ :85,706,000/8
TT) + 0Bk MR 5 520,334,000 T (=2 — N5
17,655,000/ 7T) c 7 B Th IR B AN B A] 2 1R B
(TR BENDCREEINR -WZEFEEE
T T IRARSHEN RN EMFE DB
B AR AR BEE KA -

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to management’s estimation of provision
for inventories write-down:
HRNEBEEERATEMRE S  HMADET T

Understood the methodology used by
management to determine the provision
for inventories write-down and evaluated
reasonableness of the methodology which
took into account of inventory ageing profile,
historical and post year-end usage and sales
data;

e THEREESFEMMBEMA L I
AREFEREREBER BEMNFHEBRERB
MK HE BB R AN AR

Understood and tested controls over
estimation of NRV of inventories and related
provision;
THREAAEFE R R FEM T RIEEE
15 #1211 4

Tested, on a sample basis, the inventory
ageing by comparing the inventory records
with the underlying documents;

e FHRMAAXHLBRFELHEMEAATFTER

A .
[FEa
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Key Audit Matter

HEEITEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

EANBAOMNEERAREFTSH

Management consistently applies a methodology
to make provision for inventories write-down.
Management determines the lower of cost
and NRV of inventories by considering the
estimated selling price of individual inventory
items in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs to complete and the estimated
selling expenses, their ageing profile and any
obsolescence or damages identified from
periodic inventory counts, and by reviewing their
subsequent usage and subsequent sales.

EREERERATRTEMABEN T L - B2
BERAZRAFEBBREFENFEREBENME
EERMMAFT TR ARG HER X « RN

NKERGEEREMBNNEMREREE UK
EHNEREAZRERHEE BEERFENRAR
AERFENRES

We focused our work on management’s provision
for inventories because significant judgements
and assumptions are required to be made to
determine the estimated selling price of individual
products, including historical sales record of
selling products of similar nature and expectation
of future sales based on current market conditions
and sales backlog.

BN ITIEEFREBENREGITE BRE
EERIE e Lt SED ML E XA B RERR
BREEHERULEERNBEHECHLERE
AR RTERIHENTERRKEE -

° Tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent
usage of raw materials and work-in-progress
by checking to the subsequent usage report
with the underlying documents;

e BB Eéﬁﬁ%ﬁi&ﬁﬁxﬁ Tl ORI
ARMERERMNEECRER

° Tested, on a sample basis, the NRV of
selected inventory items by comparing the
estimated selling price less costs to complete
and selling expenses with post year-end sales
data, sales backlog, current market analysis,
or manufacturing costing reports;

e BBAHBMABEEBRTIKARIEERXE
ﬁi%%%%%ﬁ AREKIHERE - Bl

MIZEAMABERARE  MEAAEER
WEE M RREE

° Observed management’s inventory counts to
identify any obsolete or damaged inventories;
and

. %ﬁﬁﬁﬁmffﬁ%wﬁ%Eﬂﬁ%iﬁ
Z2iFE

° Tested whether the inventory provisions at the
reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on aging profile and other parameters
in the Group’s inventory provision policy.

e RE BEEEFEREBRRXRTHRERMKIK
ﬁm%@éﬁﬁ”ﬁ S Em MR RN®mER
%mg S HERARE SEEEGFEREBR

ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁo

Based on the procedures described, we found
the management’s judgements and estimates in
relation to the provision for inventories write-down
to be supported by available evidence.
ARty HMAEREEEEAR
) HE R R ST B RIS R R X #F -

5 R B
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sze To Wai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED | #r&t8m M
STATEMENT OF PROFIT | 2 Jﬂjiﬁﬂﬁ xR
OR LOSS AND OTHER B

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FAT
Revenue W &= 5 1,232,631 1,193,641
Cost of sales 85 & A AR 8 (795,765) (828,083)
Gross profit E A 436,866 365,558
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih(E518), W F 58 6 (18,623) 10,131
Other income, net H U AFER 7 18,187 15,594
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEAX 8 (108,827) (99,181)
Administrative expenses TR 2 8 (165,236) (183,139)
Operating profit Pl =3 162,367 108,963
Finance income ﬂéﬁlﬁl)\ 10 1,925 101
Finance costs B & KA 10 (4,815) (7,618)
Finance costs, net B E KA F B (2,890) (7,517)
Profit before income tax RR BT 15 B A0 & F 159,477 101,446
Income tax expense Frigfif 2 11 (30,129) (17,158)
Profit for the year FRHF 129,348 84,288
Earnings per share for profit 7R B) BE 25 IR R E 4L 0
attributable to equity holders MHEREF
of the Company
— Basic and diluted earnings per — BREARAREERT
share (expressed in HK cents per (A= R AW R)
share) 12 24.57 2112
Other comprehensive income/ Hftt2E W% (&8N
(loss), net of tax &) :
Items that may be subsequently AREE P E R 2
reclassified to profit or loss HH
Currency translation differences BB E 5 37,892 (9,257)
Total comprehensive income for 772 7] £ 25 IR R FE (L
the year attributable to equity FTREZHEWFZEEHE
holders of the Company 167,240 75,031

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these & %
consolidated financial statements.
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2020

aE
ERBEE

—B_®F

BAUBRRE

2020 2019
—E—NF
HK$’000
FE T

HK$’000
FERT

Property, plant and equipment Y BENEE 15 383,082 343,985
Investment property B 17 2,135 2,135
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 122,130 120,759
Intangible assets EmEEE 18 28,407 25,814
Deposits b geira 23 33,842 18,917
Deferred income tax assets RILEFTEHEE 32 8,390 9,023
577,986 520,633
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 21 93,680 85,706
Trade receivables =871 HSZ R 22 233,248 167,007
Prepayments, deposits and other TE (NE= ﬁz i K&
receivables Eﬁﬁ!@”flm 23 35,089 58,650
Derivative financial instruments MTEESM I A 24 3,866 -
Income tax recoverable A Ug Bl FT 15 At 124 19,108
Pledged deposits EHEFFR 25 - 381
Cash and cash equivalents HehBeEEY 25 236,670 104,775
602,677 435,627
Total assets EE#E 1,180,663 956,260
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity AN TE RE S IR R E(L
holders of the Company =
Share capital fi& 2 16 5,320 1
Share premium & 190 (8 26 139,593 3,762
Reserves (G 26 639,454 530,734
Total equity EEEEHE 784,367 534,497

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

H N

15912475 ZHETEEZSEREY

BHREROAKE D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2020

WZE-TF+-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings EE 29 7,456 83,002
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS EE 32 16,598 15,843
Lease liabilities HEaRE 31 2,031 1,841
26,085 100,686
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables =Y Nl 27 122,423 92,095
Accruals, provisions and other FEFTEBR - BEREAM
payables JE - 5K IE 28 135,451 104,136
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS i & & 28,881 17,069
Borrowings EE 29 80,080 105,285
Lease liabilities HEAE 31 3,376 2,492
370,211 321,077
Total liabilities EEAE 396,296 421,763
Total equity and liabilities ExRkEEHE 1,180,663 956,260

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 247 Z152E247TE MG AP BFED R -

were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 ——4=A=+HEZEEe# & ST HIU
and were signed on its behalf. TEERREE -

CHENG Wan Wai YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth &% BE

Director Director EiEE &M

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these & R F159E247B 2 Mt AZEH A Y
consolidated financial statements. B EWBERE D -
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CONSOLIDATED | #5488 %
STATEMENT OF | #5-v-%r i as
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAABAANELR
Share Share Capital Statutory
capital premium reserve reserve  Translation Retained

(Note 16) (Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 26) reserve earnings Total

Kt EXflE  Erhk
7 126 1:26) ) BERE REAF )
HK$'000 HK$'000 ' : HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TH AT BT B TET

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 1 3,762 (3,686) 19,504 7,514 449 371 469,466
Prolfit for the year ERgd - - - - - 84,288 84,268
Other comprehensive loss ~ Ht2AFE
Currency translation differences ~ E%HEZE - - - - (9,257) - (9,257)
Total comprehensive income 2ERAAH - - - - 9,257) 84,288 75,031
Transactions with ownersin ~ EEFAUERBASH
their capacity as owners: ETHRS:
Dividends paid (Mofe 13) ERRE ) - - - - - (10,000) (10,000)
Statutory reserve ETEE - - - 4,207 - (4,207) -
- - - 4,207 - (14207 (10,000)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+ZA

=t-H w 3,762 (3,686) 23,711 (1749 512452 534497

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these & N E159F247H 2 i T BZZE &5 A 8
consolidated financial statements. BT AEKEL D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RARREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-T-_ZTHF+_A=1+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXNCE 2PN 1

Share Share Capital  Statutory
Capital  Premium Reserve Reserve Translation  Retained

(Note 16)  (Note 26/  (Note 26)  (Note 26) reserve  earnings Total
kx  ROEE  EARE  EERB
(fi#16)  (Wi#26)  (W#26)  (Wid26)  RERE  REEFA ait
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TéEn ThEn ThEn ThEn TiEn ThEn TéEn

At 1 January 2020 RZE-E%-§-R 1 3,762 (3,686) 23,711 (1,743) 512,452 534,497
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 129,348 129,348

Other comprehensive income  Eft2EHA
Currency translation differences ~ E£%HEZE - - - - 37,802 - 37,892

Total comprehensive income  EA2AUAEE

for the year - - - - 37,892 129,348 167,240
Paid up of capital ERER 1 (1) - - - - -
Capitalisation Issue ERLER 3,988 (3,988) - - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares Rtk

1,330 155,610 - - - - 156,940

Underwriting commissions and 238~ e R &t

other issuance costs - (15,790) - - - - (15,790)
Dividends paid Note 13) - - - - - (58,520) (58,520)
Statutory reserve - - - 3,211 - (3,21) -

5319 135,831 - 3,271 - (61,791) 82,630
At 31 December 2020 RZB-%%
tZA=1-H 5,320 139,593 (3,686) 26,982 36,149 580,009 784,367

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these & N E159F247H 2 i st BAZEH A 8
consolidated financial statements. HHmEWAERKE D °
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CONSOLIDATED | 2448 %
STATEMENT QOF | #= = =t Azt nwes

CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—E-EFE —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cash flows from operating RETEESHEERNE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEFRRS 33 191,556 171,618
Income tax refund/(paid) RSB R R () 2,075 (18,994)
Net cash generated from KETEBEHRSFE
operating activities 193,631 152,624
Cash flows from investing RETHMERERE
activities
Interest received 24 F B 1,925 101
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BER
equipment and deposit for A RE -
property, plant and equipment BENEHEIES (43,941) (42,742)
Deposit paid in respect of acquisition FLULEE — R B RAF D
of a subsidiary R (20,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁ’%%% % = &
property, plant and equipment &2 P15 RR 33 15,551 418
Purchase of intangible assets E%)\?ﬂiﬂ/ BE (1,256) (102)
Net cash used in investing activities & /EZETAIR & F5 (47,721) (42,325)

%EEA%1591247EZ W AZEHREH
53R R A Bk B8

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,‘/T\ fﬁﬂimni%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BT TF+-A=+—HIEFE

Cash flows from financing
activities

BMEZHMEREERE

2020

—B_®F

HK$’000
FERT

2019

—E—NF

HK$'000
TAET

Proceeds from borrowings BN TS RIE 77,000 89,426
Repayment of borrowings BEER (178,699) (129,738)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D PT 1S R I8 156,940
Dividends paid BRI E (58,520) (10, 000)
Payment for lease liabilities HEBEMNK (3,478) (3,791)
Listing expenses paid B ETHX (7,841) (4,879)
Interest paid B2 H B (3,727) 6, 913)
Release from pledged borrowing fEERE ?fi HER 381
Net cash used in financing activities B & EBFTRAIR & F58 (17,944) (65,895)
Netincreaseincashandcash BHERERESZEEY

equivalents 3 hn 7 &8 127,966 44,404
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRAESE

beginning of the year B 104,775 59,867
Effect of changes in foreign EEEHHTE

exchange rates 3,929 504
Cash and cash equivalents FRAAKBASH

at end of the year B 236,670 104,775

The notes on pages 159 to 247 are an integral part of these & EA%159i247E T RZEHREH
consolidated financial statements. T4 2% 89 48 B 2B 9
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NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading of paper products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 19 April 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3
of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders
of the Company, a total of 398,845,200 shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value
to the shareholders immediately before 16 January
2020 (the “Listing Date”) by way of capitalisation of
HK$3,988,452 (the “Capitalisation Issue”) from the
Company’s share premium account on that day.

On the Listing Date, 133,000,000 new shares were
issued at a price of HK$1.18 per share in connection
with the Company’s listing on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The net
proceeds from the global offering, after deducting
the underwriting commission and related expenses
payable by the Company in the global offering was
approximately HK$111.9 million.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied throughout the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

SRE SRR

—REH
RAT B —HREWBAT - HK
BRAATFERFRLALERES -

ARABRZE—N\FHA+NLERE
REREENE2ERRA(—N~—
FE=ZRED  KEFEEREBEDE
MEFEdMRNZIAERE2EEAR
nAE e ARAEMEMRESEEHU A
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman lIslands °

BEARRREBBHEEARESR -
& 1£398,845,200/% & #& ™ {E0.0178
THRMR - E-_EF—AF+B(L
MHBDEBEARA KM HEER
ER113,088,4527 7T ([ E &L 3 1T))
MERBETTREEZEZBNEBEDN
BRE -

RETMAE  ERARARE B
AERGFBERAFBER EHMEEKR
1.187% JT 19 B 1% ¥ 77133,000,000 %
FlGD o EHBRARFREIREE
ERNHBREMAESEEBERSE 2
KEEMSRBEFEHARINIES
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S REBRRERZ2IFEER
FEA e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
which are in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) are set out below. The consolidated
financial statements has been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment property and derivatives
financial instruments, which is carried at fair value. In
addition, the Group has consistently applied HKFRS
16 “Leases” throughout the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

() New standards and amendments to existing
standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
for the first time for their reporting commencing 1
January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
BEAGHERFIREE B S EREBSRUSFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB S ER B3R (BRI A)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BEENBHmELERFEIN  BEDS
B 7% HR 5 RSB TR (B FT )

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
T N\FHBERERIER

The new and amended standards and
interpretations did not have any impact on the
current period or any prior period and is not likely
to affect future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M aE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EEE(E)
(i) New standards and amendments to existing (i) AEEEAREANE IR
standards not yet adopted by the Group R IRB LR ZIEFTR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

after
RTIEHRHZ2%E
MENFEHBEX

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — 1 January 2021
4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and Phase 2
HKFRS 16

BEEGIERFEIN BAME MREERE - B-BER —E-—F—H—H

WEERFEAR BEEVBRE
ERNETH - BRAV KRS ER
FOR LBV K MEERIZE6

ACCEIF:)
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
EB G ERE165% Covid-19-1EB R H & TR —E-TFAXA—H
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018-2020
FENEER EREMBHREEN _ZFT-N\FE_ZT _T__F—-HA—H
—TFNFEUE
Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022
16 and HKAS 37
BERVBRELERNEISR BEG KBEBRBBA] —E-__%—H—H
TEERIE165 RE B &t £ 8|
F375% (B 5] )
HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 January 2023
or Non-current (amendments)
A ERF15 BEESBARDIFERY(KER) —E-=F—HA—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
ERMBREEREI75HR RiEa4 —ET=F—HA—H
HK Int 5 (2020) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) 1 January 2023
BEREREESR(ZZE_ZHF) ERREESR(ZEZEF) —E_=%—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 FEEE(EK)
(i) New standards and amendments to existing (i) <R[ ) R B 4R 9 8 /T 2 A
standards not yet adopted by the Group N IRB LR ZIEFTAR(E)

(Continued)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

after
RTIEHRKZ2%E
MW FEHBEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Asset between To be determined

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

EAMBHRELENZIOCRRE S REERABERFNEGELEZME BEHFETE

TR R E285% (8 5T &) MEELEITE
Certain new accounting standards and B A8 E T el & & % 8l
interpretations have been published that are LREBEVIIE-_Z-_ZFF+_A4
not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting =+ —HIWEH R EER
periods and have not been early adopted by the BAREEWARERMEN - 78 H
Group. These standards are not expected to have ZELEA TG HAEEREF
a material impact on the entity in the current or AR EHE RAITE R KK
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future RGEFERTE -

transactions.
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FMNESTOTHECONSOUDMEDFWANCMLSWHENENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.21 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

2

RA MBS ERAR MR

TEREFHEEE(HE)

2.2 B F

2.2.1

e AR
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EXAEBERKREAEAKR - B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gain or loss arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKFRS 9 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

164 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED E£2&£EZERER AT

TEREFEREHE(H)

2.2 @R (&)

2.21
@)

maAkR(E)

RXEE (&)

7R 62 ] DA K TR UG B A R
W VR IR A - W
WHETHFE B m AR
ERBEaMNETESAARBE
BEZLENDOHEREERE
Helg R FEIBRHEEE
1= bE B 3 16 1 U BB U5 AT
BEFENCHIASHAE -
FEREEOABEMBE DTS
HEWBHBNATEFE
W& B B 1% 3R 5 X RI AR E A 3%
AME Mt 8 EERIBRSN -

Yo B ME B A AN EE RSSO 8H e

HMEBEHIERTK  WE
77 55 B A5 A RO U RE O B R
BERNWBBEHMEREESZ
WERAHN A FESHTE:
EREHTEEENETMAAE
HEBNBEER -

AEEBERNTARARE
RWHEEHBRN R FERER - X
AREEER—BEELRAR)
REFENERES  REFE
B 7% ¥R &5 2 R 057 £ 18 25 T
ReeMERREMEEKEES) -
DEREZNIANETEE
AR REGENEREDD
BE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gain on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the
Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
are required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company that make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (HK$), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

2

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over estimated useful
lives as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvements

25 years
10 years, or over lease
term, whichever is the

shorter
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment property

Investment property is held for long-term rental
yields and is not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, it is carried at fair value. Changes
in fair values are presented in profit or loss as part of
other income.

2.7 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

(b) Computer software

Computer software licenses are stated at
historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost
over their estimated useful lives, which are five
years.

() Golf club membership

Golf club membership is stated at historical cost.
The club membership has an indefinite life which is
not subject to amortisation and is tested annually
for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

2

2.8

2.9
2.91

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

() those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

(i) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.
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2

2.9
2.9.1

29.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gain and loss
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
‘other gains, net’ in the period in which it arises.

2.9
2.9.1

29.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

2

2.9
2.9.3

294

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model:

o Trade receivables
o Other receivables
o Pledged deposits
° Cash and cash equivalents

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

To manage risk arising from pledged deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, the Group only transacts with
state-owned or reputable financial institutions. There
has been no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. It excludes
borrowing costs. Costs is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESGHREME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 2B RERBEEEY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs 216 E R RER KK
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, BERMPRAFEMBEEENR
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are SRA)ER o (EREBRIZEHEK AR
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference FIBR AR R 5 X AN 18 8 FT 15 3K
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and ENEREBELREMERE - AR
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated ERHAANERMNEENGEaER
statement of profit or loss over the period of the ~MER o

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are EREEEHRBEAEDLDHE B
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the RIMBEAT RELERBEX
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility NOBRIBRARBERXSHAK -
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred EHBEAT ZEABEEERR
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no HEBRER HAUEISRETZE
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the ERHERBRRBEIEI D2 BRI
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a MEBERT ZEBEBRABAELREARM
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over BE RGO TENKIE - XN E A
the period of the facility to which it relates. AR E B A LA o

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the ERDBEARBAG  KWAKEA
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of EEGEHENABEEZEERENBE
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the EEEREREE D12ME ARIFRIN ©

reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are AEEEBERNKE BEXEES
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or EREEN —MEFEERKE
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during REKREELRBEEERHERR
the period of time that is required to complete and RAHHEREMEZ—BRHER
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying BRER 6ERBREERTREER
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial RESTEEREBERAETHE
period of time to get ready for their intended use or EMEE -

sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in HMERKAREEBREZHE -

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

217 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statements of financial position
date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the consolidated
statement of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

217 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(0)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(@)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be
used to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate outside Hong Kong are required to
participate in the central pension schemes (the
“Pension Schemes”) operated by the respective
local governments. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll
costs to the Pension Schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Pension Schemes
is to pay the ongoing contributions under
the Pension Schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Schemes.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, after taking into consideration of the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
and certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up
to the date of consolidated statement of financial
position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Long service payments

Employees who have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group are
eligible for long service payments.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payment expected
to be made. The provision is measured as the
present value of expected future payments,
consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Provisions (Continued)

219 B (&)
BERARAMNXIZRBHTEM

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Contingent asset is not recognised as receipt of the
amount remains uncertain.

2.20 Revenue recognition

The Group principally derives revenue from sales of
products.

Revenue from the sales of products is recognised
when control of the products are transferred to
customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold, stated net of
discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

(@) Original equipment manufacturer (‘OEM”) sales

Revenue from OEM sales (mainly including
products of greeting cards, tabletop games,
educational items and premium packaging items)
directly to customers is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, in accordance with
relevant shipping terms, to customers.

(b)  Web sales

Revenue from web sales (mainly including
products of playing cards, tabletop games and
puzzles) directly to customers is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when
the products are accepted by the customers, to
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Upon entering into a contract with customer, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods to the customer. The combination of
those rights and performance give rise to a net asset
or a net liability depending on relationship between
the remaining rights and performance obligations.
The contract is an asset if the measure of remaining
conditional rights to consideration exceeds the satisfied
performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is a
liability and is recognised as a contract liability if the
measure of remaining performance obligations exceeds
measure of the remaining rights.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

2.21 Leases

The Group leases certain land, properties and motor
vehicles. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date on which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any incentives receivable; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

2 FEETHEHEE)

221 & (&)
X ®IEHEEN S R(WEE

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if °

the lease reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made on or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term or less than 12 months.

2.22 Research and development expenses

Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria to capitalise as an
intangible assets are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

Risk management is carried out by management of
the Group. Formal and informal management meetings
are held to identify significant risks and to develop
procedures to deal with any risks in relation to the
Group’s businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA MBS ERARMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk

(@)

()

Foreign exchange risk

Subsidiaries of the Company operate in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong
Kong with most transactions denominated in either
Renminbi (“RMB”), Hong Kong dollars or United
States dollars (“US$”). The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through sales and
purchases transactions that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of
the relevant subsidiary. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure mainly arises from the
exposure of RMB, EUR and US$. As Hong Kong
dollars is pegged to US$, the Group believes the
exposure to transactions denominated in US$
which are entered into by group companies with
a functional currency of Hong Kong dollars to be
insignificant.

The Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the level
of foreign currency receipts and payments. The
Group ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time. The Group also regularly reviews
the portfolio of local and international customers
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, approximately
HK$87,536,000 and HK$188,287,000 of the
Group’s borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars respectively. At present, the
management does not expect that there will be
any significant foreign exchange risk associated
with the Group’s borrowings and the Group did not
use any financial instruments to hedge its foreign
exchange risk arising from the Group’s borrowings
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong
Kong dollars with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$317,000 and HK$150,000
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange loss/gain on translation of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents and accruals, provisions
and other payables denominated in non-functional
currency of the relevant group companies.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly related to the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group’s borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, if interest
rates increased or decreased by 50 basis points
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit would decrease or increase
by approximately HK$365,000 and HK$786,000
respectively as a result of increase or decrease in
net interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate short-term bank deposits
(Note 25) and lease liabilities (Note 31). The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and bank balances,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. However, the exposure in this regard
is considered to be minimal as the bank balances
are all short-term in nature. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest
SO as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited with
banks and financial institutions and trade receivables.

Credit risk on trade debtors is managed by the
management of the individual business units and
monitored by the Group’s management on a group
basis. Most customers are sizable and renowned
companies. Management assesses the credit quality
of smaller customers by considering their financial
position, past experience therewith and other relevant
factors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.
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3.1
(o)

NCWESTOTHECONSOLE%THDHNANCMLSWHEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has set up long-term cooperative
relationship with these customers. In view of the history
of business dealings with the customers and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability of trade and
other receivables based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there are any disputes
with the debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

In respect of cash deposited with banks and financial
institutions, the credit risk is considered to be low as
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating

° external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
customers’ ability to meet its obligations
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MXEKREREE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 KEKBEZERE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EERRE)
e actual or expected significant changes in the s EPHRKREFEBERNTEHUD
operating results of customers MEREH
e  significant increases in credit risk on other financial . ?iif' MEMESRITANEER
instruments of customers m B E RN
e  significant changes in the expected performance s XPHEHRBARITA/ABEERX
and behavior of customers, including changes in Bt  AREAEERPNRE
the payment status of customers in the Group and MELREEFEEZL -

changes in the operating results of the customers.

() Trade receivables () EZEWRHIE

The Group applies the simplified approach to AEBKABEEREBHE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by WEEAFORBETNTELE
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime ER BT IR B SZ???%/‘D??
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. RMEESBEWKREEAS

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics EHEEBERE A&5E %
and the days past due to measure the expected BEERBREFHAE S EHHEEK
credit losses. During the years ended 31 N EEHEEEBE REE
December 2020 and 2019, the expected losses ZEZEFERE-NFF =
rate for customers of sales of goods is minimal, A=+—BItH&E ZERB%HF
given there is no history of significant defaults from W EKREEPHEKEL LR
customers and insignificant impact from forward- RAEERTOTETER
looking estimates. The assessed expected credit F’Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’if Y2 BEEBEE
losses for the trade receivables are not material. RExE - BHRWKIE 2 &7

fﬁiﬁﬁmméﬂ BRI FEK -

The Group made no write-off of trade receivables REBEE-Z-_ZFER-_ZFT—AN
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and F+=—RA= + HIEFE &
2019. S B S E 5 e W RIE o

The Group has significant concentration of credit AEEBEREEFPNEXRER
risk from customers. As at 31 December 2020 and WEERR RZZFEZZTFK
2019, 75% and 72%, respectively of total trade —E-NF+ZA=+—8"
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest X Q REBRKEPHERK
customers. Based on the past payment history, 2 REE 5 W K IE 2 %EE’J
the directors believe that the credit risk inherent 5% K72% o BB E R

in Group’s outstanding trade receivables from this B BEFTRRKBE AR Rif
group of customers is low. ZEREEKRERESE WK

MEEFEERBRRIE -
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iR ISR MY aE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREKREREE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 A BEZERE)
(o) Credit risk (Continued) ) EERKE)
(i) Trade receivables (Continueqd) () EBZENFEE)
The Group monitors the outstanding debts from MR EERRRAREY K&
its customers individually due to the concentration EEREEETPHREER
of credit risk. Based on historical payment trend, o ARNBENRBE  BE
there is no correlation between the risk of default EHRB A/\tﬁﬁf_uﬁl iR 5 2 [
occurring and the collection past-due status as WERAE REEPHNEET
long as there is no significant change in the credit BRI EmAEMEREE - BE
rating of the customers. Historically, the Group’s AEBBEAR R K E®EMRE
loss arising from risk of default and time value of BEHEAEANEBNUNZE -
money is negligible.
(i) Other receivables (i) E A EKFIH
Other debt instruments at amortised cost include REHEKAGTENAMERT
other receivables. BB ¥E H b W KIE o
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, management RZEZZEFEFR_ZFT—NEF
assessed that the expected credit losses for the +ZA=+—H8" % ﬁ T
other receivables and amounts due from related EEVEBRGDEEE - HiE
parties are not material when they do not have WHEzBHEERR & EK
default history and the issuer has a strong capacity BAE: FRIBEYAE K BHET
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the AREHRNAEBERSEITHSE
near term. REERERBHEEN -
(i) Pledged deposits and cash and cash (i) EBRFFEAXAREEREZ
equivalents FEY
To manage the risk arising from pledged deposits BREERBEEMTRU LR
and cash and cash equivalents, the Group only CRAESEEYHNRR K&

transacts with reputable commercial banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial institutions.
There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions. The expected
credit loss of pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is close to zero.

BEEARESENHFRRITUR
BEZSNERMERETR
S T ERZZLHERE
BERZELENRLS SR
FRUARRAENREEEDLZ
BHMEEERRELOT -
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==

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated

with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks.

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s management aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by maintaining availability under committed
credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve which comprises cash and cash
equivalents (Note 25) and undrawn banking facilities
(Note 30) on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal to their carrying
amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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KRB MR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEKREREE)
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 A BEZERE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBESRAR(E)

Within
1yearor Between Between
repayable 1 and 2 2and 5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total

L E

REREE -FEMEF WEEEF BFEMNL @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL  FAET  FET  TET AR

As at 31 December 2020 W=-Z-E&+=H

=+-H
Trade payables B SR HE 122,423 - - - 122,423
Accruals, provisions and At ER  BER

other payables (excluding Htb fe T 5008
accrued staff costs, other (TEEEET
taxes payables, contract P - B A
liabilities and provision for ME- BHEBER
social insurance and housing ?\iﬁ% BRERE

provident fund) NESRE) 51,148 - - - 51,148

Borrowings (including interest  f& 2 (B 4E fE 14 5 8)
payable) 86,271 - - - 86,271
Lease liabilities MEEE 3,484 1,553 526 - 5,563
263,326 1,553 526 — 265405

As at 31 December 2019 R=-Z-h&E+=A

=+-H
Trade payables BHENFIE 92,095 — - — 92,095
Accruals, provisions and Bt ER  BER

other payables (excluding Hfth fE R
accrued staff costs, other (TEERHET
taxes payables, contract P - B A
liabilities and provision for ME- BHEBER
social insurance and housing ~ # & & & {F &

provident fund) NESRE) 22,982 — — - 22,982

Borrowings (including interest &3 (B2 & &M F 8)
payable) 134,826 36,731 25,463 - 197,020
Lease liabilities HEARE 2,563 1,759 105 - 4,427
252466 38490 25568 ~ 316524
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses its capital and bank borrowings to
finance its operations.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings

(include bank borrowings and obligations under finance
leases) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

3.2

Bt % R B E E ()

EXERER

AEMERAANETHRAAE
B SR WY BE ) - AT A IR R IR
15 01 9 S0 75 L ft ) 25 4 B 5 4R R

mARRFHREEARBABKE
iEXK AEENBBEBEE® LIR
TERREXHRHEES -

ﬁiﬁ?—irﬁmﬁiélei%% RNEE A
RN FRENKRE - MR RE

i/ A BT EEEEENR
DIET
R HE AT CAEBETR

BEREXREE t?%’?%?éqzli : EZtt
RKABHFRGIARK &

B F BRI B AR (’\ﬂ]% fE 1 fﬁ ?X

&EM’W EAFEIRRAEEREEH
EWs sziii'%ﬁ?;zi E\Mﬂﬂﬁ
ﬂ%ﬁﬁmﬁ’]ﬁéﬁ\ I5tE

2020 2019

—E-EF —NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Borrowings RN 87,536 188,287

Lease liabilities HE&E 5,407 4,333
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BHekReEEY

(Note 25) (H1i225) (236,670) (104,775)

Net (cash)/debt Be) BEBFERE (143,727) 87,845

Total equity T% W B R 784,367 534,497

Gearing ratio ERBELE N/ATE A 16.4%
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3.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
Fair value estimation

The Group does not have any financial assets/liabilities
that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangement and similar agreements during the year.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
financial assets or financial liabilities which were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting or similar
agreements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the
PRC and Hong Kong. Judgment is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates for whether additional
taxes may be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

3

3.3

3.4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Current and deferred income taxes
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and taxation charges in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, unlisted
securities) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated allowance on inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and applicable
variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of a similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to
industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. Such estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B B R M

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BRI HFTRAEE)
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e) FEMEERE

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount
of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined
based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a
five-years-period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates. These growth rates are consistent with
forecasts included in industry reports specific to
the industry in which each CGU operates. Details
of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions and
impact of possible changes in key assumptions
are disclosed in Note 18.

Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the valuation models
for impairment review purpose. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment could materially affect
the result of the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial condition and results
of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the key assumptions applied, it may be
necessary to take additional impairment charge to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

Revenue I &

m
Sales of paper and other products HEMAR MR HEAM

5 WHERKDIEFR
(a) W=

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-HA=+t—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-hF
HK$’000

= i
HK$’000
TERT TAET

1,232,631 1,193,641

Sales of goods are recognised at the point in time when
a group entity has delivered products to customers and
fulfilled all the performance obligations as stipulated in
the sales contracts.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations were not disclosed.

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used for making strategic
decisions. The chief operating decision-maker is
identified as the executive directors of the Group.
The executive directors consider the business from a
service perspective and assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance. These reports are prepared on the same
basis as the consolidated financial statements.

The management has identified two reportable

segments based on sales channels, namely (i) web
sales and (ii) OEM sales.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WakosHERE)
INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information

The segment information provided to the executive
directors for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

(b) 7 BEH
ARTEERANBE-_T=-F
E=E-NE+-A=Z+-ALEFE
M BERMT

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZF+-H=+—HLEE
Web sales OEM sales Total
OEM& & #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T F#E T

MIHE
HK$’000
FHET

Segment revenue from

external customers 7 2B U 7= 157,988 1,074,643 1,232,631
Cost of sales iR DN (40,677) (755,088) (795,765)
Gross profit eyl 117,311 319,555 436,866
Other losses, net HEMEEFE (18,623)
Other income, net EH b U A FE 18,187
Selling and distribution HERDERAX

expenses (108,827)
Administrative expenses THHX (165,236)
Finance costs, net B & K A F BE (2,890)
Profit before income tax B FIT 15 %4 Al 4 A 159,477
Income tax expense FIsBiA (30,129)
Profit for the year F N A 129,348
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued)

Segment revenue from

5 WERIHBER(E)

(b) 2 #EF (&)

Year ended 31 December 2019
HEZ-NF+ZA=T—BLFE
Web sales OEM sales Total
OEMSH & st

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

WubiH &
HK$’000
TR

external customers o 2P U == 103,512 1,090,129 1,193,641
Cost of sales 85 & B AR (28,767) (799,316) (828,083)
Gross profit E 7 74,745 290,813 365,558
Other gains, net H b 0 355 58 10,131
Other income, net H b Ug A SERE 15,594
Selling and distribution HERDHERAX

expenses (99,181)
Administrative expenses THAX (183,139)
Finance costs, net &R AR H R (7,517)
Profit before income tax B FIT 15 %4 A1 i ) 101,446
Income tax expense Frig M2 (17,158)
Profit for the year F N5 T 84,288

Revenue from major customers who have individually
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

RKEFEEPRP(BMMAEHBE W=
10% 8 A E) Myl zs a0 T

Customer A
Customer B
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BEFA
EFB

2020 2019
—g-®f —n4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FA& T
299,625 504,150
304,285 208,366
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WakaIER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 EER (&)
Revenue from external customers by location, based on BEINBE®H - b2 E 5 2 5
the destination of delivery, are as follows: HEPW=MT:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t-ALEE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER AT
The United States of America x 852,848 898,883
Europe &M 197,261 138,419
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BREED) 97,059 95,511
Others H A 85,463 60,828
1,232,631 1,193,641

Non-current assets, other than deferred income tax EREEE(RELEGREERI)

assets, are located as follows: MEMT:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+T—-HLEEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

F& T F& 7T

The PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BEEE) 569,596 510,889
The United States of America x - 721
569,596 511,610
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6 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 6 Ha(HE) WRFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-BA=+—HILEE
2020 2019
—B®HF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FA T
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih(BE) WEFE
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain & 5 (E518), Wz (22,005) 6,360
Fair value loss on investment property & &EME QA FE
18 — (140)
Fair value gain on derivative financial TESMmTARAFERE
instruments 3,866 —
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEW ¥ - MENEZEZ
and equipment (B18), k= (484) 3,911
(18,623) 10,131
7 OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HMWAFEHE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-ALER
2020 2019
—g-gs -—T A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Other income, net Hfth yg A F 5
Rental income a2l A 49 48
Sale of scrap materials 8 & BE B 11,373 11,501
Insurance claims RERE - 391
Government grants (Note) BBy (Hf 7t 6,206 3,176
Others H A 559 478
18,187 15,594
Note: ik
This mainly represents government grants received from certain PRC ZEIEREBE_Z_ZFR-_Z-NF
government authorities in relation to export credit insurance, research TZA=+—HBIEFEE BETHPEMBIK
and development expenses for the years ended 31 December 2020 NH#EREOGEARBREAZERAMESH
and 2019 and the receipt of subsidy under the Employment Support BE#REBEE T T+ -_/A=+T—H
Scheme of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government IEFERBEEBEAITEHE BRI ET S
for the year ended 31 December 2020. L ER &Y 8 B o
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iR ISR M aE
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 EBMEBEESHHAX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—BA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-BF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FAT
Raw materials and consumables used  Fr B R £ & 5H 7 & 427,320 405,581
Changes in inventories of finished goods X & M ¥ K f 2 17 & &
and work in progress 2,002 (226)
Sub-contracting charges "BEEA 123,246 146,949
Electricity expenses BERY 17,280 19,315
Repair and maintenance R PNE 13,617 16,244
Transportation expenses EHE A 56,171 48,282

D

Employee benefits expenses (including EE®FIFX (REES

directors’ emoluments) B %) 300,018 320,422
Lease expenses HERXZ 484 1,007
Technical maintenance support 0T 4 v > R 4,401 9,080
Provision of inventory obsolescence I BB E 1,248 3,406
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 6,805 7,413
Amortisation of intangible assets | EESE 400 184
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELZRETE

equipment 44,637 48,599
Legal and professional fee FEMEXER 6,262 4,510
Auditor’s remuneration % B &7 B
— Audit services — BERRB 1,850 1,650
— Non-audit services — EBEZRH 513 —
Listing expenses FHAX 1,166 7,573
Others Hi 62,408 70,464
Total cost of sales, selling and HEMKRA  HERDH

distribution expenses and A RITHAE 8%

administrative expenses 1,069,828 1,110,403
The research and development expenses charged for HE_Z-_ZFR-_FT—NF+=A
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were ST+ -—RALEFREXNORERXS
approximately HK$23,285,000 and HK$26,898,000 R 47 £23,285,0007% 7T K. 26,898,000
respectively. BT o
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 EERINHZ(BREEEM
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ €)
EMOLUMENTS)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—BA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—EBE-EE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBx FH& T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e Al KR EEL 262,212 264,261
Pension costs defined contribution plans E K& pk &K — REH
&t &l 28,543 42,021
Other employee benefits HifEEEHN 9,263 14,140
300,018 320,422

(a) Independent non-executive Directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
Directors during the year were as follows:

(a) BAFHITES
AEERBIIERTEE LN
MR

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—BLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas, MH PREZIESCAE - REFE 230 —
Prof. Cheng Man Chung Daniel, B JE A SR E
BBS, MH, JP B EEHE .
P N 230 —
Mr. Ng Shung, JP (Australia) RefkE  K¥EHL
(CRARF ) 230 —
690 —

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive Directors during the
year (2019: nil).

Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas, MH, Prof. Cheng Man
Chung Daniel, BBS, MH, JP and Mr. Ng Shung,
JP (Australia) were appointed as independent
non-executive Directors of the Company on 20
December 2019 with effect from 11 January 2020.
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 REERMNEX(BIEESHE)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Executive Directors and the chief (b) HITESRFETHAER
executive
The remuneration of the Executive Directors for the BHE_Z-_ZTEFR-_ZT-NF
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set +Z A=+ —HILFE AT
out below: EENHMEINDOT

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-R-RESCRCT-ALFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ and benefits  to pension

Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
BER EIpEfe

ik e REEL LUk BT h)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR Tén Tén Téxn TEn

Executive Directors

— Mr. Cheng Wan Wi - 1,070 200 1,178 18 2,461
— Mr. Yeung Keng W, Kenneth - 2,210 200 293 18 2,121
— Mrs. Liu Shuk Yu, Sanny - 1,950 200 798 18 2,966
— Ms. Hui Li Kwan - 650 750 99 18 1,517
— Mr. Chan Wang Tao, Thomas - 1,540 1,500 460 18 3,518
— Mr. Mak Chin Pang - 1,085 1,500 33 18 2,976

- 8,505 4,350 3,196 108 16,159
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 EEEFMEXX(BREEML)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(b) Executive Directors and the chief (b) HITESRFTETHAER
executive (Continued) (&)

Year ended 31 December 2019
HEE-NET-R=1-HI%E

Employer's
Discretionary Alowances and  contrioution to
Name of Directors EZA Fees Salaries honuses  benefits in kind pension scheme

o e BEEL 9
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Bt TaR TEr TR TaR

Executive Directors
— Mr. Cheng Wan Wai RELE - 870 - 12357 18 2,045
— Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth ik - 2,210 - 292 18 2,520
— Mrs. Liu Shuk Yu Sanny TT - 1,950 - 815 18 2,783
— Ms. Hui Li Kwan Eqz - 650 650 127 18 1,445
—Mr.Chan Wang Tao Thomas - BZE%4 - 1,540 1,300 439 18 3297
— Mr. Mak Chin Pang - REELE - 1,085 1,300 364 18 2,167
- 8,30 3,250 3,394 108 15,057
Mr. Cheng Wan Wai, Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth, RZFE—NFHATNALE &
Mrs. Liu Shuk Yu Sanny, Ms. Hui Li Kwan, Mr. %f:pf‘aét BEMETE - BN
Chan Wang Tao Thomas and Mr. Mak Chin Pang WMLt FFMEBLL BREE
were appointed as executive Directors of the SERERBLEEZEZAR
Company on 19 April 2018. NEINHHITESE °
The remuneration shown above represents EXF TR IEZEESIER
remuneration received from the Group by AEEBEWNBARIcEEHEE
these directors in their capacity as directors or ﬁﬁ@ﬂi’iluﬁﬂymi‘ﬁ B o TE}HH
employees of the subsidiaries of the Group. No EEREBE_Z-_ZFR=
directors waived any emolument during the years —hLF+ZA=+—H ﬁEE
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. MELEMRMBME -
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Executive Directors and the chief
executive (Continued)

No director fees were paid to these directors in
their capacity as directors of the Company or the
operating companies and no emoluments were
paid by the Company or the operating companies
to the directors as an inducement to join the
Company or the operating companies, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include five directors for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
respectively, whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in Note 9(b).

Directors’ retirement and termination
benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries’ undertaking
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for early termination of appointment
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’
services

No payment was made to any former employers
of the directors for making available the services
of them as a director of the Company during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

fre SRR M

9 EERARX(BEEEME)

(&)

(b) ITEERETETHAE
(#8)
REBEE_ZEZ-_ZFE-_F—N

(c)

(d)

(e)

FH+ZA=1+—B1FE #
EHIEAARRNTXNEERAE
%ﬁﬁrﬁ?ﬁ%%iﬁi%@i '
il AR ELATTEF‘?%
%iﬁ@@fﬂ%bu)\z&

ﬁ@”&ﬁ?z&%ﬁgﬂ/ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

h
g -

EEBEHFAL
BHE_T_TFR-_T-NAF
TZA=+—HLEFE X%
ErE&eaHALERARE
= HM e R E90) 251
DT ER

ESRAREBERER

REBEEZ-_ZEEFER=-_FT—AN
F+A=+—BLFEE #
BEEREBEBAEREARAL
HMB AR EHK 2 Bt R% M
T A 3k E WA R KA I o

REBEEZ-_ZEEFER-_FT—AN
FH+-A=Z=+—HBLFE #
EREERAIKRIEZTEmMIHN
ERIHE -

REHREERBEOF=H
REKE

REBEE-Z-_ZFRER=_FT—AN
¢+_H_+ HiIEFE  #
BERESFHAEARAEZESZMM
EEMIAREIXIESTIMNME
Al SRIE ©
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 35, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or
at any time during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

9 EERARX(BEEEME)

(#%&)

(f)

(9)

ERERESE  ZTZEE
EEFNZEAEBREZ
ZEEERENEBNE
F HUERREMRS
& &

REE-_ZE-_ZTFRER_F—N
F+_A=+—HLEFE  #
BAES XRIZESEHH
FANBRREZEESFHE
MERBNER BUEZRHE
MRS o

ESRXE  ZHIAEN
THERER

B sE35FTHE B E N - AEE
METVEASBEXKEHEE
KRB EEHEEIBERNEAF
BEEAEEZMRFRKER
TECEFRIE-NF+Z
A=+ —RBIFEXMAEM[ET
BHEARS THREH -

10 B E R A FEE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-ALEE

2020 2019
—EB-FF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Finance income Al & WA
Bank interest income AT F B A 1,925 101
Finance costs Rl & B A
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEFRMNERAX (4,671) (7,477)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMNERAX (144) (141)
(4,815) (7,618)
Finance costs, net mERRFEE (2,890) (7,517)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

RAMTEERARMEE

11 IEHEAX

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+t-ALEE

2020 2019

—EZZF —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TF#& T T3 7T

Current income tax B EA BT 15 29,270 16,478
Deferred income tax IR EFT13 859 680
30,129 17,158

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for each of
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC
are subject to the PRC Corporate Income Tax at the
rate of 256% during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiary, Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited (3R Z=& B ER| B R A F]), was accredited as a
high-tech enterprise, and is entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for three years since 2017. The
Company has renewed the identification of high-tech
enterprise for three years since 2020.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC,
certain entities of the Group qualified as small-scale
and marginal profit enterprises. As a result, they were
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 20% and a reduction
in tax base of between 50% and 75% during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The subsidiary established and operated in Vietham is
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at the rate of
20% during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No provision for the United States of America profits
tax has been made as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in the United States of
America during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

HE_Z-_ZFR-_FT—NF+=A
=+—BLEFE BEMNEWIIZ
i 51 P& &R 7% i F) A B &A16.5% 1E
BE

REBEE_ZE-_TFR T -—NF+=
A=+—BLFE RFBEKIZK
K B R B B 1225% M) T K 8
WA ERTER -

RiERBAMERR AR AER
B AR RS RERIERA A
EREABHEMLYE YA-F
—CE AR = E15% 0 8 B B
Ko AARAEEMELE T -F
FRANSFBIEMEERE -

BIEFBREREREREZR A&HE
ETERAGERKANREEES
BEREANNLE -BAlt  ZEEER
REBEE-_ZT-_ZEFR-_FT—NF+=
AZ+—BULEFEAZF20%MHMER
TR R E50% E75% M) B & o

REBEZE-_TF+-_H=+—8H
IFFE - BERBMAST &EERH
BAR BEZ20% M G Mm%
g o

REBEE_ZE-_ZTFR_FT-NF+=
A=+ —HLFEMEREZHFE
MIEHBE HTHERAEE Y EE
EREE T ERB G F o
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RA MBS ERARMEE

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands and Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the British Virgin Islands and Cayman
Islands during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits
in the respective countries/jurisdictions as follows:

11 FREBAX(E)

BEABEBAHELRRAEHE X
BRER AEERBE-_ZE=-F
FRZFE-NFT_A=1T—HLHF
EHECLBHBRAHEERHASHE
EENEMTEH -

AR E B P15 B AT A A &Y R R B4R R
B, BERE R & A E A E A
RAENERTBEAEUTER:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2020 2019

—E-FF —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT F& T

Profit before income tax K BT 15 84 B0 & 159,477 101,446

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBER & EER
applicable to profits in the respective i M) 3 A HYE A R

countries/jurisdictions AESHMNIE 29,595 17,963

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose I~ A] 1 %% 52 2,959 2,102

Income not subject to tax BARB KA (1,030) (567)
Tax effect of deductible temporary IR B A 0] 0 R ET B

differences not recognised EBRNR B E (67) (29)
Additional tax deduction for research Bt 2% 58 SN I8 0O

and development (2,615) (3,019)

Tax losses not recognised RERFHIABE 2,265 1,704
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BA A ARERL

tax losses T8 B 1B (103) (195)

Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC HFEEEM XN T E (651) (510)

Tax exemption = (224) (291)

Tax expense WA 30,129 17,158

The weighted average tax rate was 18.9% (2019:
16.9%). The increase is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective
countries.
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 526,549,180 (2019:
399,000,000), as if the 399,000,000 new shares issued
pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note
1) had been issued on 1 January 2019.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

Earnings

RAMTEERARMEE

12 AN E SRR EAG G B

BRER

EREARBINTIIERAERF Eﬁ
= h%}ﬂﬁiﬁqmﬂ& il
526,549,180 I (= & — N, %F -

399,000,000 f% 17) & @HXE’JEN&
R E - BORIEEARNEET(E

& S FTsE1) 2 17 #399,000,000/% #1
B ER-_Z—hNhE—A BT -

AEEBRBEZE_T_ZTFR_-F
—NWE+ZRA=+—HBLEEEL &
ERTHEEHEELRR -

58

BEREARNEEFRNT

HEtE

ERATE

27

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+t—HILEE

2020 2019
—E—NF

—E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET

Profit attributable to equity holders PIN/NESI B Hx%
of the Company, used in the basic e R (AR ER
and diluted earnings per share %ZIK&%E%Q%U &

calculations E) 129,348 84,288
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ire g maR MR

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations

(A&

12 ARAEERREL SR
BEREN(E)

gi)

Number of share

&g =]
2020 2019
—E-NF
‘000

SE L
’000
F ¥

38 R A0 DN #E S 13 8K
P 2 AN #E
BMOEE)

526,549 399,000

13 DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company declared and paid an interim dividend
of HK$10,000,000 to its then shareholders of the
Company prior to the Listing in January 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company declared and paid a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK9.0
cents per ordinary share for an aggregate amount of
HK$47,880,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company declared and paid an interim dividend of
HK2.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total
dividend of HK$10,640,000.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of HK12.0 cents per ordinary share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$63,840,000 is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on 18 May 2021.
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13 KB

REE-_ZE-—NF+_A=+—8H
IEFE - $ AIER_FT_FTF—H
FHRAAARFERNBRESTRE X
A< AR BA % 810,000,000 7t ©

RBE-FT-TFE+-A=+—8
LEFE AR TE?J%ZI_Y hﬁ

BRI EERE B H§9.o>‘% fil (%M %E
447,880,000/ 7T) °

%ﬁi:%:é¢+:ﬂz+fa
WEFEE  ARFE TR &R H
BEFRE @HXQO/ il - & Kk %
& 210,640,000 7T °

mMEBEE—_E-_FTFF+_HA=+—H
FTFEEZERARBRESRE B
f%12.07% 1L (B% B 48 %8 /63,840,000
BTN EEENARR T ——
FRA+TN\BRTHEREREAF
AEHRE



NOTESTOTHEGONSOmexa)HNANGMLSWHEMENTS
KRB MR M

14 KB A
R-E-TE+=A=+—B0HB
ARFEMT :

14 SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
as follows:

(i) Country of incorporation/

establishment; Issued and
(ii) Principal country of paid-up
operations; capital/
(iii) Date of incorporation/ registered  Effective interest
Name of subsidiary establishmgnt capital held as at Principal activities
i / ERTRARE
I% kx/ RIBHBEN
WEARER um&%mixmia% ERmEs EREH TERER
2020 2019
ZE-BRE_TNE
Directly held
EERR
QP Holdings Limited BVI/ Hong Kong / HK$77,400 100% 100%  Investment holding
10 March 1998
QP Holdings Limited EELRARHE/BA/ 7740087 © 100%  100% &R
“AANE=ATH
Indirectly held
AERE
Q P International Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$1 100% 100%  Trading of products and
16 March 2006 ~ investment holdmg
ERERCEARAT R/ ER/ 1T | 100%  100% ERBEHREREZK
“EEREZATAE
Q P Sourcing Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% 100%  Sourcing of materials and
2 April 2002 products
ERNMHREFRAT AR/ BE/ 1000087 = 100%  100% MERERRE
“ZT-5PWACH
Q P Printing Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$37,000,000 100% 100% Trading of products and
5 July 1985 investment holding
ERHRARAR BB/ BB/ 37,000000%71 ~ 100%  100% ERESREEER
“AWARELARA
QP (HK) Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of products and
2 April 2002 investment holding
EREB)ERAA /%/%5 /ﬁ . 10,0007 = 100%  100% EREHREEZR
“ZZ-FNAZH
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 B AR (&)

(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establlshment

(EEEEE
(|||)EHBJEZ_L/ ﬁSZ_L A

Name of subsidiary

MEARAR

Indirectly held (Continued)
AERE(E)
Q P Trading Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
21 May 2013
ERESERAA BB/ BB/
“E-=fRA=t-H
Dongguan Zensee Printing ~ PRC / PRC/
Limited' 15 January 1992
=ERORBRRAN hE/ mE/
—“AMZ%-ATEH
Q P Enterprises Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
16 November 2017
EREXERRA BB/ BA/
“E-tFt-ATRE
Taunus Printing (Heshan) PRC/PRC/
Company Limited"* 17 November 2006
BEOA(BL)AERAR  hE/ PE/

“EEAF+-ATLH

DPI Laboratory Services
Limited
EERARBERAT

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
22 June 2010

BB/ BE/
“E-FERACTCH

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
26 September 1996

B/ BR/
“ANREARZTRE

Product Innovator Limited

HEERERBRAR

Multi International Investment Hong Kong / Hong Kong /

. Group Limited QMarqh 2015
EEARREEEARLA B/ BH/
“F-H1F=f=H

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital

Effective interest
held as at

RT3 RREEH
BN
2020 2019

“RIRECTONA

Principal activities

E%ﬁ&%i
FMER

IERE

HK$10,000 100% 100% Trading of products

10,000/ 1T 100% 100% EmZ5

HK$211,167,245 100% 100%

of products
EnRERES

11,167,245% 7T 100% 100%

HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
10,000% T 100% 100% #HEER
US$8,800,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading
B of paper products
8,800,000% 7 100% 100% BERFERES

HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of laboratory
testing services

187 100% 100% REERERARE

HK$370,000 100% 100% Trading and retailing
of merchandise and
__investment holding
3700007 = 100%  100% AREHLRTEURKES
&
HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding

28T - 100%  100% WEER
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Name of subsidiary

MEARAR

Indirectly held (Continued)

AEEE(R)

Eternity Year Investment
. Limited
EFRERRRA

Archer Praise Limited

MEBRAA
Radiant Keen Limited
WEERAA
Printer's Studio Limited

Printer’s Studio Limited

TianJin ZenSee Technology

Co., Ltd!
REEBRBBRAA
CS Works Corp.

CS Works Corp.

NOTESTOTHECONSOL[%TBDHNANCMLSWHEMENTS

14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establishment

(BFMAYL/ IR
(TELEER;
(ili)EMEL L/ BB

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
24 October 2014

%\ﬂé/ B/

Z-ME+AZTMEA

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
6 March 2015

BB/ BR/
—E-hF=ARHA

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
13 March 2015

BB/ BB/
“Z-nFE=AT=H

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
19 October 2009

BB/ BB/
“Z2ENETATAA

PRC / PRC / 19 May 2005

e/ B/
“EZRFRATNA

United States / United States /
16 May 2016

%I/il/
7/7‘ /\ ﬁﬁﬂ ﬂ'/\ H

RAMTEERARMEE

14 B QT (HE)

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital

Effective interest
held as at

RT3 ERH
BRE
2020 2019

“RCRECTONR

Principal activities

IERE

HK$2 100% 100% Property holding
28T 100% 100% WMEZR
HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding
28T 100%  100% #EEK
HK$2 100% 100% Property holding
2B T 100%  100% WERE
HK$10,000 100% 100% Sales of website products
10,0007 7T 100% 100% REHEEER
HK$30,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of products
30,000,000 1t 100% 100% ERES
US$10 100% 100% Provision of customer
services
10ET 100%  100% REZFRE
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ire g maR MR

14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i) Country of incorporation/

establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establishment
ME%WL/WJI%,
MEXEE
(iii) EE AR AR 32/

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital
E%ﬁ&@ﬂ

Bx/
RYAH ARER

Indirectly held (Continued)
BEEE(R)
Shenzhen Zen See PRC /PRC /9 May 2014 RMB100,000
Information Technology
Co,, Ltdé B .
FIEREENFARDA A K #100,0007C
—-mERANA
Dongguan ZenSee Product  PRC/PRC/ RMB4,000,000
Testing Limited? 9 February 2010 )
%;@mmﬂw@w‘ﬁﬁi hE/ wE/ AR 4,000,000
YNTE “E-TF-ANH T
Q P Holdings (Vietnam) BVI / Hong Kong USD50,000
Limited 10 September 2020
Q P Holdings (Vietnam) EE ﬁ,? Be/a%/ 50,000% 7T
Limited ZENATH
Q P Trading (Vietnam) Vietnam / Vietnam / VND300,000,000
Company Limited 16 January 2020
Q P Trading (Vietnam) tm/ m / 300,000,000# 7
Company Limited TE-A+H B
Notes:
1. These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered in the PRC.
2. These are wholly-domestic owned enterprises under the PRC

law.

The English translation of the companies and legal entity types

names are for reference only. The official names/types are in

Chinese.
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Effective interest
held as at

FTﬂH%%ﬁm
ERES
2020 2019
= 7 —= $

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%
100% 100%

100% N/A
100% @A

100% N/A
100%  TiEf

g

- RYZFHEH2Z AR
HANEHAB AP -

Z-NE

14 BT (&)

Principal activities

IERE

Provision of information
technology support for
web sales

ARIHEERMEARHK

Tk

Provision of \aboratory
tesmg services

REERERARS

Investment holding

REZR

Trading of products
Emg%

ENRATIR R B ML -

& RNy IR T BDA M

A/ ERE



15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MY

15

R AE

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment  vehicles in progess
BF HENEZE BER#E B R&fE hE fRIR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn TR Thr Thn TR
At 1 January 2019 R=E-7E-B-H
Cost KA 165,549 76,408 449,960 92,825 188 - 796,930
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3f1TE (32,729) (27,875) (326,724) (L4738 (11,871) - (443,931
Net book amount FARE 132,826 48,533 123,236 48,087 317 - 362,999
Year ended HEZE-1%
31 December 2019 +ZR=t-8
E5E
Opening net book amount ~ EAIKEFE 132,826 48,633 123,236 48,087 317 - 352,999
Additions hE - 10,008 39,398 6,522 249 - 56,177
Disposals & - 62) (11,260 (591) - - (11919
Depreciation it (152) 8018) (24,325 8,275) (459) - [85%)
Exchange realignment L (1,524) (890) (1,191) (1,066) @ - (4,673)
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 123,780 49,571 125,852 44677 105 - 34398
At 31 December 2019  H=Z-f%
tZA=1-H
Cost Bk 163,383 84,830 425,30 85,339 1,834 - 770,691
Accumulated depreciation  ZifTE (39,603) (35,259) (299,459) (20662 (11,729) - [426,706)
Net book amount BHFE 123,780 4951 126,862 44617 106 - 343,985
Year ended HE-B-EF
31 December 2020 tZRzt-A
LEE
Opening net book amount ~ E4IRAF(E 123,780 49,571 125,852 44,617 105 - 343985
Additions RE 12,920 9,529 25,607 4,312 1,367 12,375 66,110
Disposals hE - - (538) (85) - - (623)
Depreciation Mg (7,642) (9,069) (19,431) (8,325) (170) - (44,637)
Exchange realignment EREE 5,532 3,439 6,20 2,231 15 135 18,247
Closing net book amount XK % & 134,590 53,470 137,785 42,810 1,317 13,110 383,082
At31December2020  R-E-FEfZf
=t-A
Cost KA 184,632 100,762 479,907 94,134 12,313 13,110 884,858
Accumulated depreciation  Z3f 1T E (50,042) (47,202) (342,122) (51,324)  (10,99) - (501,776)
Net book amount REFE 134,590 53,470 137,785 42,810 1,317 13,110 383,082
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E=PAN
/i\\/T\IZI

15

A H5 R M ot

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$22,593,000
and HK$29,720,000 have been charged in “Cost
of sales”, and approximately HK$22,044,000 and
HK$18,879,000 have been charged in “Administrative
expenses” for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 respectively.

Buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$35,020,000 and HK$36,636,000 were pledged
as collateral for the banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 30) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
respectively.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, formal real
estate ownership certificates have not been obtained
for certain of the Group’s properties with total
carrying value of approximately HK$2,691,000 and
HK$2,839,000 respectively. The Group has taken
remedial actions and is in the process of obtaining the
necessary real estate ownership certificates. In the
opinion of the directors, the absence of formal title
to these real estate ownership certificates is not an
indicator for impairment in the value of these properties
as the Group has paid the full purchase consideration
for these buildings and the probability of being evicted
on the ground of an absence of formal title is remote.
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156 W% - BMEKRE(E)

ai_7_?$& T-NF+=A
=+ —HIEFE - 55422,593,000
7 JT 129,720,000 JT &) ¥ & FF
XEFAMEE XX &5 54
22,044,000/ 7T %18,879,0005% 7T K
WERIBEFAITTBAXS] -

BF ™ ¥ 1B #4935,020,000% 7T &
36,636,000/ 7T ® & F 2 & | E
ABAEBDHIR_ZE_EFR_Z
— W F+-_A=Z+—BHERMHNIRTT
& (B 5E30) F K3 & -

RZEBEZEFR_E—NLF+=
A=+—HB Xx&EBEIX R EE
IR M E D Bl 4 52,691,000 T &
2,839,000/ L& T WERSER
EHEREZE  AEEDHEINHERE
M BEERBEMENEHEREFE -
BEERE BHRAEBEEIN%ZE
EFMe2dBBEERERAGRLLER
XEMERENTREEEN Bt
ML ZEFHERFENEXNEZERZIL
IEPZEMENEELIARME -



16 SHARE CAPITAL

NOTESTOTHEGONSOmexa)HNANGMLSWHEMENTS
KRB MR M

16 KA

As at As at As at

31 December 31 December December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

—?—?E }K\:g_nﬁi —7—?¢ Q:g_n$

t=7 t=8  +ZR -7

=t-H =t-H =t-H =t-8
Number Number

of shares of shares HK$°000 HK$000

B mEE B EE THET FTET

Authorised: EE:

At beginning of the year F7) 2,000,000,000 39,000,000 20,000 390

Increase in share capital EMBRA 2a)

(note a) — 1,961,000,000 - 19,610
End of the year FR 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRE:

At beginning of the year F4 77,400 1 1 -

Issue of shares pursuantto 1B A E1THEH

the Reorganisation - 77,399 - 1
Paid up of capital BWER 77,400 - 1 -
Capitalisation issue (note b) B R E47 (H1i#b) 398,845,200 — 3,988 —
New issue of shares from & BEEHH L TR G

Global Offering (note ¢) (Hiitc) 133,000,000 — 1,330 —
End of the year FX 532,000,000 77,400 5,320 1
Notes: Bt -

a. On 20 December 2019, the authorised share capital of the a. R—_ZETE—hAhEF+_A=-_+H xR
Company was increased from 39,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 A WA E R A B S RKROE TH
each to 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01. 39,000,000 % A% 17 1% %= & A% 0.0178 7T &)

2,000,000,000 % f% {7

b. Pursuant to a written resolution of the then Shareholders, a b. 1R f ’x% EMABE BEARQA
total of 398,845,200 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and R —E—_FF—A+ /"B Lma-
issued at par value to the Shareholders immediately before the ARARIRETBEHHMNBROD EEERAE
listing of the Company’s shares on 16 January 2020 by way b 77 R B 13,088,452 Tt ) B B %
of capitalisation of HK$3,988,452 from the Company’s share M 1B B 8 & % 17 & $£398,845,200% &
premium account on the Listing Date. f& EE0.018 T 1D

c. On 16 January 2020, 133,000,000 new shares were issued at c. RZZEZZTF—A+ A ARARE
a price of HK$1.18 per share in connection with the Company’s BEARSHABER AR ER LI
listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 1?&118?% 7T B #% % 17133,000,000/%
Limited. AR e
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KRB MR M

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17 REWE

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019

—?— iﬁ :g’éij—bfﬁ

HK$’000
TERT

HK$’000
TAET

Non-current assets — at fair value ¥ RBEE — R A FE

At beginning of year i?ﬂ 2,135 2,275
Fair value changes N EE - (140)
End of the year FXR 2,135 2,135

Investment property is situated in Hong Kong and
rented out under operating leases. Amounts recognised
in profit and loss for investment property are as follows:

BREMERLUNER REE fﬁiﬁﬁ
HesBREVMERBERANER

LRI

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLEE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Rental income recognised in 7 B T A HE FR
other income HEWKA 49 48
Direct operating expenses BEEEERX (6) 6)
43 42

The directors performed a valuation of the investment
property under the market comparable approach using
the current market price and adjusting for factors
regarding the location and size of the property to
determine the fair value as at 31 December 2020 and
2019. The fair value gain or loss is included in “Other
(losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The fair value measurement is categorised in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy, and there were no transfers
between level 1, 2 and 3 during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The key inputs as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
average market price of similar investment property
after adjusting for age, location, condition and
surrounding facility. The higher the market price, the
higher the fair value.
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EEREBETHALRTE EAE
MmEMEREZMEMLE KRR
MAERZUREYRETHRE
NEER-_Z_ZTFR_FT—N#F
T-A=t—H®OAQFE- /‘1@
BREAAGSAEERNEME
18) W FREIRN

ANFEFEFALRFEBRNE=
B BRNBE-_Z-_ZER_ZT
—NF+-_A=+—BIFE F—
B -$_BRF=ZBEIWEEE o

RZE_ZEER_FT—NF+=-H
Zt—HHEZH ABIE AER -
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NOTESWDTHEGONSOUDATH)HNANCMLSEMENENTS
KRB MR M

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREEE

Golf club
Membership  Computer
Goodwill (Note) software

ELES

BABRE
BE (W2 EERE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
: Figr  FEL

Year ended 31 December BE-Z-N&E+ZA

2019 =t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEREFE 24,715 943 683 26,341
Additions NE — - 102 102
Amortisation (Note 8) B8 - — (184) (184)
Exchange realignment RS (435) - (10) (445)
Closing net book amount FRETFE 24,280 943 591 25,814
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h&E+=HA
=+-H

Cost X AR 24,280 943 938 26,161
Accumulated amortisation g 5 - - (347) (347)
Net book amount RHFE 24,280 943 591 25,814

Year ended 31 December BE-_Z_-_ZF+ZH

2020 =t-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 24,280 943 591 25,814
Additions E - - 1,256 1,256
Amortisation (Note 8) B35 (0 i28) - - (400) (400)
Exchange realignment fE 5B 1,674 - 63 1,737
Closing net book amount FRE®EFE 25,954 943 1,510 28,407
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-Z5+-H
=t+-H

Cost B A< 25,954 943 2,291 29,188
Accumulated amortisation g g - - (781) (781)
Net book amount REFE 25,954 943 1,510 28,407
Note: Golf club membership is stated at historical cost. The club Mit: SREKBELBGETIRE L KK

membership has an indefinite life which is not subject to F-EBELHeBFHTIART &

B ASFETRENS IR

amortisation and is tested annually for impairment and applied - N 7 -
EEAHDEERKAQTERKX

fair value less costs to sell when determining its recoverable

EITINE HE—T—F - =
2g11c;unts. ‘Durirlwg thste years e(r;de‘d 31‘ ?ecetmbte; 202‘(2 alng f%;f:ﬂ?+ EI&EJ%&]IH
, NO Impairment was made In relation to € golt Clu ?X%Eﬁ%fﬂ\%% @%f‘ﬁﬁjﬁﬂﬁo

membership.
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RA MBS ERARMEE

==

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation expenses relating to computer software
of approximately HK$400,000 and HK$184,000 have
been charged in “Administrative expenses” for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Goodwill arose from the purchase of Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited (“TPC”) from certain third
parties during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Goodwill arising from acquisition is allocated to the
relevant CGU, composed of QPE and TPC, which are
expected to benefit from the business combination.
Management reviews annually whether the carrying
amount of a CGU is higher than the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
determined based on a value-in-use calculation with key
parameters including revenue growth rate and gross
profit margin. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow
projection based on five-year financial budget approved
by management using the estimated growth rate of the
relevant CGU, taking into account the Group’s overall
growth rate of 3% and gross profit margin of 25%.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
assuming a terminal growth rate of 3% and no material
change in the existing scope of business, business
environment and market conditions. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15% and
management believes it reflects specific risks relating to
the segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions would not result
in an impairment provision of goodwill. There was no
impairment provision for intangible assets during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

220 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EZERERAH

18

mILEE (&)
BE-Z-ZFR-F—NF+=f
=+ —HIEFE 7 5#400,000%8
7 52184,00078 7T 9 % ik 50 4 48 9 4
SR E R T ERB R ME -

BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HIF
EHEERAAETE=ZTBERE
ZENRI (85 1) AR 2R ([TPCY) -

WEEEANBEIEZBHEERK
EHPEANBBEREELEEMH
ERMERTPCHAK EREEF
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RAWESHE - BREELELNHA
WoeBDEREREENEE
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EME - ZEAETERUNEEER
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B-BERRReRERUNREX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 10 ZEHE NI A
CATEGORY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-ERF —NFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHB T FE T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost TN AT ER A
cEMEE
— Trade receivables — B5EIKFIAE 233,248 167,007
— Prepayments, deposits and other — AT FIE - & %&
receivables (excluding prepayments H {th fE W IR
and VAT receivables) (TBREE ﬁ HIE &
JE L 355 fﬁ ) 27,787 22,206
— Pledged deposits — BEBER - 381
— Cash and cash equivalents — fﬁi&fﬁ/\’wf ) 236,670 104,775
Financial assets at fair value through % 2 NEEFABEERN
profit or loss TRLEE
— Derivative financial instruments — TSI A 3,866 —
501,571 294,369
Financial liabilities sHmas
Other financial liabilities at amortised BEHK AT BR A
cost HthamaE
— Trade payables — B RN FIA 122,423 92,095
— Accruals, provisions and other —ETER BEL
payables (excluding accrued HiERRB(TE
staff costs, other taxes payables, %E%EIE}Z$ .
contract liabilities and provision Hib R BIE - ’7
for social insurance and housing BEMTERE
provident fund) FEAESRE 1%) 51,148 22,982
— Borrowings — & 87,536 188,287
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 5,407 4,333
266,514 307,697
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20 FHAEEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHB T FE T

Land + 3t 115,692 114,633
Properties S 5,580 4,490
Motor vehicles RE 858 1,636
End of the year RER 122,130 120,759
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20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20 FRAEEE(E)

Motor
Land Properties vehicles Total
T /S AE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000
THT  TET TR TAR

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-ZT-h&E+=A

Zt-HALEE
Opening net book amount FVREFE 118,218 5,878 2,415 126,511
Additions NE — 3,138 - 3,138
Amortisation (Note 8) 3H (i) (2,615) (4,019) (779) (7,413)
Disposal HE - (492) - (492)
Exchange realignment B i, 55 & (970) (15) - (985)
Closing net book amount FEREMFE 114,633 4,490 1,636 120,759
At 31 December 2019 R-—Z2-Z&5+=AH

=+-H
Cost X 78 121,155 10,696 3,894 135,745
Accumulated amortisation BT # (6,522) (6,206) (2,258) (14,986)
Net book amount RHEFE 114,633 4,490 1,636 120,759
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE-E-ZFF+-f

=+-HILEE
Opening net book amount FONEBFE 114,633 4,490 1,636 120,759
Additions NE - 4,403 - 4,403
Remeasurement B¥TE - 150 - 150
Amortisation (Note 8) B (W28 (2,602) (3,425) (778) (6,805)
Disposal k= - (220) - (220)
Exchange realignment E RIS 3,661 182 - 3,843
Closing net book amount FREBFE 115,692 5,580 858 122,130
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-Z%+=A

=+-H
Cost AR 125,143 13,319 3,894 142,356
Accumulated amortisation 2t & (9,451) (7,739) (3,036) (20,226)
Net book amount REFE 115,692 5,580 858 122,130
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20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The statement of profit or loss shows the following

21

amounts relating to leases:

Expense relating to short-term lease

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMTEERARMEE

20 EFRAEEE(HE)

BRRIIATERHEGRE 228

As at 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2020

2019
—ZT—NF
HK$’000
FB T

—E-FHF

HK$’000
FTRERT

HEREEANRBEZ

contract (Note 8) (K7 i8) 484 1,007
Amortisation of right-of-use ERAEEE®ENZS)
assets (Note 8) 6,805 7,413
Interest expenses (included in MERZ (GTARE K A)
finance cost) (Note 10) (Htat10) 144 141
INVENTORIES 21 78
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—AH
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Raw materials R & 36,820 30,313
Work in progress £ 2 i 30,909 28,719
Finished goods X &t 25,951 26,674
93,680 85,706

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in “cost of sales”
HK$429,322,000 and HK$405,355,000 for the years

ended 2020 and 2019 respectively.

amounted to

BHE-_Z-_ZFER-_FT—hLF+_-A
“+—BLEFE GFEXEAERE
AX sFAIEEX AN 25D 5
#429,322,0007% 7T K 405,355,000/
e
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21 INVENTORIES (Continued)

The carrying amount of inventories is stated
net of provision for inventory obsolescences of
HK$20,334,000 (2019: HK$17,655,000).

21

FE(HE)
1755 40 B B AT 0 15 O 8 77
20,334,000 (= & — 1L F:

17,655,000/ T) 18 £ 71| °

at 31 December

%+:H—+—H

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FAT

Movement of inventory provision FEREZY
As at 1 January n—H—H 17,655 14,699
Provision for the year (Note 8) F AN K E8) 1,248 3,406
Translation adjustment MmERE 1,431 (450)
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 20,334 17,655

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES 22 ESEWAKIE

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-—
2020 2019
—_ ? —_ iﬁ 7j1:£ﬁ
~ HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables =) &/ 233,248 167,007
Trade receivables represent goods sold to third parties. EORKABERNE=AHEHENE
The credit terms granted by the Group are generally 30 Do ASEBEHMEERH —M&A30
to 90 days. F90K °
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis RZBEZZFEFRZF-NF+ZA
of the trade receivables, based on invoice date, were as =t+t—H RBEODHIENES
follows: FEWRIBRERR DT

at 31 December

%+_ =+—H
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
F& T
Less than 30 days L300 99,497 74,297
31-60 days 31E60X 74,064 52,396
61-90 days 61£290X 32,854 20,045
Over 90 days 90K M £ 26,833 20,269
233,248 167,007
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the trade receivables. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. The Group considers
the credit risk characteristics and the days past due to
measure the expected credit losses. During the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the expected
losses for customers of sales of goods is minimal, given
there is no history of significant defaults from customers
and no adverse change is anticipated in the future
business environment. No provision for impairment of
trade receivables has been made throughout the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s trade receivables were denominated in the
following currencies:

RAMTEERARMEE

22 E5EWRIEA(E)

RBESEHEENZTAERRR
REZRBFENKEE -A%E
I % F5 B E AR an (E AR o

AEEEAEENEREELNFEQ
RETRIAME{ A AR EHEE
EBETIREE EATEMEES
EWRIBER A2 BTE Bl s 1B 15 4 o
AEEEREEERREARE A
HBEE UstEEHEEREE - ©»
HE-_Z-_ZFR-_ZFT-—NLF+=
A=+ BHLEFE ZERBEATE
EEFEREHN  MEFFARKREHR
BYERNFEE  AEFHEER
MIEHEBER)DN REBEEZZT=Z
FRZFE-NFT+ZA=T—HI
FE - BMEEREZEWRKREAR
BERE -

R-BE_TFR-_FT-NF+-A
=t+—R BZRYERENKEE
HENFERE

)

7 98 B ) .5 6 13RO T3 BA T 51 5
5t

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2020 2019
—EB-BF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FAET
Us$ ETT 139,042 103,796
HK$ BT 88,844 58,245
RMB AR 5,156 4,085
EUR B 7T 175 167
Others Hib 31 714
233,248 167,007
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RE SR M R
23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 23 ﬁ'ﬁ' RIE e RHEMERK
OTHER RECEIVABLES K
As at 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T&E T F& T

Prepayments AN 6,126 20,862
Other receivables H At & WK IR 5,889 20,244
Rental and other deposits HekHEMize 35,740 20,879

VAT receivables J& W 38 (B Tt 21,176 15,582
68,931 77,567

Less: Non-current portion (Note) B FERNERER o (A 7E) (33,842) (18,917)
Current portion Bl ER &8 9 35,089 58,650
Note: Included in the non-current portion prepayment, deposits and Brat: FEENERER Y M RIE - e R HEME
other receivables is a deposit paid in respect of acquisition of a WHRBEBERWE — KB A A

subsidiary of HK$20,000,000 (2019: HK$nil). #) 1% € 20,000,000 L (ZE —NF :

THT)

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and NRZE_EFR-_FE—NFE+=A

other receivables of the Group approximate their fair =+t—H X&£H E’JTE R IE - &

values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. K &Eﬂﬁ FERFREHEREAEEAEA
FEES

Their recoverability was assessed with reference to HErym 2B 5% 781EA

the credit status of each counterparty, and there is no MR meEE B EBHEEEE -

expected credit loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group’s prepayments, deposits and other

receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

23 AR

RAMTEERARMEE

RIE - RERHMEWK
FIE(£)

AEENENRE e R EMRE
Hﬁ?%ﬂﬁﬁ%?ﬂ%ﬁ%d’@i

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—AH
2020 2019
—E-EfF —NFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 26,171 34,480
us$ ETT 105 340
RMB AR 42,572 42,667
Others Hib 83 80
68,931 77,567

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 4 fTHESRM IR

INSTRUMENTS

2020
—E-EF

2019
—NF
HK$’000
TAET

HK$’000
FTERT

Forward foreign exchange contracts RHEIINE S A
As at 1 January n—H—H - —
Fair value gain on derivative financial RicEERRPER

instruments recognised in miirﬂlﬂﬁﬁ JZTE

consolidated statement of profit or W 2= (H1 226)

loss (Note 6) 3,866 —
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,866 —
The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding R-CZE-ZF+-_A=+—H"  #@AK

forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2020 were US$15,000,000 (approximately
HK$117,000,000).

A ERMINERHNBREAT B
# /315,000,000 7T (#7117,000,000
ABIL) °
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25 PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASHAND 25 B#E#EFRURRERAE

CASH EQUIVALENTS EEBY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H

2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Short-term bank deposits HMHRITHER 46,484 40,000
Cash on hand FHEBE® 441 214
Cash at bank RITR < 189,775 64,561
Total cash and cash equivalents RekReFEMERE 236,670 104,775
Pledged deposits (Note) BB F R 5 - 381

Total pledged deposits and cash and EERTERARBE SR

cash equivalents HeEEBEWRE 236,670 105,156
Note: The pledged bank deposits are held in designated bank M REERTEPHAENEEMERTE
accounts mainly for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 30). REZREREBMRITRE (T
30) °
The carrying amounts of short-term bank deposits, HHISRITER FHEHRS  HBTH
cash on hand, cash at bank and pledged deposits are S REEFER Z2ETETUAT
denominated in the following currencies: B E:

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EH& —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T T

Currency type EsfER
HKS$ BT 131,838 57,340
RMB AR 64,751 19,889
uss$ ETT 38,791 26,937
Other EHih 1,290 990

236,670 105,156
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26 SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Share premium of the Company is mainly attributable
to the completion of the reorganisation and issuance of
ordinary shares. Reserves during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 comprised of capital reserve,
statutory reserve, translation reserve and retained
earnings.

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries established
and operated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required
to make appropriation from profit after tax (after
offsetting prior years’ losses) to statutory reserve. The
PRC entities are required to transfer at least 10% of
its net profit as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to their statutory reserve. The
appropriations to the statutory reserve are required until
the balance reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset
prior year losses or be utilised for issuance of bonus
shares. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are restricted
in their ability to transfer a portion of their reserve either
in the form of dividends, loans or advances.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
reserves arising from the reorganisation for the purpose
of the Listing.

Retained earnings during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 represents the deficits/equities of the
operating companies after elimination of inter-company
transactions and balances. The movements in retained
earnings during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 mainly comprised of profit for the year and
dividends paid during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. Please see Note 13 for more detail on
the dividends.

fre SRR M

26 R EBR#*E

ARTRAHEBEBEREEER
RETERR - BE-F-TER
—E-AFT-ASt-BILFE
SELEES LTS
REBRRRERT -

RBARB R PBIKLRESZH
BLm@ERNMEEPBERRER
MRE ZEWMBRRARHERK
‘AN EFEBETFEER BE
AERE - TEERBSRETE
SR ERRERBENFRNNE
PIO%BRAEHZERE - BEX
ERBNCRABEEHEHREDNE
N M E AN E50% A 1k o K E [
WA RFRFEBREFERBEIAR
BATAIR - ARB B KB R AR
AR S ERIBRTABEER
D EEEBE N BIRH

AEBHEANFHEERANEE LT
ERMELENRE -

HE_Z-_ZFR-_ZT—NF+=A
“+—BHLEFEMNRBRENIEEE
NRAIREHE R ERSMEBRED
B4 D RBANREBEZEZ
TEFRIE-AFFTZA=1—H
FTFEMNEHTEVRFARI KL
HE_T-_ZTFR-_ZT—NLF+=
A=+ —BUIEFEERNSHRKE -
EBEREMEZFE B2HME
13 o
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27 TRADE PAYABLES 27 EZENFIE
As at 31 December
R+t=ZA=+—H
2020 2019

—E-2F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET

Trade payables =& AN 122,423 92,095

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis E@Z%?:%Eﬁ)i:%*ﬂiJr:ﬂ

of the trade payables, based on invoice date, were as =t+—8" TE = E‘ HAEMES
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF = —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FA T
Less than 30 days DHRBOK 63,335 45,256
31-60 days 160K 33,086 05,951
61-90 days 61290K 17,288 15,427
Over 90 days Q0K M £ 8,714 5,461
122,423 92,095
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate R_EBE_EFR-_ZE—-NFE+=A
their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. =—+—H ZE5E ﬁ A E@EE
BEHEANFEMRS °
The Group’s trade payables were denominated in the AEEMESRENRKBIATIE
following currencies: HEtE:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FET
HK$ T 21,380 16,255
Us$ ETT 6,684 8,162
RMB AR 94,131 67,678
Others Hib 228 —
122,423 92,095

230 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EZERERA A



A
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& B SRR Mt

28 ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER 28 &R - BERHMEN

PAYABLES MIE
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—8”
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accrued staff costs JEETE TAKA 42,417 39,152
Accrued expenses FEFTRX 6,390 6,065
Other taxes payables H b &S B 18 1,725 506
Contract liabilities (Note) aRaE ) 9,491 4,751
Listing expenses payable R ETmRAX - 8,063
Provision for social insurance and Rk kERE
housing provident fund NEZ G 30,670 30,191
VAT payables JE - 1 (B 10 238
Payable for properties, plants and Bk i@% f}E&
equipments %JTEH 16,207 —
Other payables /Hﬁﬂr‘iﬁ 28,541 15,170
135,451 104,136

Note: The amount represents advance payments from customers
for goods. The entire contract liabilities balance as at the
respective year ended dates has been/will be recognised as

revenue in the subsequent year.

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s accruals, provisions, contract liabilities
and other payables were denominated in the following

currencies:

Wa: BERBEREREPHNENER - REH

FEERAHNZ

MewaBEHR

B/ BRT—FEBRA/WE -

KRB -ZEFR
BENFERE

AEBHESTER -

T—hF+=A8
=+ —H EMEMK

A R B

BiE - A0A

&N EA &S 7 IETJLAT@JT% at

(=

As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+—H
2020 2019
—E-E& — N4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBx F& T
HK$ 7 T 41,401 26,400
us$ ETT 5,648 1,812
RMB AR 88,270 75,837
EUR BT 108 84
Others H 24 3
135,451 104,136
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RE SR M R
29 BORROWINGS 29 &R
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FA T
Bank borrowings RITER 87,536 188,287
Less: amounts due on demand or BmEBBEETATR
within one year shown under current BERKIR—FA
liabilities EIHA A 5K I8 (80,080) (105,285)
Non-current portion JE BN B > 7,456 83,002
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, borrowings of RZEBE_ZEFR-_FT—-—NLF+=A
approximately HK$24,773,000 and HK$53,655,000 are =+ — B/ &K% AE24,773,0007% 7T
subject to repayable on demand clause. 53,655,000/ 7T © HAXIEERKE
BIFRAR -
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s RZEBE-EFR-_FT-NF+=A
borrowings were repayable as follows: =+ —HB AEEERNERDHAW
T
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T AT
Within 1 year —FE AR 58,545 80,719
Between 1 and 2 years —EME 10,700 54,429
Between 2 and 5 years W E RF 9,773 35,632
Over 5 years FE 8,518 17,507
87,536 188,287
The above amounts due are based on the respective oyt B HA 2 0B T AR ff X% TS
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan St EXBETE C W EEE
agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on F 17 Bk EZEF ,ﬂ([ﬁl’j%ﬁ@i °

demand clause.
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The effective interests rates of the above loans (per
annum) at the reporting dates are as follows:

RAMTEERARMEE

29 (&)
LR E RN RS BT B FR R

T

As at 31 December

2019
—ZT—NF

Bank borrowings RATE N 1-month/ 1-month HIBOR plus
3-month HIBOR 1%-2%
plus 1%-2%
—@A =@EA — @A
ERABTEAERE FEETHEHERE
FI = MN1% E2% FIZ 1% E2%
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the borrowings are RZEBE_EER_FT—NF+=H

pledged by certain assets with carrying values shown
below:

[

=t+—8-
H R EIE

—

B mETEEFEM
TREAE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8”
2020 2019
—EB-2F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHETT
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 59,112 60,379
Property, plant and equipment E Y 35,020 36,636
Bank deposits RITHER - 381
94,132 97,396

The Group’s borrowings of approximately
HK$188,287,000 as at 31 December 2019 were
guaranteed by directors, namely Mr. Cheng Wan
Wai and Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth. The above
guarantees were released during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The carrying amounts of borrowings of the Group
approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2020

and 2019.

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in HKD.

REBR-_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—H
B 1 X #9188,287,000/8 7T % & & &
MEZ RSB ELERGERLE)
REHER FHERERHBEE-ZZ
EFE+_A=Z+—HI-FE®RE -

RZBE_EFR-_FT-—NF+=A
—t+—H AEEERMWE@EEH®R
ERFEREE -

REBNERIIABTTEHE °
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30 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately HK$226,333,000
(2019: HK$340,028,000) for overdrafts, loans, letter of
credit and trade financing. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$142,919,000
(2019: 143,453,000). These facilities were secured by:

pledges over the Group’s right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment as set out in Note
29; and

(i) pledges over the bank deposits as set out in Note
25 and Note 29.

31 LEASE LIABILITIES

30 RITHME

\_ZE-_FEFEF+-_A=+—H K
SEEFET EX EAELE

SMEABENRITBREATOR

226,333,000 & jo(=Z & — )L F:
340,028,000/ JT) > KX [A H & &) A
K R & 5B 40 5142,919,000/8 7T (=&
— L : 143,453,00058 7T) ° % 5 &t

BIYAAT S EEER:

R I 29 8 A & B 1 (£ A
BEERME BMENMKRE:
K

(i)

48 9 1 505 1% MY 32207 B 49 48
TR -

(i

HERE

31

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-BF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT FA& T
Current B 3,376 2,492
Non-current JER B 2,031 1,841
5,407 4,333

The Group leases various properties to operate its
businesses and these lease liabilities were measured
at net present value of the lease payments during the
lease terms that are not yet paid. No extension option
and no residual value guarantee are included in such
property and equipment leases across the Group.

The total cash outflows for lease payment including
lease liabilities, interest expenses on leases, for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
HK$3,478,000 and HK$3,791,000 respectively.

The total cash outflows for payments associated
with short-term lease contract for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 were HK$484,000 and
HK$1,007,000 respectively.
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AEEHEZENEUEZERS
HZEHEREZEAMARINE

ERENBREFRAE - BHER

BEKGEEERBMEFALTEE

HEMELRZKEBEHE -

HMEFEMR SR AEEEH
E-EEFR-_F-NF+A
=+—RALtFEMHEEaRE HE
A EBEFZ 95l A&3478,000/8 T &
3,791,000 7T o

BEZT-ZEFR-FT-NAF T
A=+— Eﬁifﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé%@
BRECNRNRSRLEED A
484,0007% 7T 21,007,000/ JT °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SR MR
32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 EZEMEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax BEEMRBEBEERBELERBEEEN D

liabilities is as follows: M

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—ECoEE —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FAET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered B 1218 A& & T Uk B &
after more than 12 months RIEFIIEE E 7,274 8,100
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1218 A A #5 F 4= #Y
within 12 months EERIBEE E 1,116 923
8,390 9,023
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered  #2:i@121# A % 15 F Y [@ &Y
after more than 12 months RIEFMIBEEE (16,062) (14,743)
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered 121 A A # F Uz Bl #Y
within 12 months REFIEAE (536) (1,100)
(16,598) (15,843)
Deferred tax liabilities, net RERIBE B EFHE (8,208) (6,820)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account BEERS B A F BT
is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—8

2020 2019

—E2-2F —TNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FAT

At 1 January Rn—A—A8 (6,820) (6,269)
Charged to profit or loss FME &8 1 BR

(Note 11) (Hat11) (859) (680)

Translation adjustment bE 5 8 & (529) 129

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFETAE (8,208) (6,820)
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 EAEFTEH(E)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and BELEFEHEERBERHBES
liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2020 TEFRZE-NFTZA=T—H
and 2019, without taking into consideration the HEE(WEZEEEHGUER B
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is AEERANEE) NEBNT

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets BEELEFEBERE

Provision
for social
insurance
Property, and housing
plant and Inventory  provident

equipment provision fund Tax loss
HERBR
ER tEARE
BERRE  FERE BF  HEER Hfh @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL BT TAL TAL Thr

Balances at 1 January 2019 R=Z—AF—-F—H

B 8 615 4,424 5,804 1,008 4,235 16,176

Credited/(charged) to HA/(NkE)ER
orofit or loss 255 675 221) (1,008) (635) (1,134)
Translation adjustment ek (1) (90) (100) - (59) (250)

Balances at 31 December  RZE-NEF
2019and 1 January 2020 +-A=+-BR}

ZZZZE-f-H
&% 869 5,009 5,573 - 3,341 14,792
Credited/(charged) to A/ (BB BR
profit or loss (61) (1,979) (292) - 29 (2,303)
Translation adjustment & 5 A% 2 221 379 - 233 84

Balances at 31 December  RZZE-FE+-R
2020 ST-BHES 810 3,257 5,660 - 3,603 13,330
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 IEEFREH(E)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEBEE
Property,
plant and Land use

equipment right Total

BER®HE twERAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET

Balances at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—-A—H

f & 5 14,397 8,048 22,445
Credited to profit or loss FAEE (254) (199) (453)
Translation adjustment BE 5 382 (241) (139) (380)
Balances at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+=A

1 January 2020 =+—Bk=Z=%

—A—BW&#% 13,902 7,710 21,612
Credited to profit or loss AR (1,247) (197) (1,444)
Translation adjustment [E 5 % 849 521 1,370
Balances at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+A=1—

B &) & 5 13,504 8,034 21,538
The Group takes into account the probability that AEEBRBERELEFNSHREERD
deductible temporary differences or tax losses carried EZRAMBEFEEZHENEDEED
forward can be utilised against future taxable profits on TH &5 48 R A DA 4K 8H R 2R B RR A i A
recognition of deferred income tax assets. In assessing RATREME - R EREFSEHRE E
recoverability of deferred income tax assets, the Group RAT Y E R ANEEZEEIELER
takes into account scheduled reversal of deferred SHAGEMEEBE KRB RKE
income tax liabilities and projected future taxable profit. R A e
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32

Deferred income tax liabilities
(Continued)

The expiration of tax losses carried forward for which
deferred income tax assets are not recognised is as
follows:

ZEEF)? Bl (%)
EEFREHEEGE)

FENABRCRERELMRE
TRéf?)E’J,HWEZZDT-

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—AH
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Tax losses expiring within 5 years AFAEEAEIEEE 15,396 8,253
Tax losses expiring after 5 years hFE®BINEMBIAEIR 2,768 629
Total @5t 18,164 8,882

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deferred income tax
liabilities have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the distributable retained
profit amounting to approximately HK$198,934,000
and HK$149,995,000, respectively, of the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.
Such amounts are not expected to be distributed to
the subsidiaries incorporated outside of the PRC in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 KEMBHRE

OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLFE
2020 2019
—E-EHE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Profit before income tax BR FT 15 B4 Al m A 159,477 101,446
Adjustments for: AT ZIBELAE:
Depreciation of property, plant and E - BEK
equipment R E 44,637 48,599
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEME - BEK
plant and equipment BEEE () 484 (3,911)
Provision of inventory obsolescence T ERE 1,248 3,406
Amortisation of right of use assets 1 P& = 8 i 6,805 7,413
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EHE 400 184
Finance income 7 & A (1,925) (101)
Finance costs =N 4,815 7,618
Fair value change on investment REMEZ
property NEEE - 140
Termination of lease contract HIEHEEED (13) (10)
Reversal of social security insurance IR B RO
provision (1,523) —
Fair value change on derivative TEEMIAEY
financial instrument NEEE (3,866) -
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) KERESEE
(W z=) 14,174 (2,948)
224,713 161,836
Changes in working capital: LEESEE:
Inventories FE (3,401) (4,854)
Trade receivables 2 5 FE W k1A (65,915) 26,100
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRE ek
receivables H b fE W IR (223) 4,648
Trade payables B 5 M 3OE 24,439 (18,856)
Accruals, provisions and other JEETEBR - BiEX
payables H b & 5K I1B 11,943 2,744
Cash generated from operations KEmERS 191,556 171,618
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33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 REMBRE(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds FReReReard HEME.-
from disposals of property, plant and equipment and BN EEARIEEYEFRERIE
investment property comprise: B

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+t—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net book amount REFE 623 11,919
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEME - BWE K
plant and equipment B (BB, ks (484) 3,911
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BMELKE
plant and equipment Fr 15 3k 18 139 15,830
Decrease/(increase) in receivable as at MW+ = A er — B
31 December JE W FRIE R (38 hn) 15,412 (15,412)

Cash flow from disposals of property, RELEWE  BMEX
plant and equipment HEHNR2RA 15,551 418

240 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EEZERERAHE
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KRB MR M

33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 REMBRE(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
This section sets out an analysis of reconciliation of REHINAM RS FENRE T E
liabilities from financing activities for each of the years FFEEMBEHER T
presented:

Obligations
under finance
leases Borrowings Total

MBEE

BTHRERE B a5
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FTAT FHT FTAT

Year ended 31 December BZEZ-Z-h1&+=A

2019 =t+—-HLEE

As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF

—H—H 6,002 228,034 234,036
Additions NE 2,951 — 2,951
Proceeds FTiS 58 — 89,426 89,426
Repayments e (3,791) (129,738) (133,529)
Disposals & (502) - (502)
Other non-cash movement HEmFBEeEH (327) 565 238
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF

+=ZRA=+—H 4,333 188,287 192,620
Year ended 31 December BE-_ZE-ZF+=A

2020 =+—-HALEE

As at 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-FF

—H—H 4,333 188,287 192,620
Additions NE 4,553 - 4,553
Proceeds A& A - 77,000 77,000
Repayments B R (3,478) (178,699) (182,177)
Disposals & (233) - (233)
Other non-cash movement Hi kR e 28 232 948 1,180
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZETF

+-A=+—8H 5,407 87,536 92,943
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KRB MR M

34 COMMITMENTS 34 A
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
At 31 December 2020 and 2019 capital RZEZEEFRZFT-NF
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is +—A=+—H BilHEN
as follows: REENEARARAZAT:

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019

—E-EE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Capital expenditure contracted for BEIHEEREED

but not yet incurred BARARAX
— Property, plant and equipment —ME BELFHE 6,392 11,451
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REMEAIE
(i) As alessee iy tEBAMEA
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the RZZEZZEFRZZT—N
Group had future aggregate minimum lease F+ZHA=+—H &&
payments under non-cancellable operating ERTAIHELEHET
leases in respect of office premises, factory B AME - BEDE
premises and equipments as follows: RSN R R & KM

ERERBEWT

As at 31 December
R+t=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019

—EF-%F TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET

No later than one year —F R 31 30
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KRB MR M

34 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34 &IE(E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REMEEAE (&)

(Continued)

(i) As alessor iy EARLMEA
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the RZZEZZEFR-ZT—N
Group’s had future aggregate minimum lease F+ZA=1T—H &&
receipts under non-cancellable operating ERITAHELERET
leases in respect of investment property are LI E W) 5 WY R 2K &
as follows: EEERBELBENOT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H

2020 2019

g Jun 32 —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTERT FAET

No later than one year —F R 34 32

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BBRAIRS

For the purposes of this report, parties are considered BLAImEMmMS - 00— 7] B # ok
to be related to the Group if the party has the ability, YRS BN R EERK N
directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence BEAZEN AR THBRRBEARE
over the Group in making financial and operating EARA - BBy AR EARNE
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being EERAR FTEBRRREAEE
members of key management personnel, significant E"J{I%ﬁigﬁﬁi%)ﬁE{ L D)
shareholders and/or their close family members) or ERASEBER S (ZSAB AR

EANERFENER X HFIE
BB ST AR S A R B o

other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related parties of the Group
where those parties are individuals. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.
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RE SR M R
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 ARG (18)
(Continued)
The directors are of the view that the following %%E{J o AT E A R RAR AR E
individuals and companies were related parties that —EEERZZ—N E +=A
had transactions or balances with the Group during the _TL BIEFE E'@Z" SEETRS
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019: ok BR 15 A5 BRAY A S T
Name of related parties Relationship with the Company/Group
BEBMARE &8 BEAQAR AEBHER
Big Elegant Limited Controlled by two of the Executive Directors of the Company
EEBRAA AR BB M B HITE F FTIE S
Other than those transactions and balances disclosed BRAREEMEHABEEOIZIR
elsewhere in this report, the following transactions were BRI ATRS TJ B[4 Bk 7 A0 &
carried out with related parties during the years ended Eé:%%fe FhkZE—NF+=A
31 December 2020 and 2019: =t—RHIEFE#E
(a) Transaction with a related party (a) EBAXRS
The following transaction was undertaken by the NTRSTHHARNEEH F% B 7
Group with a related party during the years ended REBEE_ZT_ZTFER_F—N
31 December 2020 and 2019: Fr+-A=1— EIJtEE%E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-—BLFE

2020 2019

—E-%F —TNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Rental payment to: ST ERIE

— Big Elegant Limited — SEEBR AR 1,140 1,340
The amounts shown on the above table represent ERFREEABE_ZE-F
the cash amount paid to the related party during FERZFE-NF+ZA=1+—
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. BEFEMBERLTXNHRS

TR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transaction with a related party
(Continued)

On 1 September 2019, the Group entered into a
lease with Big Elegant Limited in respect of a HK
property with a lease term from 1 September 2019
to 31 December 2021. At the commencement date
of the lease, the Group recognised a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability of HK$2,587,000. As
at 31 December 2020, the lease liability balance
under this lease amounted to HK$1,127,000 (2019:
HK$2,227,000).

Such operating lease payment to the related party
has been classified and presented as depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and interest expense
accrued over the lease liabilities due to the
adoption of HKFRS 16.

The above transaction with a related party was
conducted in the ordinary course of the business
of the Group based on the terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is disclosed in
Note 9.

Guarantees by directors and
shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s banking
facilities were secured by personal guarantee
provided by the directors of the Group, namely Mr.
Cheng Wan Wai and Mr. Yeung Keng Wu, Kenneth,
as set out in Note 29. The above guarantees were
released during the year ended 31 December
2020.

RA MBS ERAR MR

35 AL X5 (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BELIXRS (&)

RZE—hAhFNLA—B K&
EHEEERAAMR —ERE D
METY—BHEE HHH=
E-NFhLA—HBE-_ZT—_—
F+-_A=+t-—-H -REEH
BB AEEBREAES
&E M E & 1E2,587,000% 5T °
R-ZE_ZEF+=-_A=+—8"
ZHEBETHWHEAELEH®
1,127,000 T (Z T — L &F:
2,227,000/ JT.) °

HREBE BN EREERSE
165% - & TR BB 7 T &

EHERECDOBRAL 2 AE
REEEMNTEREEREN
JEEHF BRI °

FEBAE NS IR AE
ERRXEFBAEFREAES
F LR 15 TE MG FRETT ©

TEEEETM
TZEEERRARARES
REERBENKENEIEE
EENH BN EORE -

EERRREHRVER

—NF+=ZA=+—8"
AEENRITHREBAEEE
EERELE RGRBLEER
HEOEAZREER  FBEH
§|J)5A5f1%29 FRERERE
JJ:EE%@E’%
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 AARMBEMRREREE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 2 B 5k
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the PNNETR 7
Company
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FE T
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RN—EWNBE AT NKE 3,763 3,763
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment T8 15 508 23 - 10,225
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y B /B A &) 3k & 110,546 27,000
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 72,258 39
Total assets EEHE 186,567 41,027
Equity and liabilities EazRkaE
Equity attributable to AT EZRREMN
equity holders of the =
Company
Share capital % A% 16 5,320 1
Share premium & 10 % B 139,593 3,762
Reserves " 3,206 (1,319)
Total equity EEEEHE 148,119 2,444
Liabilities =
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A — [ B B R B 3R IE 38,433 30,520
Accruals EstE A 28 15 8,063
38,448 38,583
Total liabilities EEHE 38,448 38,583
Total equity and liabilities ®#EZEREBEHEE 186,567 41,027
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RAMTEERARMEE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 AARMBEMRRERFEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company

Share
capital
@

HK$'000
57

28x(HE)

ARERBEBR

Share Retained
Premium earnings Total
R A3 E B R & A @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER AT

Balances at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-1E§

-A-BHEH 1 3,762 (20,618) (16,855)
Profit for the year FN & F - - 29,299 29,299
Dividends paid Bk A - - (10,000) (10,000)
Balances at 31 December 2019 R=Z—-NI &
and 1 January 2020 +tZA=+-AK
“2-2%-H—H
& & 1 3,762 (1,319) 2,444
Profit for the year FREF - - 63,045 63,045
Paid up of capital BERNER 1 (1) - -
Capitalisation Issue BALELT 3,988 (3,988) — -
New issue of shares from FIRBER
Global Offering FETRA 1,330 155,610 - 156,940
Share issue costs R E TR K - (15,790) - (15,790)
Dividends paid B E - - (58,520) (58,520)
5,319 135,831 (58,520) 82,630
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=-Z=-Z &
+ZA=+t—-HH
® e 5,320 139,593 3,206 148,119

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F 3 247



FINANCIAL

SUMMARY

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

it
BRI
HEHRX
AR

ARFEERRELEM

B BE &

2016

HK$'000
TR

886,343
111,486
(21,651)

89,835

89,835

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Total equity and liabilities

BE
FRPEE
RBEE

EERE

RERAR
FRPEE
RBEE
AEAE
ARAEBA
EEEE

BRLREEE

2016

—E-RF
HK$'000
THT

237,252
357,366
594,618

3,452
225,982
229,434

365,184
504,618

248 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EZERERAHE

2017
“E—tF
HK$'000
TET

1,079,630
96,259

(17,370)

78,889

78,889

REEE BREREE

2017
St of 3
HK$'000
TET

404,308
391,483
795,786

5,438
337,476
342,914

452,872
795,786

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-BLEE

1

2018

g —/‘\.fi
HK$'000
TEL

,162,979
59,152

(8,161)

50,991

50,991

2019
“E-nE
HK$'000
TEL

1,193,641
101,446
(17,158)
84,288

84,288

As at 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE

2018
%ﬁ*/ﬂ\i
HK$'000

FE7

547,907
392,010
939,917

109,222
361,229
470,451

469,466
939,917

2019
“E-NE
HK$'000
THT

520,633
435,627
956,260

100,686
321,077
421,763

534,497
956,260

2020

it Jud 2.3
HK$’000
TER

1,232,631
159,477
(30,129)
129,348

129,348

2020
—g-%8
HK$’000
TH7

571,986
602,677
1,180,663

26,085
370,211
396,296

784,367
1,180,663
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